
CITY OF ELKO 
Planning Department 

Website: www.elkocitynv.gov 
Email: planning@elkocitynv.gov 

1 7 5 1  College Avenue Elko,Nevada89801 ·  (775)777-7160 Fax(775)777-7219 

P U B L I C  M E E T I N G  N O T I C E  

The City of Elko Planning Commission will meet in a regular session on Tuesday, April 3, 2 0 1 8  
in the Council Chambers at Elko City Hall, 1 7 5 1  College Avenue, Elko, Nevada, and beginning 
at 5 :30  P.M. ,  P.D.S.T. 

Attached with this notice is the agenda for said meeting of the Commission. In accordance with 
NRS 241 .020, the public notice and agenda were posted on the City of Elko Website at 
http://www.elkocitynv.gov/, the State of Nevada's Public Notice Website at https://notice.nv.gov, 
and in the following locations: 

ELKO COUNTY COURTHOUSE - 571  Idaho Street, Street, Elko, NV 89801 
Date/Time Posted: . March 28, 2 0 1 8  2 : 1 0  p.m. 

ELKO COUNTY LIBRARY -720 Court Street, Elko, NV 89801 
Date/Time Posted: March 28, 2018  2:05 p.m. 

ELKO POLICE DEPARTMENT- 1448 Silver Street, Elko NV 89801 
Date/Time Posted: March 28, 20 18  2 : 1 5  p.m. 

ELKO CITY HALL - 1 7  5 1  College A venue, Elko, NV 8980 I 
Date/Time Posted: March 28, 20 18  2:00 p.m. 

Posted by: Shelb Archuleta Plannin Technician 
Name Title 

The public may contact Shelby Archuleta by phone at (775) 777-7160 or by email at 
sarchuleta@elkocitynv.gov to request supporting material for the meeting described herein. The 
agenda and supporting material is also available at Elko City Hall, 1 7 5 1  College Avenue, Elko, 
NV. 

Dated this 281h day of March, 20 18 .  

NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES 

Members of the public who are disabled and require special accommodations or assistance at the 
meeting are requested to notify the City of Elko Planning Department, 175 1  College A venue, Elko, 
Nevada, 89801 orbycal l ing(775) 777-7160. 

Cathy 



CITY OF ELKO 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

5:30 P.M., P.D.S.T., TUESDAY, APRIL 3, 2018 

ELKO CITY HALL, COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 

1751 COLLEGE A VENUE, ELKO, NEV ADA 

CALL TO ORDER 

The Agenda for this meeting of the Elko City Planning Commission has been properly posted 
for this date and time in accordance with NRS requirements. 

ROLL CALL 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC 

Pursuant to N.R.S. 24 1 ,  this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and discussion 
of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item on the agenda 
until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive agenda and identified as 
an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

March 6, 2 0 1 8 -  Regular Meeting FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

I. NEW BUSINESS 

A. PUBLIC HEARING 

1 .  Review, consideration, and possible action of Conditional Use Permit No. 3 - 1 8 ,  filed 
by Jason B. Land on behalf on Blaine Branscomb, which would allow for a 
professional office within an RO (Residential Office) Zoning District, and matters 
related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

The subject property is located generally on the south side of Court Street, 
approximately 50 feet east of9 1h Street (9 10  Court Street, APN 001-281-002) .  

2. Review, consideration, and possible recommendation to City Council for Rezone 
No. 1 - 1 8 ,  filed by The City of Elko, for a change in zoning from R (Single-Family 
and Multiple-Family Residential) to PQP (Public, Quasi-Public), approximately 
1 . 3 1 4  acres of property, to allow for incorporation into the Elko City Parks, and 
matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

The subject property is located generally on the northwest comer of the intersection 
of College Avenue and Golf Course Road ( 140 1  College Ave, APN 001-200-002). 



3 .  Review, consideration, and possible action on Variance No. 3 - 1 8 ,  filed by Daniel 
Broockmann for a reduction of the required front yard setback from 1 5 '  to 1 1 . 6 ' ,  the 
required interior side yard setback from 7' to 4.8' ,  and the required exterior side yard 
setback from 12 '  to 10 .7 '  within an R (Single-Family and Multi-Family Residential) 
Zoning District, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

The subject property is located generally on the southeast comer of the intersection 
of W. Ash Street and A Street. ( 1 89  W. Ash St. - APN 001-091-001)  

4. Review, consideration, and possible action on Variance No. 4-18 ,  filed by Al 
Latimer on behalf of Ken worth Sales Company, for an increase in the allowable sign 
area from 194 square feet to 275 square feet within an IBP (Industrial Business Park) 
Zoning District, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

The subject property is located generally on the comer of the intersection of Ruby 
Vista Drive and Statice Street. (4224 Ruby Vista Dr. - APN 001-860-1 10)  

B. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS, PETITIONS, AND COMMUNICATIONS 

1 .  Review and consideration of Annexation No. 1 - 1 8  filed by Legend Engineering on 
behalf of Ed and Sharon Netherton and JoyGlobal Surface Mining Inc., consisting of 
approximately 32.74 acres of property located southwest of the intersection of West 
Idaho Street and P&H Drive, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE 

ACTION 

II. REPORTS 

A. Summary of City Council Actions. 

B. Summary of Redevelopment Agency Actions. 

C. Professional articles, publications, etc. 

1 .  Zoning Bulletin 

D. Preliminary agendas for Planning Commission meetings. 

E. Elko County Agendas and Minutes. 

F. Planning Commission evaluation. General discussion pertaining to motions, findings, and 
other items related to meeting procedures. 

G. Staff. 

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC 



Pursuant to N .R.S. 241 ,  this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and discussion 
of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item on the agenda 
until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive agenda and identified as 
an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT B E T  AKEN 

NOTE: The Chairman or Vice Chairman reserves the right to change the order of the agenda 
and if the agenda is not completed, to recess the meeting and continue on another 
specified date and time. Additionally, the Planning Commission reserves the right to 
combine two or more agenda items, and/or remove an item from the agenda, or delay 
discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Respectfully submitted, 

Cccul;}�; 
Cathy Lifuihlin J 
City Planner 



CITY OF ELKO 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
5:30 P.M., P.S.T., TUESDAY, MARCH 6, 2018 
ELKO CITY HALL, COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 
1751 COLLEGE A VENUE, ELKO, NEV ADA 

CALL TO ORDER 

ts made at this time. 

Vacancy 

David Freistroff er 
Jeff Dailing 
John Anderson 
Kevin Hodur 
Stefan Beck (excused himself at 6:43 p. 
Tera Hooiman (arrived at 5:32p.m.) 

ROLL CALL 

Present: 

David Freistroffer, Vice-Chairman of the City of Elko Planning Com 
to order at 5 :30 p.m. 

Absent: 

City Staff: 

PL 

February 6, 20 18  -  Regular Meeting FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

***Motion: Approve the minutes from the February 6, 2018 meeting. 

Moved by Kevin Hodur, Seconded by Stefan Beck. 

*Motion passed unanimously. (6-0) 

March 6, 2018  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 14 



I. NEW BUSINESS 

A. PUBLIC HEARING 

1 .  Review, consideration, and possible action of Conditional Use Permit No. 2 - 1 8 ,  filed 
by Boys & Girls Club of Elko, Inc., which would allow for the expansion of an 
existing building within a PQP (Public, Quasi-Public) Zoning District, and matters 
related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

The subject property is located generally on the southe 
of Country Club Drive and Convention Dive. (APN 

Tom Hannum, President of the Elko Boys and Girls Club, 
stated that he was happy with all of the conditions and s 

. ter Plan identifies Country 
eel is of off Country Club 

ges oft property. Staff feels that the 
ransportation Document, to provide a 

· cles, bicycles, and pedestrians, while 
. here is a lot of pedestrian use to the 

a school. Elko Wellhead Protection Plan, the 
ure zone, and development would be required to conform 

tion 3-2-3 the General Provisions, as stated before, an 
ng District requires a Conditional Use Permit. 

ce with the section of Code 3-2-3 with the Conditional 
the suitability of parcel, and the expansion that is proposed, does 

not create any 1 n 3-2-3 (D) of the City Code. Section 3-2-4 the Establishment of 
the Zoning Distric sed development does not conform to PQP, the reason being that 
rear setback is not be t, but they do have an existing variance and we will be discussing 
that with the next appl tion. If the new Variance is approved it will supersede the old one, and 
bring the property into conformance with Section 3-2-4. Section 3-2-8, which is PQP, the intent 
of the district is to accommodate public and Quasi-Public institutional uses. The PQP design 
development standards are a little different from the other zoning districts. The total ground floor 
area of the building shall not exceed 35% of the net site area. The minimum setback from any 
street line is not less than one and a half times the height of the principle building, which is being 
met. The interior side and rear lot lines is not less than the height of the principle building, plus 
one additional foot for each five feet that such building exceeds 35 feet in the aggregate 
horizontal dimension of the wall generally parallel to such side or rear lot line. The property 
does not conform, but if the variance is approved it will bring the property into conformance 

March 6, 2018  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 14 



with Section 3-2-8 of the Code. 3-2-17, the current facility is in conformance with the parking 
requirements. Staff has also calculated it with the new additional space, and they are still in 
conformance. 

Commissioner Jeff Dailing mentioned that their parking was horrible. He asked if their parking 
was suitable with the addition. He said parking was usually down Country Club Drive and 
Convention Drive. 

mes, Fire Marshal, had no additional comments, and 

the property is not 
ditions listed in 

Ms. Laughlin continued to Section 3-8, the Floodplain Ma a 
located within a designated floodplain. Staff recommen 
the Staff Report dated February 22, 2018 .  

Manager, recommended approval as presented by staff. He 
Commission and to the Applicant, under the variance there was a 

condition in Code osed project be completed within a certain time frame. Staff went 
through this with the nd Girls Club previously, where the timing wasn't going to match up 
with their project. As t · Planning Commission considered this item and the variance, he wanted 
to make sure the applicant was aware of that and that it met their time line. He explained that a 
variance was good for 1 8  months under the Code. 

Jeremy Draper, Development Manager, explained that in 2 0 1 1 ,  the Boys and Girls Club 
partnered with the Convention Center and the School District, and the eived a memorandum 
of understanding between the three parties, so they can use the adj pro serties for parking. 
That's one of the ways they conform to the code. 

variance. He then went over the 
entione at the Planning Commission would need 

ilding in their motion. 

Mr. Hannum explained that he was aware of the 18-month period and that the project was 
scheduled to be built this year. The only thing that would hold that back was if the donor pulled 
their donation. 

***Motion: Conditionally approve Conditional Use Permit No. 2 - 18  subject to the conditions in 
the City of Elko Staff Report dated February 22, 2018 ,  listed as follows: 

March 6, 20 18  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 14 



Development Department: 

Included in Memorandum dated February 22, 20 1 8  from Community Development Manager 

econded by Tera Hooiman. 

is required for a 
· s in support of 

irls Club 

the provided site plan 

1 .  The permit is granted to the applicant Boys and Girls Club of Elko. 
2. The permit shall be personal to the permittee and applicable only to the specific use and 

to the specific property for which it is issued. However, the Planning Commission may 
approve the transfer of the conditional use permit to another owner. Upon issuance of an 
occupancy permit for the conditional use, signifying that all zoning and site development 
requirements imposed in connection with the permit have been satisfied, the conditional 
use permit shall thereafter be transferable and shall run wi land, whereupon the 
maintenance or special conditions imposed by the permi s we as compliance with 
other provisions of the zoning district, shall be the respo of the property owner. 

3 .  Staff recommends the Planning Commission appr of the Accessory 
Building as required in 3-2-8-E-2. 

4. A variance for the interior side yard setback fi 

reduction in the setback from 49' -5" to 7'-0" 
this reduction based on the irregular s 
obtaining a long term lease from NDOT or a 

5 .  Slope stabilization will be required on all slope a 

s re . · mendation was the proposed development 
o of the Master Plan. The proposed development 
sportation infrastructure and the Transportation 

uitable for the proposed use. The proposed expansion 
h the City Wellhead Protection Program. The proposed 

g la uses. The proposed use is in conformance with City Code 
with the approval of the Conditional Use Permit. The proposed 

with 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-17, 3-2-18 ,  and 3-8 of the Elko City Code. 

Planning Department Conditions: 

"Motion passed unanimously. (6-0) 

2. Review, consideration, and possible action on Variance No. 2- 18 ,  filed by Boys & 

Girls Club of Elko for a reduction of the required rear yard setback for the principle 
structure from 49' 5" to 7 ' ,  in conjunction with a Conditional Use Permit to allow 
for expansion of an existing building within a PQP (Public, Quasi-Public) Zoning 
District, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

March 6, 2018  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 14 



The subject property is located generally on the southeast corner of the intersection 
of Country Club Drive and Convention Dive. (APN 001-560-092) 

Ms. Laughlin went over the City of Elko Staff Report dated February 26, 20 18 .  Staff 
recommended approval with the conditions and findings listed the Staff Report. She then went 
through the Planning Department conditions. 

conditions in the City of 

roval of CUP 2- 18  for the expansion of 
ic zoning district. 

10n within eighteen ( 18 )  months. 
as f the variance. 

rs if determined necessary by the planning commission. 

en feef(lO') from property line for this type of building use and 
omply with 2009 IBC with a 1 hour fire rating. 

Mr. Thibault and Mr. Holmes had no comments, and recom 

Mr. Draper said the Development Department agreed with the Planning Department's 
presentation. With the findings of granting of the variance, he recom approval of the 
variance as presented. 

Mr. Wilkinson recommend approval as presented by st"'+.ill!ilffll� 
Commission's attention to the findings presented on 
suggested they consider referencing those finding 

Vice-Chairman David Freistroffer pointed out that ther 
it doesn't generally apply to properties in the PQP, he also 
was a good variance. They don't like do · 
and seemed to be a function of the shape 

***Motion: Conditionally approve Varianc 
Elko Staff Report dated Fe 26, 20 18  list 

Commissioner Ho gs to support his recommendation was the applicant has 
demonstrated the pro ardship as developing a geometrically challenged parcel. In 
addition, the Plannin ommission has made this finding under a prior variance application. In 
an effort to minimize the issue, the applicant is entering into a long-term lease with a State 
agency abutting the property. The circumstance presents an exceptional difficulty in expansion 
of the facility to meet the needs of the community. The special circumstance does not apply 
generally to other PQP zoned properties within the vicinity. Granting of the variance will not 
result in material damage or prejudice to other properties in the vicinity. Granting of the variance 
will not substantially impair the intent or purpose of the zoning ordinance. Granting of the 
variance will not impair natural resources. The proposed variance is consistent with the Land 
Use component of the Master Plan. The setback standards for the PQP zone applied to existing 
parcels within the areas identified under Objective 3 complicate efforts in preserving and 

March 6, 2018  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 14 



- 1 8 ,  containing 
r Plan, and matters 

mendment to the City of Elko 

3 .  Review, consideration, and p 
amendments to the Atlas Map 
related thereto. FOR POSSIBL 

Moved by Kevin Hodur, Seconded by Stefan B 

promoting the City Park, City Hall and Convention Center as the civic heart of the community. 
The Boys and Girls Club, Public schools and other civic uses support the effort. The proposed 
variance is consistent with the Transportation Component of the Master Plan. The proposed zone 
district, intensity of use and limitations of intensity of use will not create any significant 
cumulative issues on the existing transportation system. The proposed variance is consistent with 
City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan. The proposed use of the property and allowed uses under 
the proposed district do not present a hazard to City wells. The property does not conform to 
Section 3-2-4 of City Code. Approval of the variance application is required to bring the property 
into conformance. The proposed variance is not in conformance with Section 3-2-8 Public, 
Quasi-Public. Approval of the variance application is required to brin roperty into 
conformance. The parcel is not located within a designated Special zard Area. It does 
not appear that granting of the variance will result in material da 
properties in the vicinity, nor will granting of the variance be 
safety and general welfare of the public. The proposed var' 
land uses. 

n amendment, but they made a mistake 
at should have been changed with the 

over t e areas that staff was proposing to change. She 
o in the packet. The biggest change was at Exit 298. 

ommercial and upper portion going to Industrial 
Business ysis he commercial districts, key element points in the 
community the Master Plan for commercial land use. Exit 298 was not 
listed in the M re area for commercial, but staff felt that it was. Staff had seen 
some proposed de n Exit 298 with the water line extension done, and staff felt that 
there would be additi mmercial development in that area. In the memo, staff analyzed 
what was remaining i ko, what the rate of commercial land use that was being utilized and 
developed, and with that Staff felt that it justified adding this 256 acres to the Master Plan under 
Commercial Land Use. It was proposed as Highway Commercial, which means a rezone could 
be approved as Industrial Commercial. Staff was proposing Industrial Business Park, north of the 
Highway Commercial, rather than General Industrial. Staff didn't feel like that was the right 
location for industrial type uses. This way is would keep this area as a central hub for 
commercial and light industrial uses. There is also an area up North 5th Street, which was 
requested from Assistant City Manager Scott Wilkinson after a Stage 1 Subdivision Meeting. It 
was previously labeled as high-density and staff was proposing medium density. The reason was 
that there was a Development Agreement currently in place for single-family residential or 

March 6, 20 18  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 6 of 14 



nge with the 
s the 

{Elko. 

tion rate, they look at land that was 

mmission read the more significant changes into 

Mr. Thibault and Mr. Holmes had no com 

Mr. Draper explained that staff did an extensive analysi 
Development Report, which is continually updated. 
absorption rate that has been seen on commercial 
Since 2012, the Jennings area had an absorption ate 
Exit, it is now just over 7%. With the higher percentag 
appropriate to designate some of the land to commercial to 

medium density residential. There are also some parcels adjacent to the Peace Park. They are 
currently developed with commercial uses and they were labeled as medium density residential, 
so staff is proposing it be changed to Commercial to meet the existing land use. The Court House 
and the Court House parking lot, which was labeled as mixed use and residential, respectively. 
Staff was proposing to change those areas to Public. The area surrounding the City Park. The old 
police station, the clinic, the VFW, Masonic Lodge, and the Girl Scout House were previously 
labeled as medium density residential. Staff is proposing those are changed to Public to meet the 
land use. The area adjacent to the Basque Clubhouse was proposed as Public as well. Across 1- 
80, the Senior Center was labeled as medium density residential and should be changed to 
Public. The large Industrial change, which was discussed at the last m . It is all UP 
property. From 15th Street to Union Pacific Way would be Industri 
Industrial from Union Pacific Way out to the end of City Limits. 
designation. 

***Motion: A esolutit No.1-18,  containing amendments to the Atlas Map #8 of the 
City of Elko Mas , recting that an attested copy of the forgoing parts, 
amendments, exten f and/or additions to the Elko City Master Plan be certified to the 
City Council; furthe irecting that an attested copy of this Commission's report on the 
proposed changes and additions shall have be filed with the City Council; and 
recommending to City Council to adopt said amendments by resolution. 

The Resolution includes the following changes to Atlas Map #8: 

• Does not change the designation of the area west of the interchange to a proposed 
industrial use 

• Changes North and west of Cattle Drive to Industrial Business Park from General 
Industrial 

March 6, 20 18  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 7 of 14 



• Changes East and South of Cattle Drive to Commercial Highway 
• Several Public parcels to Public 
• UP property from approximately 15th Street to Union Pacific Way to Industrial 

Business Park, Union Pacific Way to the City of Elko Boundary General Industrial 
• Developed parcel north of 1-80, south of Ruby Vista Drive and West of College 

Parkway to Commercial Highway 
• High Density Residential to Medium Density Residential in the vicinity of Dakota 

Drive and Copper Trail 

ND COMMUNICATIONS 

tion and possible approval of Final Plat No. 4- 
. d Mortgage, LLC, for the development of a subdivision 

ving the proposed division of approximately 33.804 
2 remainder parcels for residential development within 

ily R dential) Zoning District, and matters related thereto. 
CTI ON 

rty is located generally southeast of the terminus of Stitzel Road. 

B. 

Commissioner Hodur's findings to support its recommendation are the proposed 
amendment is consistent with the Land Use Component of the Ci lko Master Plan as 
follows: The proposed amendment meets Objective 6 of the M Pia . The proposed 
amendment is consistent with Best Practice 6.2 of the Maste The proposed 
amendment is consistent with the Transportation Compo ity of Elko Master 
Plan as the proposed land use designation is supported d proposed 
roadway infrastructure. The proposed amendment · ity of Elko 
Development Feasibility, Land Use, Water and S 
Potential Report by supporting recent City acti · 
shortfalls of designated Highway Commercial are 
designation is not in conflict with the City's Redevel 
designation is not in conflict with the ity's Wellhead 
designation in not located in a special hazard area. 

Scott MacRitchie, Jordanelle Third Mortgage, 3 1 2  Four Mile Trail, said he did not have a 
presentation. He wanted to thank Mr. Draper for the information he passed along from NDOT, so 
they could get started on the shared use path. 

Ms. Laughlin went through the City of Elko Staff Report dated February 27, 2018 .  Staff 
recommended conditional approval with the conditions listed in the Staff Report. 

Mr. Draper stated that the Development Department recommended approval of the Final Plat. He 
explained that the density of Unit I was 3.96 lots per acre. With medium density residential in 

March 6, 20 1 8  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 8 of 14 



s esented by staff. He stated that the verification of the 
e map was presented to the City Council. He also 

Com ission consider an additional condition that the 
ed, and the draft is submitted to the City Council in conjunction 

bea ·. · 

recomm 
Performanc 
with the Final 

the Master Plan, it is at 5 to 8 units per acre. There are two remainder parcels. Parcel A was 
included in an approved part of the Preliminary Plat. Parcel B is outside of the current water zone 
and therefore is not included with the Preliminary Plat and will be developed when water is 
available for that parcel. There are some plans for a Shared Use Path along Lamoille Highway. 
Even though this property has no direct access to Lamoille Highway, but it does have frontage 
along Lamoille Highway. Anytime there is frontage they are required to make the required 
improvements on the frontage. As was discussed several years ago with the developer, with the 
three units of development for the subdivision, the improvements along Lamoille Highway were 
broken up across the three units. For Phase 1 Unit 1 they are required to do an equivalent of 303 
lineal feet of improvements. The Shared Use Path was approved by th · Council. It is a 
pathway that will go from Pinion Road up to Errecart Boulevard, b set om the Highway, 
and provide pedestrian and bicycle access to the area. There is c no pedestrian access to 
the Hospital area. The idea is that it would eventually connec reek and tie into the 
shared use path that is out there. Mr. Draper explained tha e · his memo. He 
identified Stitzel Road as a Collector Roadway, when it · 1 red a re ial local roadway. 
The Master Plan identifies Stitzel as a Collector Roa y from Pinion Road Liberty. One 

Local ' adways are to ge pass 
t romotes traf ough to 

h this area aff feels that it 
plained that typically, anytime 
e of the frontage 

the action on 
ds was required for 

Modifications of Standards 
pment Department conditions. 

Tom Ballew, High ngineering, 640 Idaho Street, explained that Mr. Thibault's condition 
regarding the bearing · e had been corrected, along with the issues with the jurats. All of the 
errors had been taken care of and submitted to staff. 

Mr. MacRitchie said in the designation of Stitzel being a Residential Road verses a Collector 
Road. From what he understood, they were to going to keep the 60-foot right-of-way, but it 
would remain a Residential Road. That goes back to Type 1 curb verses rolled curb. They now 
have options with that. 

March 6, 2018  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 9 of 14 



Mr. Draper thought they had options with that. He said it also went to driveway spacing. Code 
requires Residential Local Roadways that the driveways can be spaced 10-feet apart, for a 
Collector Roadway, for residential access, it is 25-feet. 

***Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to conditionally approve Final Plat No. 
4 - 18  subject to the conditions in the City of Elko Staff Report dated February 27, 2 0 1 8  listed as 
follows: 

Development Department 
(See Memorandum from Development Manager Jeremy Draper dated 

1 .  The Developer shall execute a Performance Agreement in a 
44 of city code. The Performance Agreement shall be se 
3-3-44 of city code. In conformance with Section 3-3- of c 
improvements shall be completed within a time of o 
of Final Plat approval by the City Council unles 
developer shall enter into the Performance A 
final plat by City Council. 

2. The final plat is approved for 23 single-f 1 

3.  The Utility Department will issue a Will Serve 
4. State approval of the subdivision. 
5 .  Lot 122 shall have access restric 

6. 

7. 
8. 

vide the ppropriate contact information for the qualified 
ont acted to oversee the project along with the required 

produce an As-Built for submittal to the City of Elko. 
is to sure all materials meet the latest edition Standard 
Works. All Right-of-Way and utility improvements are to be 
of Record for the project. 

Planning Commission: 

1 .  The proposed Performance Agreement is to be submitted to the City Council in 
conjunction with the plat. 

Commissioner Hodur's findings to support his recommendation are the subdivision is in 
conformance with the Land Use and Transportation Components of the Master Plan. The 

March 6, 20 18  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 10 of 14 



subdivision is in conformance with 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts, 3-2-5(B) Single 
Family Zoning Districts, 3-2- 17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations, 3-3-6 Final 
Plat (Stage III), and 3-3-8 Information required for Final Plat Submission. The subdivision is in 
conformance with 3-3-20 General Provisions for Subdivision Design. The subdivision does not 
appear to be unsuitable for use by reason of flooding, concentrated runoff, inadequate drainage, 
adverse soil or rock formation, extreme topography, erosion susceptibility or similar conditions 
which are likely to prove harmful to the health and safety and general welfare of the community 
or the future property owners. The subdivision is in conformance with 3-3-21 Street Location 
and Arrangement, 3-3-22 Street Design, 3-3-23 Block Design, 3-3-24 Lot Planning as modified 
by the Development Agreement, 3-3-25 Easement Planning, 3-3-26 S Naming, 3-3-27 Street 
Lighting Design Standards, 3-3-40 Responsibility for lmprovemen -3- Engineering Plans, 
3-3-42 Construction and Inspection, and 3-3-43 Required Impro ts. The sub-divider shall 
enter into a performance agreement to address the conditions -44 Agreement to 
Install Improvements. The sub-divider shall provide a perf r e as stipulated in the 
performance agreement and 3-3-45 Performance Guara in conformance 
with 3-8 Floodplain Management. The Final Plat is i · inary Plat. 

2. 

developmen 
years, it would 
standards, or the 
follow. Staff is prop 

rtiation Zoning Ordinance Amendment. Staff 
s just recently that staff realized with an 

to contro e development standards of the property as it 
a it was stated previously was if it was an Industrial 

sign development standards of Light Industrial, which 
wer Commercial use, then they would be under the design 
mmercial Zoning District, which is a zero setback. In twenty 

r staff to know if a property was developed to the Commercial 
ial standards. It would have been hard for staff to enforce and 

the IC District that all required setbacks be 5-feet for all uses. 

Commissioner Beck excused himself a 

Moved by Kevin Hodur, Seconded by Stefan 

Mr. Draper, Mr. Thibault, and Mr. Holmes had no comments. 

Mr. Wilkinson recommended approval as presented by staff. 

***Motion: Initiate an amendment to Section 3-2-11 IBP, IC Industrial Districts, and 
direct staff to bring the item back as a public hearing. 

Moved by Kevin Hodur, Seconded by Tera Hooiman. 

March 6, 20 18  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 11  of 14 



"Motion passed unanimously. (5-0) 

3.  Election of officers, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

Pursuant to Section 3-4-3 A. of the City Code, the Planning Commission shall elect a 
Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson and Secretary in January every year. Staff 
overlooked the requirement for the agendas in January and February. 

ruary agendas. She 
d February, and she 

ad to be an 

the City Planner, but it's 

on, Vice-Chairperson, 
f e h position. 

istroffer as Chairman; a vote was taken 

eff Dailing as Vice-Chairman; a vote was taken and 

inated Tera Hooiman as Secretary; a vote was taken and 

Ms. Laughlin explained 
her to go over the ag 
up to the Chair, if t y ·. 

Vice-Chairman Freistroffer explained that they needed to elect a Chai 
and a Secretary. He asked Ms. Laughlin to explain the responsibilitj 

Vice-Chairman Freistroffer added that ther 
not required. 

Ms. Laughlin apologized for not getting the election on the J 
explained that staff was anticipating Mr. Martinez's resig ti 

was waiting for his resignation to hold the elections, be 
election after that anyways. Staff received Mr. Marti 
accepted it, therefor staff is now advertising fort 
include conducting all business at the meetings; 
meetings as needed. The Secretary is responsible for si 
Commission documents. Vice-Chairman conducts the mee 
and attends the Stage 1 Meetings if the 

*** 

***Chairman 

passed unanimo 

II. REPORTS 

A. Summary of City Council Actions. 

Ms. Laughlin reported on February J 3th City Council held the first reading for the 
Surebrec and Swire Annexation, both were approved. The second reading was held for 
the Marijuana Ordinance, which was approved. On February 27th the City Council 
approved the Annual Report. They also held the second readings for the Swire and 

March 6, 2018  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 12 of 14 



Surebrec Annexations, and those were approved. They accepted Aaron's resignation and 
authorized staff to advertise for the vacancy. They will also be presenting a plaque to 
Aaron this upcoming Tuesday. City Council also approved the rezone for Surebrec 
property, approved the rezone for Swire Coca-Cola, approved the rezone for MRP, and 
approved the rezone for Jason Land. 

B. Summary of Redevelopment Agency Actions. 

been anything on the Halfway house. 

ication with their attorney. When City Council 
e the process of determining how they could accommodate 

et with them on their options. Ms. Payne got some 
cations she would have to submit, and according to her 

unds available to hire the surveyor at this point, so they 
on the 180 Days. Staff has determined that they would have to 

complet new Conditional Use Permit. She was getting quite a few 
sperty, but those stopped after Cowboy Poetry. She hopes that the 

to work with the City and get the requirements met. 

Ms. Laughlin reported that the RDA authorized the City to move into Project No. 2 of the 
Downtown Corridor Project, and have allocated an addition 000 to the Storefront. 
The Storefront Grant Applications are due on March 30th. 

come 
complaint 
applicant co 

1 .  Zoning Bulletin 

D. Preliminary agendas for Planning Commis 

C. Professional articles, publications, etc. 

F. Planning Commissi 
and other items r 

Commissioner Dailing thought the Planning Commission should look at parking lots, and 
what constitutes a parking lot. 

Ms. Laughlin explained that Section 3-2-17 addresses a lot of that. 

Commissioner Dailing said there are a lot of parking lots in town that aren't parking 
lots. 

There was further discussion regarding parking lots. 

March 6, 20 18  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 13 of 14 



G. Staff. 

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC 

There were no public comments made at this time. 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned. 

David Freistroffer, Chairman 

March 6, 2 0 1 8  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 14 of 14 



Agenda Item # I.A. I 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1 .  Title: Review, consideration, and possible action on Conditional Use Permit No. 3- 
18, filed by Jason B. Land on behalf of Blaine Branscomb, which would allow for a 
professional office in a RO- Residential Office Zoning District, and matters related 
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: April 3, 2018 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS, PUBLIC HEARINGS 

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 

5. Background Information: The property was conditionally approved a rezone to RO 
Residential Office by City Council on February 27, 2018. A professional office is a 
conditionally permitted use in the RO zoning district. 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Memo from Development Director, 
Memo from City Planner 

8. Recommended Motion: Move to conditionally approve Conditional Use Permit 3-18 
with the following conditions: (listed in City Planner Memo) 

9. Findings: 
• The proposed conditional use under the conditionally approved Residential Office 

district is consistent with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan. The proposed 
conditional use permit is consistent with existing land uses in the immediate vicinity. 
The proposed conditional use permit meets Objectives 2 and 4 of the Land Use 
Component of the Master Plan. 

• The proposed conditional use is consistent with the Transportation Component of the 
Master Plan. The proposed use, intensity of use and limitations of intensity of use will 
not create any significant cumulative issues on the existing transportation system. 

• The proposed conditional use permit and repurposing the property and structure 
conforms to the Redevelopment Plan. 

• The proposed conditional use is consistent with City of Elko Wellhead Protection 
Plan. The proposed use of the property and allowed uses under the RO-Residential 
Office zoning district do not present a hazard to City wells. 

• The proposed use of the property requires a conditional use permit to conform to 
Section 3-2-3 of City code. 

• The proposed use based on conditional approval of Variance 1-18 conforms to Section 
3-2-4 of City code. 

' 

Created on 11/15/2016 

t  

Planning Commission Action Sheet 



Agenda Item # I.A.1 

• The proposed conditional use is in conformance with Section 3-2-5(F)(3) RO 
Residential Office based on conditional approval of variance 1-18 and conditional 
approval of rezone 9-18. The Planning Commission conditionally approved Variance 
1-18 on February 6, 2018. The City Council conditionally approved zone amendment 
9-18 on February 27, 2018. 

• The property as developed is in conformance with City Code 3-2-17 for the 
principal permitted use as a single family residence. Additional parking and ADA 
access is required for conformance under the proposed conditional use. 

• The parcel is not located within a designated Special Flood Hazard Area. 

• Development under the proposed conditional use will not adversely impact natural 
systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, floodplains 
etc. or pose a danger to human health and safety. 

• The proposed conditional use is consistent with surrounding land uses. 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

11. Agenda Distribution: Jason Land 

P.O. Box 281329 
Lamoille, NV 89828 

Created on 11/15/2016 Planning Commission Action Sheet 



STAFF COMMENT FLOW SHEET 

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA DATE: Y J O  
**Do not use pencil or red pen, they do not reproduce** 

Title: C ond r±ionol U()e )ewn i t  3- 1 0  

Applicant(s): :Ta.son Lond 

Site Location: CJ 1 0  Co1 )y'{, St - AT>JJ 00\ - '29)\ -00'.2 

Current Zoning] LPtvdirq1'Q) Date Received: 3/ui / 1 x:2  Date Public Notice: 3} '20/16 

COMMENT: =r:EJ 1 s  i s  -iD Q \ l o w  :U)r q VroG�ssiona.l Of-free 

UJ(Ah,n a D 30 @l'.liJ l2is1Y1ct 

**If additional space is needed please provide a separate memorandum** 

T Ji 

Init ial 

City Manager: Date:_�3-/J,;,���/�,��----------------- 

Initial 



City of Elko 

1751 College Avenue 
Elko, NV 89801 

(775) 777-7160 

FAX (775) 777-7119 

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT 

MEMO DATE: 

PLANNING COMMISSION DA TE: 
APPLICATION NUMBER: 

AGENDA ITEM: 
APPLICANT: 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 

March 12, 2018 

April 3, 2018 
CUP 3-18 

I.A.1 

Jason Land 

A conditional use permit for the development of a professional office within an (RO) 
Residential Office zoned property. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

RECOMMEND AP PROV AL, subject to facts, findings, and conditions. 

Page I of7 



C U P 3 - 1 8  

Jason Land 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

PARCEL NUMBER: 

PARCEL SIZE: 

EXISTING ZONING: 

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: 

EXISTING LAND USE: 

001-281-002 

.086 acres, 3, 750 sq. ft. 

(RO) Residential Office, conditionally approved by 
City Council on 2-27-2018 

(MU-DTWN) Mixed Use Downtown 

Currently developed as a single family dwelling 

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS: 

• The property is surrounded by: 

o North & Northeast: (R) Single and Multiple Family I Developed 
o Southeast: (RO) Residential Office I Developed 
o South: (C) Commercial I Developed 

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS: 

• The property is developed. 
• The property fronts Court Street. 
• Access to the property for parking is off the alley at the rear of the parcel. 

MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS: 

Applicable Master Plans and City Code Sections are: 

• City of Elko Master Plan - Land Use Component 
• City of Elko Master Plan - Transportation Component 
• City of Elko Redevelopment Plan 
• City of Wellhead Protection Plan 
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-3 General Provisions 
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts 
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-5(F) RO - Residential Office District 
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations 
• City of Elko Zoning- Section 3-2- 18  Conditional Use Permits 
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management 

BACKGROUND: 

1 .  The parcel is identified as APN 001-281-002. 
2. The applicant is not the property owner but has entered into an agreement to purchase the 

property. 
3 .  The property owner has filed written authorization with the City dated January 10, 2018 ,  

allowing the applicant to submit the application. 
4. There is an approved variance for the lot size, lot width and the interior side yard setback 

was conditionally approved by the Planning Commission on February 6, 20 18 ,  under 
variance application 1 - 1 8 .  The conditions for the variance will be addressed with re 
development of the property. 

5. There is a conditionally approved zone amendment from Residential to Residential 
Office approved by the City Council on February 27, 2018  under zone amendment 

Page 2 of7 



CUP 3 - 1 8  

Jason Land 

application 9 - 1 8 .  The conditions for the zone amendment have been satisfied pending 
satisfaction of the conditions stipulated for the variance application. 

6. The Conditional Use Permit application has been filed based on the conditional approval 
of zone amendment application 9 - 18 .  

7. The property is located approximately 90 feet east of the Court Street and 9th Street 
intersection. 

8. The area of the parcel is approximately 3,750 square feet. 
9. The parcel is approximately 37.50 feet in width. The parcel is smaller than the typical 50 

foot wide or larger lot encountered in this area of the community. 
10 .  The structure was built in approximately 1 9 1 0  and as the recent survey shows, the west 

wall of the principal structure is constructed on the property line. 
1 1 .  The property has been vacant since 2009. Any legal non-conforming uses are considered 

abandoned. 
1 2 .  The required off street parking for business uses does not exist on the property. The 

required off street parking for residential uses does exist on the property. The applicant 
intends on demolishing an existing garage structure and developing the required off street 
parking with the approval of a CUP for an office use. 

MASTER PLAN: 

Land use: 

1 .  The Master Plan Land Use Atlas shows a portion of the area as Mixed Use Downtown. 
2. Objective 2: Encourage revitalization and redevelopment of the downtown area to 

strengthen its role as the cultural center of the community 
3 .  Objective 4: Consider a mixed-use pattern of development for the downtown area, and 

for major centers and corridors, to ensure the area's adaptability, longevity, and overall 
sustainability. 

4. Downtown Mixed Use: This land use designation includes land uses that are located in or 
close to the historic downtown area. The area will capitalize on the existing fabric of the 
downtown and its walkable grid system. Mixed-use allows for a variety of land uses, and 
configurations. Housing or office use may be located within the same structure, with 
retail use primarily on the first floor. 

The proposed conditional use under the conditionally approved Residential Office district is 
consistent with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan. The proposed conditional use 
permit is consistent with existing land uses in the immediate vicinity. The proposed conditional 
use permit meets Objectives 2 and 4 of the Land Use Component of the Master Plan. 

Transportation: 

1 .  The property fronts Court Street. 
2. Parking will be established at the rear of the property off the alley. 

The proposed conditional use is consistent with the Transportation Component of the Master 
Plan. The proposed use, intensity of use and limitations of intensity of use will not create any 
significant cumulative issues on the existing transportation system. 

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN: 

1 .  The property is located within the redevelopment area. The proposed use supports several 
objectives in the redevelopment plan. The more important objective being repurposing of 
buildings and/or properties and thereby eliminating blight in the area and increasing 
economic activity in the area. 

Page 3 of7 



C U P J - 1 8  

Jason Land 

The proposed conditional use and repurposing the property and structure conforms to the 
Redevelopment Plan. 

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN: 

I .  The property is located within the 5 year capture zone for several City wells. 
2. Conformance with the Wellhead Protection Plan is required. 

The proposed use of the property and allowed uses under the RO- Residential Office zoning 
district do not present a hazard to City wells. 

SECTION 3-2-3 GENERAL PROVISIONS 

• Section 3-2-3 (C) 1 of City code specifies use restrictions. The following use restrictions 
shall apply. 

1 .  Principal Uses: Only those uses and groups of uses specifically designated as 
"principal uses permitted' in zoning district regulations shall be permitted as 
principal uses; all other uses shall be prohibited as principal uses 

2. Conditional Uses: Certain specified uses designated as "conditional uses 
permitted" may be permitted as principal uses subject to special conditions of 
location, design, construction, operation and maintenance hereinafter specified in 
this chapter or imposed by the planning commission or city council. 

3 .  Accessory Uses: Uses normally accessory and incidental to permitted principal or 
conditional uses may be permitted as hereinafter specified. 

Other uses may apply under certain conditions with application to the City. 

1 .  Section 3-2-3(C) states that certain specified uses designated as "conditional uses 
permitted" may be permitted as principal uses subject to special conditions of 
location, design, construction, operation and maintenance specified in Chapter 3 or 
imposed by the Planning Commission or City Council. 

2. Section 3-2-3(0) states that "No land may be used or structure erected where the land 
is held by the planning commission to be unsuitable for such use or structure by 
reason of flooding, concentrated runoff, inadequate drainage, adverse soil or rock 
formation, extreme topography, low bearing strength, erosion susceptibility, or any 
other features likely to be harmful to the health, safety and general welfare of the 
community. The planning commission, in applying the provisions of this section, 
shall state in writing the particular facts upon which its conclusions are based. The 
applicant shall have the right to present evidence contesting such determination to the 
city council if he or she so desires, whereupon the city council may affirm, modify or 
withdraw the determination of unsuitability." 

The proposed use of the property requires a conditional use permit to conform to Section 3-2-3 
of City code. 

SECTION 3-2-4 ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONING DISTRICTS: 

1 .  Section 3-2-4(8) Required Conformity To District Regulations: The regulations set forth 
in this chapter for each zoning district shall be minimum regulations and shall apply 
uniformly to each class or kind of structure or land, except as provided in this subsection. 

2. Section 3-2-4(8)(4) stipulates that no yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof 
shall be reduced in dimension or area below the minimum requirements set forth in this 
title. 

3 .  The minimum lot area required is 5,000 square for areas of the community platted with 

Page 4 of7 



C U P 3 - 1 8  

Jason Land 

50 foot wide lots. The parcel area does not meet either criteria stipulated for the lot area 
in Section 3-2-5 of city code. 

4. The required lot dimensions for the proposed district in this area of the community would 
be 50 feet in width by 100 feet in depth as stipulated in Section 3-2-5 of city code. 

5. The property is developed and the structure does not meet the setback requirements 
stipulated in Section 3-2-5 of city code. 

As a result of the above referenced non-conformance issues, the applicant has applied for and 
received a conditional approval for variances on the lot size, lot width and the interior side yard 
setback. Variance 1 - 1 8  was conditionally approved by the Planning Commission on February 6, 
20 18 .  

SECTION 3-2-5 (RO) RESIDENTIAL OFFICE: 

1 .  As noted in the evaluation under Section 3-2-4 the property does not conform to area, 
dimension and setback requirements stipulated for the zoning district. 

2. Variance 2 - 18  application has been approved by the Planning Commission to address the 
conformance deficiencies. 

The proposed conditional use is in conformance with Section 3-2-5(F)(3) RO- Residential Office 
based on conditional approval of variance 1 - 1 8  and conditional approval ofrezone 9 - 18 .  

SECTION 3-2-17 TRAFFIC, ACCESS, PARKING AND LOADING REGULATIONS: 

I .  Development of ADA off-street parking is required to conform with this section of code 
if the property is developed as a conditionally permitted use or more intense use than 
single family residence. 

The property as developed is in conformance with City Code 3-2- 17  for the principal permitted 
use as a single family residence. The applicant has committed to removal of the existing garage 
to develop ADA compliant off-street parking to be located at the rear of the property and 
ingress/egress from the alley way to support the proposed conditional use. 

SECTION 3-2-18 CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS: 

General Regulations: 

1 .  Certain uses of land within designated zoning districts shall be permitted as principal uses 
only upon issuance of a conditional use permit. Subject to the requirements of this 
chapter, other applicable chapters, and where applicable to additional standards 
established by the Planning Commission, or the City Council, a conditional use permit 
for such uses may be issued. 

2. Every conditional use permit issued, including a permit for a mobile home park, shall 
automatically lapse and be of no effect one ( 1 )  y e a r  from the date of its issue unless the 
permit holder is actively engaged in developing the specific property to the use for which 
the permit was issued. 

3 .  Every conditional use permit issued shall be personal to the permittee and applicable only 
to the specific use and to the specific property for which it is issued. However, the 
Planning Commission may approve the transfer of the conditional use permit to another 
owner. Upon issuance of an occupancy permit for the conditional use, signifying that all 
zoning and site development requirements imposed in connection with the permit have 
been satisfied, the conditional use permit shall thereafter be transferable and shall run 
with the land, whereupon the maintenance or special conditions imposed by the permit, 
as well as compliance with other provisions of the zoning district, shall be the 
responsibility of the property owner. 

Page 5 of7 

- - 1  



C U P 3 - 1 8  

Jason Land 

4. Conditional use permits shall be reviewed from time to time by City personnel. 
Conditional use permits may be formally reviewed by the Planning Commission. In the 
event that any or all of the conditions of the permit or this chapter are not adhered to, the 
conditional use permit will be subject to revocation. 

The applicant has conformed to this section of code with the filing of the application. 

SECTION 3-8 

The parcel is not located in a designated Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA). 

FINDINGS 

1 .  The proposed conditional use under the conditionally approved Residential Office district 
is consistent with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan. The proposed conditional 
use permit is consistent with existing land uses in the immediate vicinity. The proposed 
conditional use permit meets Objectives 2 and 4 of the Land Use Component of the 
Master Plan. 

2. The proposed conditional use is consistent with the Transportation Component of the 
Master Plan. The proposed use, intensity of use and limitations of intensity of use will not 
create any significant cumulative issues on the existing transportation system. 

3 .  The proposed conditional use permit and repurposing the property and structure conforms 
to the Redevelopment Plan. 

4. The proposed conditional use is consistent with City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan. 
The proposed use of the property and allowed uses under the RO-Residential Office 
zoning district do not present a hazard to City wells. 

5. The proposed use of the property requires a conditional use permit to conform to Section 
3-2-3 of City code. 

6. The proposed use based on conditional approval of Variance 1 - 1 8  conforms to Section 3- 
2-4 of City code. 

7. The proposed conditional use is in conformance with Section 3-2-5(F)(3) RO 
Residential Office based on conditional approval of variance 1 - 1 8  and conditional 
approval of rezone 9 - 1 8 .  The Planning Commission conditionally approved Variance 1 -  
1 8  on February 6, 20 18 .  The City Council conditionally approved zone amendment 9- 18  
on February 27, 20 18 .  

8. The property as developed is in conformance with City Code 3-2- 17  for the principal 
permitted use as a single family residence. Additional parking and ADA access is 
required for conformance under the proposed conditional use. 

9. The parcel is not located within a designated Special Flood Hazard Area. 

10 .  Development under the proposed conditional use will not adversely impact natural 
systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, floodplains etc. 
or pose a danger to human health and safety. 

1 1 .  The proposed conditional use is consistent with surrounding land uses. 

Page 6 of7 



CUP 3 - 1 8  

Jason Land 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends this item be conditionally approved with the following conditions: 

Planning Department: 

I .  CUP 3 - 1 8  shall automatically lapse and be of no effect one ( 1 )  year from the date of its 
issue unless the permit holder is actively engaged in developing the specific property to 
the use for which the permit was issued. 

2. The CUP 3 - 1 8  to be recorded with the Elko County Recorder within 90 days after the 
commencement of the work for the conversion from single family dwelling to 
professional office. 

3 .  The garage will be demolished to develop off-street parking. 

Development Department: 

1 .  The permit is granted to the applicant Jason Land for the use of a professional office. 

2. The permit shall be personal to the permittee and applicable only to the specific use and 
to the specific property for which it is issued. However, the Planning Commission may 
approve the transfer of the conditional use permit to another owner. Upon issuance of an 
occupancy permit for the conditional use, signifying that all zoning and site development 
requirements imposed in connection with the permit have been satisfied, the conditional 
use permit shall thereafter be transferable and shall run with the land, whereupon the 
maintenance or special conditions imposed by the permit, as well as compliance with 
other provisions of the zoning district, shall be the responsibility of the property owner. 

3 .  The conditions of Variance 1 - 1 8  be met prior to occupancy of the building. 

4. The conditions of Rezone 2- 18  be met prior to occupancy of the building. 

City Clerk: 

1 .  A  business license must be applied for and obtained prior to conducting business at this 
location. 

Building Department: 

1 .  Building Department conditions listed in Variance 1 - 1 8  be completed prior to occupancy. 

Page 7 of7 



City of Elko Development Department 
1755 College Avenue 

Elko, NV 89801 
(775) 777-7210 

FAX (775) 777-7219 

To: 
From: 
RE: 
Date: 

City of Elko Planning Department 
Jeremy Draper, PE - Development Manager 
Conditional Use Permit No. 3-18 ,  Jason Land, 9 1 0  Court Street 
March 9, 2018 

The City of Elko Development Department has provided this correspondence to aid in the 
Planning Commission's review of this Conditional Use Permit. Applicable Master Plan Sections, 
Coordinating Plans, and City Code Sections are: 

City of Elko Master Plan - Land Use Component 
City of Elko Master Plan - Transportation Component 
City of Elko Redevelopment Plan 
City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan 
City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-3 General Provisions 
City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-4 Zoning Districts 
City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-8 Public, Quasi-Public District 
City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations 
City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-18 Conditional Use Permits 
City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

1 .  The property is conditionally zoned Residential Office (RO), as conditioned by rezone 2- 
1 8  approved by the Planning Commission on February 6, 2018 .  

2. Section 3-2-5 (F)(3) of City Code requires a Conditional Use Permit for a professional 
office. 

3. The property is bounded by R-Single Family And Multiple Family Residential on the east 
and north, RO to the west, and C-General Commercial to the south. 

4. The Planning Commission approved Variance 1 - 1 8  at its meeting on February 6, 2018 ,  
reducing the lot size, the front yard width and the interior sideyard setback. 

5. The lot area is approximately 0.08 acres. 

MASTER PLAN 

Land Use: 

Page 1 of 4 
C:\Users\Sarchuleta\Downloads\CUP 3-18 Jason Land 910 Court (2).docx 



• The Land Use component of the Master Plan identifies this area as Downtown 
Mixed Use. 

• Objective 2-Encourage revitalization and redevelopment of the downtown area to 
strengthen its role as the cultural center of the community. 

• Objective 4-Consider a mixed-use pattern of development for the downtown 
area, and for major centers and corridors, to ensure the area's adaptability, 
longevity, and overall sustainability. 

• Objective 6-Encourage mult iple scales of commercial development to serve the 
needs of the region, the community, and individual neighborhoods. 

• Corresponding zoning districts for Downtown Mixed Use are C-General 
Commercial. 

Elko Wellhead Protection Plan 

• The property is located within the 5-year capture zone. 

• Conformance with the Wellhead Protection Plan is required. 

REDEVELOPMENT PLAN 

1 .  The property is within the Redevelopment Area. 

ZONING 

SECTION 3-2-3 GENERAL PROVISIONS 

1 .  Section 3-2-3(C) states that certain specified uses designated as "conditional uses 
permitted" may be permitted as principal uses subject to special conditions of location, 
design, construction, operation and maintenance specified in Chapter 3 or imposed by the 
Planning Commission or City Council. The applicant has filed for a conditional use permit 
under Section 3-2-8(0)(3), an expansion of use exceeding 1 ,000 square feet. Conditional 
use permits are issued under the provisions of Section 3-2-18 of the Zoning Ordinance. 

SECTION 3-2-4 ESTABLISHEMENT OF ZONING DISTRICTS 

Section 3-2-4(8) Required Conformity To District Regulations: The regulations set forth in this 
chapter for each zoning district shal l be min imum regulations and shall apply uniformly to each 
class or kind of structure or land, except as provided in this subsection: 

1 .  No bui lding, structure or land shall hereafter be used or occupied and no building or 
structure or part thereof shall hereafter be erected, constructed, moved, or 
structurally altered, unless in conformity with all regulations specified in this 
subsection for the district in which it is located. 

2. No bui lding or other structure shall hereafter be erected or altered: 
a. To exceed the heights required by the current city airport master plan; 
b. To accommodate or house a greater number of families than as permitted in 

this chapter; 

Page 2 of 4 



c. To occupy a greater percentage of lot area; or 
d. To have narrower or smaller rear yards, front yards, side yards or other open 

spaces, than required in this title; or in any other manner contrary to the 
provisions of this chapter. 

3. No part of a required yard, or other open space, or off street parking or loading 
space, provided in connection with any building or use, shall be included as part of a 
yard, open space, or off street parking or loading space similarly required for any 
other building. 

4. No yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof shall be reduced in dimension or 
area below the minimum requirements set forth in this title. 

With the approval of Variance 1 - 18 ,  this property is in conformance with this section. 

Section 3-2-5-F-Residential Office 

• Conformance with this section is required 
• Subsection 3 requires a Conditional Use Permit be issued for the use of the property as 

a professional office. 

With the approval of Variance 1 - 18 ,  this property is in conformance with this section. 

SECTION 3-2-17 TRAFFIC, ACCESS, PARKING AND LOADING REGULATIONS 

1 .  The site plan submitted indicates a total of 3 parking spaces will be provided, meeting 
the provisions of this section of code. 

SECTION 3-2-18 CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS 

1 .  Section 3-2-18(A)( 1 )  states "Certain uses of land within designated zoning districts shall 
be permitted as principal uses only upon issuance of a conditional use permit. Subject to 
the requirements of this chapter, other applicable chapters, and where applicable to 
additional standards established by the planning commission, or the city council, a 
conditional use permit for such uses may be issued." Based on this requirement and the 
requirements stipulated in Section 3-2-4(8), a variance will be required for the principal 
building setbacks. 

SECTION 3-8 FLOODPLAIN MANGEMENT 

1 .  The property is not located within a designated flood plain. 

RECOMMENDATION 

The City of Elko, Development Department recommends the conditional approval of Conditional 
Use Permit No. 3-18 based on the following condition( s ): 

1 .  The permit is granted to the applicant Jason Land for the use of a professional office. 

Page 3 of 4 



2. The permit shall be personal to the permittee and applicable only to the specific use and 
to the specific property for which it is issued. However, the Planning Commission may 
approve the transfer of the conditional use permit to another owner. Upon issuance of an 
occupancy permit for the conditional use, signifying that all zoning and site development 
requirements imposed in connection with the permit have been satisfied, the conditional 
use permit shal l thereafter be transferable and shall run with the land, whereupon the 
maintenance or special conditions imposed by the permit, as well as compliance with 
other provisions of the zoning district, shal l be the responsibil ity of the property owner. 

3. The conditions of Variance 1 - 1 8  be met prior to occupancy of the bui ld ing.  

4. The conditions of Rezone 2-18 be met prior to occupancy of the bui lding. 

Page 4 of 4 



RECEIVED 

MAR O 6 2018 

LOT 8 

FOUND MONUMENT 

COURT & 11 n-t STREETS 

FOUND 
5/8• REBAR 

I 

I 
I 

CONCRETE 

- C) 
p 

& 

/ADt\ �c.eS'.) Cu u. 
. I q �2-D 

I \, -v 11'\i\ ·S\j et8 v 
I 

CONCRETE 
I 

St-t\. u s oru, i�DA 
I 

(.; 

760.36' 

37.50' 

Ro-nv e�. 

-I 

I  
2- � :  

I  

HOUSE FENCE 

CURB & 

GUT1ER"'--.... 

LOT 10 

COURT STREET 

I WATER 
Z� VAL\.£ 

SIDEWALK 

l e,,  

S 41'58'12· W 
37.50' 
l?,) ti 1 11-- 2. o 'pccri1 n 

'Nit\!\ S i C- V' C-.  

LOT 11 

SHED 

HOUSE 

FOUND 
5/8• REBAR 

jK17n' CAP MARKED 
I PLS 6203 
I 
I 

ALLEY 

I 

I 
I  
I  
I  
I  
I 

I 
I  
I  
I 

I 
t 

I FOUND 
I 5/8" REBAR 
jK17n' CAP MARKED 

PLS 6203 

N 41·58'12· E 
'------ 

90.00' 

..... 

� 
� 
(/) �� 

i!: 
,, 

�o. 

� 
<:: LOT 12 

EXISnNG ZONING = R 
PROPOSED ZONING = RO 

FOUND MONUMENT 

COURT & 9TH STREETS 

SITE PLAN 
FOR 

JASON LAND 
LOT 10 & THE SOUTHWESTERLY 1/2 

OF LOT 9, BLOCK 7 

CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA 





0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

-<
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

"'O
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

z
 

�
 N

 
N

 
N

 
N

 
N

 
N

 
N

 
N

 
N

 
N

 
N

 
N

 
N

 
N

 
N

 
N

 
N

 
N

 
N

 
N

 
N

 
N

 
N

 
N

 
N

 
N

 
N

 
N

 
0

 
.i:,.

 
00

 
.i:,.

 
00

 
-...J

 
-...J

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
-...J

 
00

 
.i:,.

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
.i:,.

 
00

 
w

 
-...J

 
00

 
.i:,.

 
.i:,.

 
.i:,.

 
.i:,.

 
.i:,.

 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

N
 

w
 

w
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

N
 

.i:,.
 

w
 

.i:,.
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

.i:,.
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

O">
 

O">
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

I-'
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

I-'
 

0
 

I-'
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

I-'
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

w
 

w
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

0
 

\.0
 

.i:,.
 

0
 

I-'
 

.i:,.
 

u,
 

0
 

O">
 

I-'
 

N
 

w
 

w
 

00
 

\.0
 

00
 

-...J
 

.i:,.
 

w
 

-...J
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

.i:,.
 

u,
 

w
 

.i:,.
 

I-'
 

N
 

00
 

N
 

� --l
 

Vl
 

Vl
 

Vl
 

:,:,
 

"'O
 

"'O
 

z
 

$
 

$
 

r
 

r
 

r
 

r
 

;:,:::
 

I
 

G)
 

G)
 

m
 

n
 

c:o
 

c:o
 

c:o
 

c:o
 

)>
 

)>
 

"'O
 

m
 

I
 

--l
 

)>
 

)>
 

m
 

)>
 

m
 

0
 

0
 

)>
 

)>
 

c
 

r
 

I
 

c
 

r
 

r
 

m
 

I
 

G)
 

)>
 

r
 

)>
 

m
 

r
 

r
 

I
 

:,:,
 

G)
 

<
 

0
 

n
 

Vl
 

n
 

c
 

s:
 

z
 

r
 

r
 

r
 

;:,:::
 

)>
 

n
 

)>
 

)>
 

n
 

z
 

n
 

)>
 

n
 

r
 

c
 

c:o
 

0
 

c
 

c
 

I
 

c:o
 

"Tl
 

0
 

0
 

m
 

m
 

)>
 

z
 

--l
 

25
 

G)
 

N
 

Vl
 

0
 

;:,:::
 

n
 

n
 

7-
 

)>
 

0
 

:,:,
 

)>
 

c
 

)>
 

)>
 

z
 

.!'I
 

--l
 

0
 

:,:,
 

0
 

z
 

m
 

;:,:::
 

;:,:::
 

z
 

:,:,
 

m
 

c
 

7-
 

;:,:::
 

0
 

z
 

)>
 

m
 

I
 

"'O
 

I
 

,Vl
 

:,:,
 

)>
 

� z
 

$
 

$
 

Vl
 

- 
:,:,

 
$

 
r

 
z
 

z
 

G)
 

z
 

)>
 

m
 

c
 

"'O
 

0
 

,--l
 

Vl
 

m
 

--l
 

'--
 

r
 

z
 

r
 

� )>
 

� 
<
 

Vl
 

z
 

0
 

)>
 

:,:,
 

Vl
 

?J
 

)>
 

)>
 

)>
 

m
 

m
 

,--l
 

m
 

z
 

0
 

0
 

n
 

m
 

n
 

c:o
 

0
 

I 
c

 
m

 
c:o

 
0

 
m

 
z
 

)>
 

;:,:::
 

$
 

"'O
 

0
 

;:,:::
 

z
 

z
 

"Tl
 

Vl
 

Vl
 

:,:,
 

)>
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

)>
 

Vl
 

)>
 

m
 

r
 

--l
 

<
 

"'O
 

m
 

)>
 

)>
 

n
 

m
 

)>
 

0
 

--l
 

m
 

0
 

:,:,
 

z
 

m
 

m
 

0
 

0
 

--l
 

z
 

.r
 

"'O
 

c:o
 

m
 

z
 

c
 

"Tl
 

0
 

I
 

0
 

0
 

m
 

)>
 

I
 

:,:,
 

Vl
 

l>
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

z
 

z
 

:,:,
 

n
 

:,:,
 

:,:,
 

)>
 

$
 

;:,:::
 

'--
 

:,:,
 

0
 

r
 

� 
m

 

c:o
 

m
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

n
 

--l
 

)>
 

:::::!
 

r
 

m
 

--l
 

c
 

)>
 

)>
 

� l2C> :,:,
 

m
 

_;:,:::
 

m
 

r
 

-<
 

r
 

m
 

l2C>
 
»
 

0
 

"'O
 

c:o
 

:,:,
 

r
 

r
 

r
 

m
 

)>
 

<
 

<
 

m
 

Vl
 

:,:,
 

0
 

0
 

c
 

z
 

m
 

:,:,
 

m
 

n
 

l2C>
 

Vl
 

z
 

$
 

Vl
 

'--
 

$
 

r
 

--l
 

m
 

n
 

m
 

Vl
 

:,:,
 

--l
 

:,:,
 

:,:,
 

"'O
 

r
 

vi
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

)>
 

N
 

0
 

--l
 

r
 

--l
 

0
 

--l
 

;:,:::
 

--l
 

r
 

0
 

:,:,
 

ci
 

ci
 

n
 

m
 

Vl
 

:,:,
 

)>
 

m
 

r
 

--l
 

)>
 

m
 

z
 

l2C>
 

l2C>
 

)>
 

)>
 

}::
 

r
 

0
 

)>
 

)>
 

G)
 

)>
 

c
 

c
 

m
 

r
 

c
 

--l
 

Vl
 

n
 

0
 

--l
 

<
 

--l
 

Vl
 

z
 

r
 

r
 

--l
 

--l
 

)>
 

)>
 

)>
 

r
 

r
 

:,:,
 

r
 

l2C>
 

)>
 

6
 

--l
 

)>
 

m
 

m
 

n
 

--l
 

:,:,
 

:,:,
 

z
 

� 
0

 
.!'I

 
,N

 
)>

 
m

 
r

 
n

 
z
 

:,:,
 

m
 

c
 

r
 

n
 

r
 

m
 

n
 

)>
 

z
 

m
 

m
 

3
 

c
 

:;o
 

n
 

n
 

0
 

--l
 

--l
 

--l
 

0
 

m
 

--l
 

--l
 

'S 
m

 
0

 
0

 
:;o

 
)>

 
)>

 
)>

 
z
 

--l
 

)>
 

)>
 

z
 

I 
r

 
c
 

n
 

�Q
 

....
 

m
 

'--
 

z
 

z
 

m
 

2
. 

� 
0

 
Vl

 
Vl

 
IJ)

 --l
 

z
 

c
 
c

 

! 
)>

 
)>

 

-
 

m
 

m
 

r
 

"Tl
 

a.
 

i
 

r
 

r
 

p..
 

Q
 

e
 

-a
 

cY
 

[
 

� )> 
n

 
� 

"'O
 
n

 
--l

 
n

 
� 

"'O
 

-i:)
 

-
 

:;o
 
-
 :;o

 

-
 

$
 

......
 

0
 

0
 

0
 
c

 
0

 
�

 
r:,

 
r

 
� 

"'O
 

� Vl
 

)>
 

0
 

m
 

--l
 
z

 
0

 
"'O

 

e:
 

:;o
 

m
 

m
 

0
 

� 
"'O

 

� Vl
 

<
 

I-'
 

)>
 

� 
--l

 
)>

 
:;o

 
Vl

 
0

 
m

 
--l

 
)>

 
r

 
)>

 

cf>
 

r
 

--l
 

c:o
 

m
 

)>
 

"'O
 

Vl
 

z
 

)>
 

;:,:::
 

c
 

l2C>
 

r
 

\.0
 

I-'
 

\.0
 

I-'
 

00
 

00
 

N
 

-...J
 

O')
 

"'O
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

\.0
 

\.0
 

w
 

.i:,.
 

"'O
 

.i:,.
 

w
 

I-'
 

"'O
 

"'O
 

-...J
 

\.0
 

\.0
 

"'O
 

u,
 

\.0
 

"'O
 

0
 

00
 

0
 

0
 

w
 

w
 

O">
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

-...J
 

00
 

w
 

I-'
 

-...J
 

I-'
 

0
 

u,
 

u,
 

w
 

0
 

0
 

00
 

\.0
 

\.0
 

0
 

w
 

O">
 

$
 

I-'
 

0
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

-...J
 

-...J
 

w
 

0
 

w
 

0
 

w
 

0
 

\.0
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

w
 

N
 

.i:,.
 

-...J
 

-...J
 

0
 

u,
 

n
 

0
 
n

 
0

 
w

 
r

 
"'O

 
c:o

 
\.0

 
N

 
n

 
$

 
I-'

 
c:o

 
<

 
w

 
O">

 
c:o

 
c:o

 
"'O

 
n

 
n

 
c:o

 
z

 
n

 
)>

 

� 
0

 
G)

 
0

 
n

 
0

 
0

 
Vl

 
)>

 
0

 
'--

 
Vl

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
)>

 
:,:,

 
-...J

 
0

 
0

 
)>

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 

c
 

:,:,
 
c

 
0

 
)>

 
)>

 
"'O

 
Vl

 
z

 
x

 
)>

 
m

 
r

 
)>

 
0

 
--l

 
x

 
r

 
:;o

 
x

 
x

 
r

 
c

 
c

 
x

 
w

 
c

 
0

 

5B
 

I
 

I
 

m
 

--l
 

m
 

00
 
z

 
0

 
r

 
I

 
c

 
I

 
I-'

 
r

 
0

 
m

 
N

 
00

 
)>

 
I-'

 
0

 
N

 
:;o

 
Vl

 
:;o

 
c

 
0

 
0

 
)>

 
n

 
Vl

 
0

 
c

 
m

 
0

 
z

 
.i:,.

 
m

 
G)

 
m

 
O">

 
0

 
n

 
:;o

 
:;o

 
0

 
0

 
:,:,

 

--l
 

� --l
 

:;o
 

m
 

Vl
 

--l
 

--l
 

--l
 

--l
 

:;o
 

I
 

--l
 

-...J
 

0
 

G)
 

--l
 

--l
 

O">
 

-<
 

m
 

0
 

00
 

-...J
 

m
 

-...J
 

m
 

Vl
 

Vl
 

Vl
 

Vl
 

"'O
 

n
 

Vl
 

u,
 

n
 

00
 

Vl
 

Vl
 

Vl
 

0
 

--l
 

--l
 

)>
 

m
 

--l
 

)>
 

c:o
 

r
 

"'O
 

u,
 

--l
 

r
 

--l
 

Vl
 

0
 

z
 

--l
 
l>

 
)>

 
m

 
:,:,

 
m

 
;:,:::

 
--l

 
--l

 
--l

 

cY
 

--l
 

z
 

z
 

m
 

-<
 

0
 

z
 

n
 

0
 
<

 
Vl

 
� 

0
 

Vl
 

0
 

--l
 

m
 

:;o
 

m
 

n
 

--l
 

--l
 

-<
 

:,:,
 

0
 

:;o
 

=i 
0

 
0

 

c
 

:,:,
 

0
 

-<
 

:;o
 

:;o
 

z
 

c
 

I
 

C9
 

=i 
z

 
� 

I-'
 

=i 
-<

 

w
 

c
 

r-
 

z
 =i 

0
 

-...J
 

::s
 � 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

:,:,
 

m
 

m
 

n
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

I
 

Vl
 

m
 

"'O
 

m
 

n
 

Vl
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

Vl
 

m
 

"'O
 

r
 

r
 

r
 

r
 

r
 

r
 

m
 

r
 

r
 

)>
 

r
 

r
 

r
 

r
 

r
 

r
 

0
 

"'O
 

r
 

)>
 

r
 

)>
 

"'O
 

r
 

r
 

r
 

"'O
 

r
 

$
 

;:,:::
 

;:,:::
 

;:,:::
 

;:,:::
 

;:,:::
 

;:,:::
 
z

 
;:,:::

 
;:,:::

 
c

 
;:,:::

 
;:,:::

 
;:,:::

 
;:,:::

 
;:,:::

 
;:,:::

 
:;o

 
;:,:::

 
z

 
;:,:::

 
r

 
:;o

 
;:,:::

 
;:,:::

 
;:,:::

 
)>

 
;:,:::

 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

r
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 
n

 
0

 
m

 
r

 
z

 
0

 
m

 
z

 
z

 
--l

 
z

 
z

 
z

 
z

 
z

 
z

 
z

 
z

 
z

 
z

 
z

 
z

 
z

 
z

 
z

 
z

 
Vl

 
G)

 
z

 
:;o

 
z

 
z

 
G)

 
z

 
z

 
z

 
Vl

 
z

 
Vl

 

<
 
<

 
<

 
<

 
<

 
<

 
<

 
<

 
<

 
--l

 
<

 
<

 
<

 
<

 
<

 
<

 
--l

 
<

 
)>

 
<

 
--l

 
<

 
<

 
<

 
I

 
<

 
--l

 
m

 
m

 
n

 
$

 
m

 
n

 
:;o

 
:;o

 
:;o

 
"Tl

 

z
 

n
 

m
 

)>
 

z
 

m
 

0
 

<
 

)>
 

m
 

n
 

<
 

m
 

:;o
 

;:,:::
 

;:,:::
 

;:,:::
 

z
 

=i 
z

 
c

 

<
 

-<
 

<
 

--l
 

n
 

)>
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

\.0
 

00
 

00
 

\.0
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

"'O
 

\.0
 

\.0
 

\.0
 

\.0
 

\.0
 

\.0
 

\.0
 

\.0
 

\.0
 

\.0
 

\.0
 

\.0
 

\.0
 

\.0
 

\.0
 

\.0
 

u,
 

\.0
 

\.0
 

I-'
 

\.0
 

\.0
 

\.0
 

\.0
 

\.0
 

\.0
 

.i:,.
 

\.0
 

r:::::!
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

u,
 

00
 

00
 

0
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

0
 

00
 

00
 

.i:,.
 

00
 

0
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

O">
 

00
 

"'O
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

N
 

I-'
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

I-'
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

O">
 

0
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

\.0
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

00
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

I-'
 
f>

 
u,

 
I-'

 
N

 
w

 
00

 
u,

 
I-'

 
I-'

 
w

 
<?

 
I-'

 
I

 
'

 
w

 
'

 
w

 
w

 
'
 

'
 

'
 

'
 

'
 

'
 

'
 

'
 

\!)
 
w

 
Ln

 
'

 
J,.

 
N

 
6

 
..'..J

 
'
 

I
 

'
 

'
 

w
 

I-'
 

w
 

-...J
 

00
 

w
 

0
 

-...J
 

I-'
 

w
 

w
 

I-'
 

N
 

w
 

w
 

I-'
 

I-'
 

w
 

\.0
 

O">
 

\.0
 

\.0
 

00
 

00
 

0
 

-...J
 

u,
 

00
 

\.0
 

O">
 

.i:,.
 

\.0
 

u,
 

\.0
 

.i:,.
 

-...J
 

.i:,.
 

0
 

O">
 

00
 

.i:,.
 

\.0
 

\.0
 

0
 

u,
 

\.0
 

..,.
 N

 
.i:,.

 
.i:,.

 
N

 
N

 
N

 
.i:,.

 
.i:,.

 
0

 
I-'

 
I-'

 
N

 
I-'

 
I-'

 
0

 
O">

 
w

 
u,

 
I-'

 
00

 
0

 
w

 
.i:,.

 
.i:,.

 
-...J

 
w

 
.i:,.

 
N

 
u,

 
N

 
u,

 
u,

 
u,

 
\.0

 
-...J

 
w

 
-...J

 
0

 
N

 
0

 
00

 
O">

 
w

 
u,

 
w

 
w

 
\.0

 
00

 
-...J

 
00

 
N

 
N

 
u,

 
0

 
N

 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Elko City 
Planning Commission will conduct a series of public 
hearings on Tuesday, April 3 ,  20 1 8  beginning at 5 : 30  
P.M. P.D.S.T. at Elko City Hall, 1 7 5 1  College Avenue, 
Elko, Nevada, and that the public is invited to provide 
input and testimony on these matters under 
consideration in person, by writing, or by 
representative. 

The specific item to be considered under public hearing 
format is :  

Conditional Use Permit No. 3-18, filed by 
Jason B. Land on behalf on Blaine 
Branscomb, which would allow for a 
professional office within an RO (Residential 
Office) Zoning District, and matters related 
thereto. The subject property is located 
generally on the south side of Court Street, 
approximately 50 feet east of 9th Street (910 
Court Street, APN 001-281-002). 

Additional information concerning this item may be 
obtained by contacting the Elko City Planning 
Department at (775) 777-7160. 

ELKO CITY PLANNING COMMISSION 



CITY OF ELKO PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

1751 College Avenue * E lko*  Nevada* 89801 

(775) 777-7160 phone* (775) 777-7219 fax 

APPLICATION FOR CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPROVAL 

FILING REQUIREMENTS 

Complete Application Form: I n  order to begin processing the a p p l i c a t i o n ,  an a p p l i c a t i o n  form 
must be complete and s i g n e d .  Complete a p p l i c a t i o n s  are d u e  at least 2 1  days prior to the next 
s c h e d u l e d  meeting of the Elko City P l a n n i n g  C o m m i s s i o n  ( m e e t i n g s  are the 1 s t  Tuesday of 
every m o n t h ) .  

Fee: A $ 7 5 0 . 0 0  non-refundable fee. 

Plot Plan: A  plot p l a n  provided by a properly licensed surveyor d e p i c t i n g  the proposed 
c o n d i t i o n a l  use permit site drawn to scale showing property l i n e s ,  existing and proposed 
b u i l d i n g s ,  b u i l d i n g  setbacks, distances between b u i l d i n g s ,  parking and l o a d i n g  areas, driveways 
and other pertinent information that shows t h e  use will  be c o m p l i a n t  with Elko City C o d e .  

Elevation Plan: Elevation profiles i n c l u d i n g  architectural finishes of a l l  proposed structures or 
alterations in sufficient detail to explain the nature of the request. 

Note: One . p d f  of the entire application must be submitted as well as one set of l e g i b l e ,  
reproducible p l a n s  8  �"  x  1 1 "  in size. If the a p p l i c a n t  feels the C o m m i s s i o n  needs to see 24" x 
36" p l a n s ,  1 0  sets of pre-folded p l a n s  must be s u b m i tt e d .  

Other Information: The a p p l i c a n t  is encouraged to s u b m i t  other information and 
documentation to s u p p o rt  t h i s  conditional use permit a p p l i c a t i o n .  

Revised 1 2 / 0 4 / 1 5  

RECEIVED 

MAR O 6 2018 Page 1 



1 . Current zoning of the property: 

2 .  Cite the provision of the Zoning Ordinance for which the Conditional Use Permit is required: 
1� f 

3. Explain in detail the type and nature of the use proposed on the property: _ 

3- 'I...J0 cr0 \ 6 ·J , A, \-+ v-J , '\- Y" 5 c...e, Y' c-lv (.,. <-\ M "i Q (2. .t:i C '-h C ::t 

A� --\ w_ A- ;:v r-e rv\ z :<\::\ 1 o .... ->' R. 6 1 o L./¥4 -t. ·0-) , /\'AJ 

4. 

5. Describe any unique features or characteristics, e .g.  lot configuration, storm drainage, soil 
conditions, erosion susceptibility, or general topography, which may affect the use of the 
property: � o � 

6. Describe the general suitability and adequacy of the property to accommodate the 
proposeduse: '°'-� l__\2-e Q_ .f\ o 0  Y\.  r::,_  d -t  

0  .r::  --t  

u1  o  I  .J  t0-:ec 

Revised 12/04/15 Page 2 



tY'Z A- v\ &\-< - 

7. Describe in detail the proposed development in terms of grading, excavation, terracing, 
drainage, etc.: A S  ,  0  v  \  1

1  

i;  0,_,r"- Qj.J \ :2 � ,  $. o\..WZ/Y2-'r ;v� .t 
:2 <f- c: ' ,..:i -0. � £.-: f--<2.-0 M -{\ ..Q/vv � A- Q \0 µ5 � --e, 

8. Describe the amounts and type of traffic likely to be generated by the proposed use: _ 
.:1 U>Acl 0 C:-\ M O °'). {, Q> "J tJ\ \o v 1 -(\.J._,f.; b 

9. Describe the means and adequacy of off-street parking, loading and unloading provided on 
the property: u0 w \. 6 C-0 m -, v0 \ -� · A (2._ \L,' ,_) o 

e. -...) \' � .e_ fV\ -t. -(\ + \L- Ll" + __ .,___;:'-"1-=-----'-.::.__--=-..:::::....!..-'-'--"----+'---�'----=.;_.1....1....-""'-----=-.:.......!.."'""4------><::C-=..::.....::..::::....__,___....__,_4. 

1 1 .  Identify any outside storage of goods, materials or equipment on the property: _ 
,_J O 

1 2 .  Identify any accessory buildings or structures associated with the proposed use on the 
property: CJ 

(Use additional pages if necessary to address questions 3 through 12) 

Revised 12/04/15 Page 3 



By My Signature below: 
0 I  consent to having the City of Elko Staff enter on my property for the sole purpose of 
inspection of said property as part of this a p p l i c a t i o n  process. 

D I object to having the City of Elko Staff enter onto my property as a p a rt  of t h e i r  review of 
this a p p l i c a t i o n .  (Your objection will not affect the recommendation made by the staff or the final determination 
mjde by the City Planning Commission or the City Council .) 

El I  acknowledge that s u b m i s s i o n  of t h i s  a p p l i c a t i o n  does not i m p l y  approval of this request by 
the City P l a n n i n g  Department, the City P l a n n i n g  C o m m i s s i o n  and the City C o u n c i l ,  nor does it i n  
and of itself guarantee issuance of any other required permits and/or l i c e n s e s .  
I 

0 I  acknowledge that t h i s  a p p l i c a t i o n  m a y  be tabled until  a later m e e t i n g  if either I or my 
designated representative or agent is not present at the meeting for which this application is 
s c h e d u l e d .  

I 

O I  have carefully read and completed a l l  questions contained within t h i s  a p p l i c a t i o n  to the 
best of my a b i l i t y .  

Applicant I Agent J_· _tl_�_0_1---.J_1 _,_"!5_._(�A_....j_d_. _ 
(Please print or type) 

P. ,· . , _  Rc1x c2 ° 1 3 :?  0 Mail ing Address LJ __ -=___,,=-.c........,.._....,__ () �__,__�J_....__ _ 

Street Address or P . O .  Box 
I_ Y-1 !VI G  r  I  ( -e  tJ  J  �c; z{J � 

City, State, Z i p  Code 

P h o n e  N u m b e r :  __ ( �1�7-�_.,,+-J _3_Lf�· 0=--��(�)0_0�, �o<.- 

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 
File No. :  3- IB  Date Filed: 3/ t g / 1 9 2  Fee Pa id :�  iF{) ct.:t:r lf'\21 

Revised 12/04/15 Page 4 



R.ECEI ,, » �J ) 

M A R O  6  ;  

Per City of Elko Conditional Use Permit Approval. 

Parking Requirements as per Elko City Code 3-2-17. The bu i ld ing is 900 S.F total, of which 714 

S.F .  is useable office space. If I add an addit ional  156 S .F .  to the bui ld ing it would yield a useable 

space of 870 S.F .  which requires 2.9 parking spaces. See attached site p lan .  



City of Elko Planning Department 

1751 College Avenue 

Elko, NV 89801 

Dear Sir or Madam, 

RECEIVED 

MAR O 7 20 1 8  

CuP 3-lx, 

I  am the owner of 910 Court Street, Elko NV 89801. I approve and consent to Jason Land 

applying for the condit ional use permit on the aforementioned property. My mai l ing address is 

101 Court Street, Elko NV 89801. Furthermore, I can be reached at (775) 934-1150. 



Agenda Item #1.A.2 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Review, consideration and possible action of Rezone No. 1-18, filed by the City of 
Elko, for a change in zoning from R (Single Family and Multiple Family 
Residential) to PQP (Public, Quasi-Public), approximately 1.314 acres of property 
located northwest of the intersection of College Avenue and Golf Course Road, FOR 
POSSIBLE ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: April 3, 2018 

3.  Agenda Category: PUBLIC HEARINGS, 

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 

5. Background Information: Planning Commission initiated this rezone at their January 
4, 2018 meeting. 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Memo from Development Director, 
Memo from City Planner 

8. Recommended Motion: Move to approve the location of the existing accessory 

structure as shown on the site plan and forward a recommendation to City Council 
to adopt a resolution which conditionally approves Rezone No. 1-18 

9. Findings: 

• The proposed variance is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the 
Master Plan. 

• The proposed variance is in conformance with the Transportation Component of 
the Master Plan. 

• The property is not located within the redevelopment area and consideration of 
the plan is not required. 

• The proposed zone district and allowed uses do not present a hazard to City wells 
and is therefore in conformance with the city wellhead protection plan. 

• There is not a minimum lot area nor dimensions stipulated for the proposed zone 
district. The location of the accessory structure requires specific approval by the 
Planning Commission for the property to be in conformance with City Code 3-2-4 

(B). 

Created on 12/ 15/2016 Planning Commission Action Sheet 



Agenda Item #1.A.2 

• With Planning Commission approval of the existing accessory structure location, 
as shown on the site plan, the proposed rezone is in conformance with Section 3-2- 
8 of city code. 

• The current use of the property under the proposed district is in conformance 
with Section 3-2-17 of city code. 

• The proposed rezone is consistent with surrounding land uses. 

• Development under the proposed rezone will not adversely impact natural 
systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, 
floodplains etc. or pose a danger to human health and safety. 

• The parcel is not located within a designated Special Flood Hazard Area. 

10 .  Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

11.  Agenda Distribution: 

Created on 12/15/2016 Planning Commission Action Sheet 



STAFF COMMENT FLOW SHEET 

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA DATE: '-J /3 **Do not use pencil or red pen, they do not reproduce** 
Tit le :�f.':t:Ooe_ \ - 1 9  

Applicant(s) � � �;\'.O Site L o c a t i o n : \  Ave_ - A'PtJ COi - 200-WZ 

Current Zoning: � Date Received: ) '2 It 1./ff/. Date Public Notice: 0)2.D/ J ?)  

COMMENT �t is;� �:rt::�, :t� -tn To� 
"11) Q 1 1  ow V1 Cov r. b ovKS . 

**If additional space is needed please provide a separate memorandum** 

Initial 
Ci� �anager: Date:������������/����������������� 

NO Lo t,MIIVI.M\.--t-5 / Co vi c..ci rvt. � . 
J 

Initial 



City of Elko 
1751 College Avenue 

Elko, NV 89801 
(775) 777-7160 

FAX (775) 777-7119 

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT 

MEMO DATE: 

PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: 
APPLICATION NUMBER: 
APPLICANT: 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 

March 13, 2018 
April 3, 2018 
REZONE 1-18 
City of Elko 

A rezone from (R) Single Family and Multiple Family Residential to (PQP) Public, Quasi 
Public initiated by the City of Elko Planning Commission. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

RECOMMEND APPROVAL, subject to facts, findings and conditions. 

Page I of5 



REZONE 1 - 1 8  

City of Elko 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

PARCEL NUMBER: 

PARCEL SIZE: 

EXISTING ZONING: 

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: 

EXISTING LAND USE: 

BACKGROUND: 

001-200-002 

1 . 3 1 4  acres 

(R) Single Family and Multiple Family Residential 

(PUBLIC) Public 

Developed land, previously Elko Police Department 
which was demolished. An accessory building and 
parking area are still exiting on the property. 

1 .  Planning Commission made a motion at their January 4, 20 18  meeting to amend the 
district boundaries and therefore the City of Elko is the applicant for the rezone. 

2. The surrounding area is developed with public land use although many parcels are zoned 
Residential. 

3 .  The property was previously developed with a principal structure utilized as the City's 
Police Department and related accessory structures. The principal structure has been 
demolished. The accessory structure has been leased to the local VFW. 

4. The property has developed parking areas. 
5. The property is accessed off Golf Course Road and VFW Drive. 

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS: 

• The property is surrounded by: 

o Northeast: Developed as City of Elko Swimming Pool 
o Northwest: Developed as Elko Family Medical and Clinic 
o East: Developed as City of Elko Park 
o Southwest: Developed as VFW Hall 

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS: 

• The property is developed. 
• The property can be accessed from Golf Course Rd, College Ave. or VFW Drive 

MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODES: 

Applicable Master Plans and City Code Sections are: 

• City of Elko Master Plan - Land Use Component 
• City of Elko Master Plan - Transportation Component 
• City of Wellhead Protection Plan 
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts 
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-8 PQP Public, Quasi-Public District 

Page 2 of5 



REZONE 1 - 1 8  

City of Elko 

• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2- 17  Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations 
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-21 Amendments 
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management 

MASTER PLAN - Land use: 

1 .  The Master Plan Land Use Atlas shows the area as Public. This parcel was part of the 
Master Plan Amendment Resolution 1 0 - 1 8 .  

2. PQP is listed as a corresponding district for the Public land use designation. 
3 .  Objective 3 :  Strengthen, preserve, and promote the area around the City Park, City Hall, 

and Convention Center as the civic heart of the community. 
4. This parcel would be identified in the Master Plan as intended to meet the goals of 

Objective 3 .  

The proposed variance is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan. 

MASTER PLAN - Transportation: 

1 .  The area can be accessed from Golf Course Rd, College Ave. or VFW Drive. 

The proposed variance is in conformance with the Transportation Component of the Master Plan. 

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN: 

The property is not located within the redevelopment area and consideration of the plan is not 
required. 

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN: 

1 .  The property is located within the 2 year capture zone for City wells. 

The proposed zone district and allowed uses do not present a hazard to City wells and is 
therefore in conformance with the city wellhead protection plan. 

SECTION 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts: 

l .  Section 3-2-4(B) Required Conformity To District Regulations: The regulations set forth 
in this chapter for each zoning district shall be minimum regulations and shall apply 
uniformly to each class or kind of structure or land, except as provided in this subsection. 

• No building, structure or land shall hereafter be used or occupied and no building 
or structure or part thereof shall hereafter be erected, constructed, moved, or 
structurally altered, unless in conformity with all regulations specified in this 
subsection for the district in which it is located. 

• No building or other structure shall hereafter be erected or altered: 
a. To exceed the heights required by the current City Airport Master Plan; 
b. To accommodate or house a greater number of families than as permitted in 

this chapter; 
c. To occupy a greater percentage of lot area; or 
d. To have narrower or smaller rear yards, front yards, side yards or other open 

spaces, than required in this title; or in any other manner contrary to the 
provisions of this chapter. 

Page 3 of 5 



REZONE 1 - 1 8  
City of Elko 

• No part of a required yard, or other open space, or off street parking or loading 
space, provided in connection with any building or use, shall be included as part 
of a yard, open space, or off street parking or loading space similarly required for 
any other building. 

• No yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof shall be reduced in dimension 
or area below the minimum requirements set forth in this title. 

There is not a minimum lot area nor dimensions stipulated for the proposed zone district. The 
location of the accessory structure requires specific approval by the Planning Commission for the 
property to be in conformance with City Code 3-2-4 (8). 

SECTION 3-2-8 POP- Public- Quasi-Public District: 

1 .  There is no minimum lot area or dimensions stipulated for this section of code 
2. The accessory building location requires approval by the Planning Commission under 

Section 3-2-8(E)(2): Accessory buildings, whether attached or detached, shall be located 
in accordance with location on the lot as approved by the planning commission. 

3 .  The height of the accessory structure meets the requirements stipulated in code. 

With Planning Commission approval of the existing accessory structure location, as shown on 
the site plan, the proposed rezone is in conformance with Section 3-2-8 of city code. 

SECTION 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations: 

1 .  The property has developed parking and access sufficient for the accessory structure use. 

The current use of the property under the proposed district is in conformance with Section 3-2- 17  
of city code. 

SECTION 3-2-21 Amendments: 

1 .  The applicant has conformed to this section of code with the filing of the application. 

SECTION 3-8 

1 .  This parcel is not designated in a Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA). 

FINDINGS 

1 .  The proposed variance is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master 
Plan. 

2. The proposed variance is in conformance with the Transportation Component of the 
Master Plan. 

3 .  The property is not located within the redevelopment area and consideration of the plan is 
not required. 

Page 4 of 5 



REZONE 1 - 1 8  

City of Elko 

4. The proposed zone district and allowed uses do not present a hazard to City wells and is 
therefore in conformance with the city wellhead protection plan. 

5 .  There is not a minimum lot area nor dimensions stipulated for the proposed zone district. 
The location of the accessory structure requires specific approval by the Planning 
Commission for the property to be in conformance with City Code 3-2-4 (B). 

6. With Planning Commission approval of the existing accessory structure location, as 
shown on the site plan, the proposed rezone is in conformance with Section 3-2-8 of city 
code. 

7. The current use of the property under the proposed district is m conformance with 
Section 3-2- 17  of city code. 

8. The proposed rezone is consistent with surrounding land uses. 

9. Development under the proposed rezone will not adversely impact natural systems, or 
public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, floodplains etc. or pose a 
danger to human health and safety. 

I 0. The parcel is not located within a designated Special Flood Hazard Area. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends this item be conditionally approved with the following conditions: 

Planning Department: 

1 .  The location of the remairung accessory structure is approved by the Planning 
Commission under Section 3-2-8 (E)(2) as shown on the site plan included with the 
application. The approval is included in the motion of the Planning Commission. 

Page 5 of 5 



CITY OF ELKO 

DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
1755 COLLEGE AVENUE 

ELKO, NEVADA 89801 
(775)777-7210 

(775)777-7219 FAX 

To: Elko City Planning Commission 
From: Jeremy Draper, Development Manager 
RE: Rezone 1 - 1 8 ,  Elko City, 1401  College Ave 
Date: March 13 ,  2018 

The City of Elko Development Department is providing this correspondence to aid the 
Planning Commission's review of Rezone Application 1 - 1 8 .  

Project Information 

• The property is located generally at the intersection of Golf Course Road and 
College Ave 

• The property is identified as a portion of APN 001-200-002. 
• The parcel is currently partially developed. 

• The parcel is currently zoned R-Single Family and Multiple Family Residential. 
• The proposed rezone would result in a rezone of proposed parcel 1 being 1 . 3 1 4  

acres of POP-Public Quasi Public. 

C:\Users\Sarchuleta\Downloads\Rez 1 - 1 8  Elko City 1401 College Ave (2).docx 
Created by Jeremy Draper 



Page 2 of 3 

• The property is bound by R, to the north and west, and POP to the south and 
east. 

• The property is not located within a FEMA Floodzone. 

• The property is the location of the former Elko Police Station, a small accessory 
shop remains on the property and a parking lot remains. 

Master Plan 

Land Use: 

• The Land Use component of the Master Plan identifies this area as Public. 

• This area is identified in the Master Plan under Objective 3 to Strengthen, 
preserve, and promote the area around the City Park, City Hal l ,  and Convention 
Center as the civic heart of the community. 

• The property was the location of the former Elko Police Station. 

• Corresponding zoning districts for Public/Quasi-Public are: POP-Public, Quasi 
Public. 

Elko Wellhead Protection Plan 

• The property is located within the 2-year capture zone. 

• Conformance with the Wellhead Protection Plan is required. 

Section 3-2-4-Establishment of Zoning Districts 

• Conformance with this section is required 

Section 3-2-8- (PQP) Public, Quasi-Public District 

• Conformance with this section is required, a site plan review of the existing 
accessory structure should be conducted by the Planning Commission. 

Section 3-2-17-Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations 

• Conformance with this section is required 

Section 3-2-21-Amendments 

• Conformance with this section is required 

Findings 

1 .  The proposed rezone does not appear to frustrate the Master Plan's goals and 
policies. 



Page 3 of 3 

2. The rezone of this property helps to meet Objective 3 of the Land Use 
Component of the Master Plan, preserving the Civic Center of the City. 

3. The proposed rezone is in conformance with City Code 3-2-4-B and C 
4. The proposed rezone is in conformance with City Code 3-2-17 
5. The proposed rezone is in conformance with City Code 3-2--8 
6.  The proposed rezone is in conformance with the City of Elko Wellhead Protection 

Plan. 
7. Development under the proposed rezone will not adversely impact natural 

systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, 
floodplains etc. or pose a danger to human health and safety. 

Recommendation 

The City of Elko Development Department recommends that the proposed zone 
changes be approved. 



LEGAL DESCRIPTION TO ACCOMPANY A ZONE CHANGE 

A parcel within the southeast quarter of Section 10, and the southwest quarter of Section 11, Township 

34 North, Range 55 East, M .D .B .&M. ,  which is further described as fol lows: 

Beginning at a point at the intersection of the northwesterly right-of-way of College Avenue and the 

southwesterly right-of-way of Golf Course Road, that bears North 1 °18'56" East, a distance of 804.85 

feet from the centerl ine monument at the intersection of Court Street and 13th Street as shown on the 

map of the Smith's Addition to the City of Elko, recorded in the office of the Elko County Recorder as file 

no .  43255, on November 5, 1927; 

Thence, North 48°11'00" West, a long the right-of-way of Golf Course Road a distance of 264.70 feet; 

Thence, South 14°49'00" West, a distance of 202.00 feet; 

Thence along a tangent circular curve to the left, with a radius of 14.70 feet, a central angle of 

90°00'00", and an arc length of 23.09 feet, to a point a long the northeasterly right-of-way of VFW Drive; 

Thence, South 48°11'00" East along said northeasterly right-of-way of VFW Drive, a distance of 235.30 

feet; 

Thence, along a tangent circular curve to the left, with a radius of 14.70 feet, a central angle of 

90°00'00", and an arc length of 23.09 feet, to a point a long the northwesterly right-of-way of College 

Avenue; 

Thence, North 41 °49'00" East a long said northwesterly right-of-way of College Avenue, a distance of 

202.00 feet more or less, to the point of beginning. 

This parcel contains a total of ±1.314 acres. 

The basis of bearings for this description is the map of the Smith's Addit ion to the City of Elko, recorded 

in the office of the Elko County Recorder as file no. 43255, on November 5, 1927. 

Description prepared by: 

Robert Thibault, PE, PLS 

City of Elko 

Civil Engineer 

Initial. --··-·----·---. 



L=23 .09 ' ,  R= 1 4 .  70'  
6=90"00'00" 

� 'ir, 
y, I  OC? 
CX)  v 
� 0 

�  I  co 

I  
I  
I  
I  
I  
I  

[ENTERLINE 
I N T E R S E C T I O N  O F  
C O U R T  S T R E ET  
A N D  1 3 T H  STREET 

1 2 0 '  

A 
I  

N 

T 

60' 0 

- 2 3 . 0 9 ' ,  R= 1 4 . 7 0 '  
6=90'00'00" 

AREA TO BE C H A N G E D  
.,...----....._  .  F R O M  R  TO P O P  .  ,.....---....._  

,  �  1 . 3 1 4  A C R E S  �  '  
A P N :  0 0 1 - 2 0 0 - 0 0 2  

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

..  .  �  '• 

,i. i 11 t J. �1 :. - -- .... ·---------. -·- .. 

DATE 

DRAWN BY 

BT 

CHECKED BY 

BT 

12/6/201 

DISPLAY MAP FOR 

ZONE CHANGE 

APN: 0 0 1 - 2 0 0 - 0 0 2  

�  SCALE 
* CITY OF ELKO 

1751 COLLEGE AVE H O R Z 1  " - C: f"\  
_.,  ELKO. NEVAOA 89801 � 
� '  775-777-7210 

V E R T �  



I I APN: 001-200-004 
r.:=:;;;;;;:;:.:;;;.:;;:=:=M=E�D�IC=A�L�C=L�IN�IC;;;i;:::::;;::;;;=i;I� 

f----· r I 2d.1 • 
_i-'4_9'---1-------- 

RECEIVELL) 

nEf' l 1. 20 1 7  
N L  J  ':J 

I� �ial: ·--------1 

-:· 
. 

.. 

<-::-- .' ·· • .  r:  

16.5 FT TALL 
ACCESSORY BUILDING 

976 SF 

. i,.: ·  

LJ 

.o 

0 
)> 

0 

1 8  
c  
;a  

(./)  

fT1  

.  .  .  
. . .  

IL  ilL  IL  Ir.  

..... 

0 
;a 

< 
fT1 

80' 0 
l---� ..... --1 

40' 

I  

CHECKED BY 

BT 

DRAWN BY 

BT 

1 2 / 1 2 / 1 7  DATE 

SITE PLAN FOR 

ZONE CHANGE 

APN:  0 0 1 - 2 0 0 - 0 0 2  
VERT l:illNE. 

SCALE 

HOR Z.L:.fil) 
CITY OF ELKO 
1751 COLLEGE AV£. 
ELKO. NEVADA 89801 
775-777-7210 



i:l
 

�
 l> 0
 

0
 

......
 

n
 

-
 

0
 

�
 l> z
 

n
 

�
 

i:l
 

l>
 

:::0
 

;::,,::
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

......
 

......
 

N
 

N
 

LT1
 

LT1
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

�
I

 

0
 0

 
0

 0
 

......
......

 

N
 N

 
LT1

 0
 

N
O

 
0

 0
 

0
 0

 

t
�

 
0

 �
 

�
.:::::.

 
}>

 c
 

:::0
 �

 
-<

 I
 

l>
 r

 
Z

r
 

n
 n

 
(20

 n
 

-
 

0
 

m
 

l>
 

(/'l
 

r
 

m
 

<
 

�
 

n
 

n
 

l>
 

rr
 

m
 

co
 

(20
 

l>
 

Vl
 

Vl
 

z
 

n
 

0
 0

 0
 

0
 0

 0
 

......
 ......

 ......
 

N
 N

 N
 

0
0

0
 

W
 N

 N
 

0
 0

 0
 

�
i

�
 

l>
 l>

 0
 

Q
R

 c
 

V'l
 v,

 n
 

0
 0

 I
 

z
 z

 z
 

:::0
 I

;::,,::
 

m
 l>

 m
 

z
 :::0

 z
 

:::0
 z

 
-<

 m
 

co
 --t

 
v,

 I
 :r:;:

 
:::o

 �
 n

 
I

 
m

 
r

 
r

 
m

 
r

 

--t
 

:::0
 

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
 

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
 

......
 ......

 ......
 ......

 ......
 ......

 ......
 

N
N

N
N

N
N

N
 

0
 0

 0
 LT1

 LT1
 LT1

 LT1
 

O
N

W
N

N
N

N
 

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
 

O
 I-'

 0
 0

 0
 0

 0
 

:
i

t
:

t
t

�
 

m
:::r:

:::r:
c

:::o
l>

�
 

;:;1
z

2
R

o
n

z
·

 
:::o

 z
 .,..

 
"

 
0

 
l>

 
0

 Z
 m

 ,
 

z
 ;:,,::

,
V>

 
m

_:::1
 ;:,,::

?J
 

V'l
�

o
·

 
l>

:::o
 

0
,...,

 
r

;::,,::
 :::0

 0
 

m
m

 
m

 
"Ti

z
l>

n
 

m
;:o

 
Z

.,_
Z

Z
-<

 
"T1

 �
 

.,...
 z

 
0

 •
 

:::o
 

r
m

 
l>

o
�

 
--t

 
�

 
i20

r
:::r:

 
l>

 
�

 
�

 �
 �

 
r

 
<

 
l>

 --t
 

<
 

:::0
 l>

 
l>

 
0

 r
 

:::0
 

z
 

Vl
 

0
 

"T1
 

--t
 

I
 

m
 

0
 0

 0
 

0
 0

 0
 

......
 ......

 ......
 

N
 N

 N
 

0
 0

 0
 

w
 w

 w
 

0
 0

 0
 

�i
i

 
I

m
 

�
 -� 

'--
 

� 
c
 

0
 

�
 

::;
 

l>
 

I
�

 
�

 l>
 N

 

r
 

r
 

-<
 

m
 m

 m
 .:i

 

�
 �

 �
 �

 
0

 0
 0

 CJ
 

z
 z

 z
 Vl

 

<
 <

 <
 --t

 

n
 

l>
 

i:l
 ......

 
0

 �
 

co
 LT1

 
0

 0
 

x
 

......
 �

 
LT1

 Vl
 

--t
 

......
......

 

-..J
 -..J

 
LT1

 LT1
 

LT1
 LT1

 
n

 n
 

0
 0

 

00
 00

 00
 00

 00
 \D

 00
 00

 00
 i:l

 
\D

 <.D
 <.D

 <.D
 <.D

 LT1
 <.D

 <.D
 <.D

 N
 

�
 �

 �
 �

 �
 �

 �
 �

 �
 i:l

 
I-'

 I-'
 I-'

 W
I-'

 N
I-'

 I-'
 I-'

 

6
 W

 u:>
 W

 W
 W

 
0

 .+::,,
 W

 .+::,,
..:,.

..:,.
 

I-'
 W

 .+::,,
W

O
 I-'

 
LT1

 W
 00

 W
 -..J

 00
 

(/'l
 (/'l

 
--t

 --t
 

m
 m

 m
 m

 m
 m

 m
 m

 m
 m

 m
 V>

 :::o
 :::o

 m
 m

 m
 m

 m
 m

 m
 '-

 
'

 r
 r

 r
 r

 r
 r

 r
 r

 r
 r

 l>
 m

 m
 r

 r
 r

 r
 r

 r
 r

 l>
 

;::,,::
 ;::,,::

 ;::,,::
 ;::,,::

 ;::,,::
 ;::,,::

 ;::,,::
 ;::,,::

 ;::,,::
 ;::,,::

 ;::,,::
 r

 Z
 Z

 ;::,,::
 ;::,,::

 ;::,,::
 ;::,,::

 ;::,,::
 ;::,,::

 ;::,,::
 n

 

0
 0

 0
 0

 0
 0

 0
 0

 0
 0

 0
 --t

 o
 o

 O
 O

 O
 O

 O
 O

 O
 c;:;

 
z

 z
 z

 z
 z

 z
 z

 z
 z

 z
 z

 :r:;:
 z

 z
 z

 z
 z

 z
 z

 z
 z

 O
 

<
 <

 <
 <

 <
 <

 <
 <

 <
 <

 <
 ;::,,::

 <
 <

 <
 <

 <
 <

 <
 <

 <
 z

 
m

 
n

 

�
 

c
 

--t
 

i:l
 ......

 LT1
 LT1

 

0
 �

 �
 �

 
CO

 N
 

O
 LT1

 
x

 .+::,,
 

00
 �

 
I

 

--t
 m

 
C

O
 

(/'l
 �

 

�
 0

 
:::0

 z
 

0
 0

 
:::0

 Vl
 

l>
 �

 
z

 l>
 

<
 i:l

 
r

 

z
 z

 z
 z

 z
 

<
 <

 <
 <

 <
 

m
m

 m
 

l>
 l>

 l>
 

<
 <

 <
 

m
m

 m
 

m
m

 m
m

 m
 

r-
r-

r-
r

r-
 

;:,,::
 ;::,,::

 ;::,,::
 ;::,,::

 ;::,,::
 

0
 0

 0
 0

 0
 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Elko City Planning Commission will conduct a public 
hearing on Tuesday, April 3 ,  20 1 8  beginning at 5 :30  P.M. P.D.S.T. at Elko City Hall, 1 7 5 1  
College Avenue, Elko, Nevada, and that the public is invited to provide input and testimony on 
this matter under consideration in person, by writing, or by representative. 

The specific items to be considered under public hearing format are: 

Rezone No. 1 - 1 8 ,  filed by The City of Elko for a change in zoning from R (Single Family 
and Multiple Family Residential) to PQP (Public, Quasi Public), approximately 1 . 3 1 4  
acres of property, specifically APN 001-200-002, located generally on the northwest 
corner of the intersection of College A venue and Golf Course Road, more particularly 
described as: A parcel within the southeast quarter of Section I 0, and southwest quarter 
of Section 1 1 ,  Township 34 North, Range 55 East, M.D.B.&M., which is further 
described as follows: 
Beginning at a point at the intersection of the northwesterly right-of-way of College 
A venue and the Southwesterly right-of-way of Golf Course Road, that bears North 
I O  1 8 '  56" East, a distance of 804.85 feet from the centerline monument at the intersection 
of Court Street and 13 1 1 1  Street as shown on the map of Smith's Addition to the City of 
Elko, recorded in the office of the Elko County Recorder as file no. 43255 ,  on November 
5, 1927;  
Thence, North 4 8 ° 1 1  '00" West, along the right-of-way of Golf Course Road a distance of 
264.70 feet; 
Thence, South 14°49'00" West, a distance of 202.00 feet; 
Thence along a tangent circular curve to the left, with a radius of 14 .  70 feet, a central 
angle of 90°00'00", and an arc length of 23.09 feet, to point along the northeasterly right 
of-way of VFW Drive; 
Thence, South 48° 1 1  "00" East along said northeasterly right-of-way of VFW Drive, a 
distance of 235 . 30  feet; 
Thence, along a tangent circular curve to the left, with a radius of 14 .70 feet, a central 
angle of 90°00'00", and an arc length of 23 .09 feet, to a point along the northwesterly 
right-of-way of College A venue; 
Thence, North 4 1  °49'00" East along said northwesterly right-of-way of College A venue, 
a distance of 202.00 feet more or less, to the point of beginning. 
This parcel contains a total of± 1 . 3 1 4  acres. 
The basis of bearings for this description is the map of Smith's Addition to the city of 
Elko, recorded in the office of the Elko County Recorder as file no. 43255 ,  on November 
5, 1927.  

The intent of the zone change is to allow for incorporation into the Elko City Parks. 

Additional information concerning this item may be obtained by contacting the Elko City 
Planning Department at (775) 777-7160. 

ELKO CITY PLANNING COMMISSION 



CITY OF ELKO PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

1751 College Avenue * Elko * Nevada * 89801 

(775) 777-7160 phone*  (775) 777-7119 fF�T..SC}�.I'\/B:I:) 

APPLICATION FOR ZONE CHANGE 
Initial: ·--------· 

APPLICANT(s): ( I  ±u o:C (�D 
MAILING ADDRESS:] r10 I Cciie.4e Ave 
PHONE NO (Home) J (Business) ']]j - 7 7 ]  -  ]  I  Lt  Q  

NAME OF PROPERTY OWNER (If different):_......i.�___._.._rt....,__=f_-=-V .......... '---------- 
(Property owner's consent in writing must be pro ided.) 

MAILING ADDRESS: 
------------------------� LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND LOCATION OF PROPERTY INVOLVED (Attach if necessary): 

ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NO.:  00\ - lDO- 00'2. Address I Y O \  C'.oll<?<Ji' k}e_ 
Lot(s), Block(s), &Subdivision ,J 

Or Parcel(s) & File No.------------------------ 

FILING REQUIREMENTS: 

Complete Application Form: In order to begin processing the application, an application form 
must be complete and signed. Complete applications are due at least 21 days prior to the next 
scheduled meeting of the Elko City Planning Commission (meetings are the 1s t  Tuesday of 
every month). 

Fee: A $300.00 non-refundable fi l ing fee. 

Area Map: A map of the area proposed for this zone change must be provided. 

Plot Plan: A plot plan provided by a properly l icensed surveyor depicting the existing condition 
drawn to scale showing property l ines, existing and proposed bui ldings, bui lding setbacks, 
distances between bui ld ings, parking and loading areas, driveways and other pertinent 
information must be provided. 

Legal Description: A complete legal description of the boundary of the proposed zone change 
must be provided as well as a map depicting the area to be changed stating the wording: area 
to be changed from "x" to "x": (LI to R, for example). 

Note: One .pdf of the entire application must be submitted as well as one set of legible, 
reproducible plans 8 1h" x 1 1 "  in size. If the applicant feels the Commission needs to see 24" x 
36" plans, 1 0  sets of pre-folded plans must be submitted. 

Other Information: The applicant is encouraged to submit other information and 
documentation to support this Rezone Application. 

Revised 12/04/15 Page 1 



) 

2 . .ld_entif_y_ the zoning Classification being proposed/requested: ]?CfP · ::P()H , C ,.  0Ll:'f;,i - 
� )  '  

1 .  Identify the existing zoning classification of the property: 1 - 02w:51 f ·· tatn1. l q  and 
WuH1 - t::an , ,  l'-1 "1l�,ctey1j,a \ 1 

3. Explain in detail the type and nature of the use anticipated on the property: _::±"""'�'"""')"'""15 _ 
i2YDfX'N1j I�) ·t� he I near p:xc.:ded I v:tlD \.,IL l C:I) rd r ll-(O -ti?r k'._,,, 

4. Explain how the proposed zoning classification relates with other zoning classifications in the 

aa,��rf�� �-ur$C:}� i:2,�;':v, C!t/�li';'.�j'1J/P()_�2,,rovno�j �)I 

5. Identify any unique physical features or characteristics associated with the property: ».)A 

(Use additional pages if necessary to address questions 3 through 5) 

Revised 12/04/15 Page 2 



By My Signature below: 

'£P I  consent to h a v i n g  the City of E l k o  Staff enter on my property for the sole purpose of 
i n s p e c t i o n  of s a i d  property as p a rt  of t h i s  a p p l i c a t i o n  process. 
D I  object to h a v i n g  the City of Elko Staff enter onto my property as a part of t h e i r  review of 

t h i s  a p p l i c a t i o n .  (Your objection will not affect the recommendation made by the staff or the final determination 
made by the City Planning Commission or the City Counci l . )  

ttJ I  a c k n o w l e d g e  that s u b m i s s i o n  of t h i s  a p p l i c a t i o n  does not i m p l y  approval of t h i s  request by 
the City P l a n n i n g  D e p a rt m e n t ,  the City P l a n n i n g  C o m m i s s i o n  a n d  the City C o u n c i l ,  n o r  d o e s  it in a n d  of itself g u a r a n t e e  i s s u a n c e  of any o t h e r  required permits and/or l i c e n s e s .  
[$ I  a c k n o w l e d g e  that t h i s  a p p l i c a t i o n  m a y  be t a b l e d  u n t i l  a  later m e e t i n g  if e i t h e r  I  or my 

d e s i g n a t e d  representative or agent is not present at the m e e t i n g  for which t h i s  a p p l i c a t i o n  is s c h e d u l e d .  
'$] I  have carefully read a n d  completed a l l  q u e s t i o n s  c o n t a i n e d  w i t h i n  this a p p l i c a t i o n  to the 

best of my a b i l i t y .  

'  City, State, Zip Code 

Applicant I Agent __ G_'6J--+-- __ _.E}__._..<....ek==--<-------- (P�se print or type) 
Mail ing Address __ l _1�S_l�C�<)�l) _t1�-+-'f�A�\.l-1 t�------ str,ket Address or P . O .  Box 

Q.uso. 1Jv  z9001 

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 

File No.: l  -  ) t)  Date Fi led: ) 2 [  I] [ ! }  _Fee Paid: __,_tJ.a...,/,.,...ts_ _ 

Revised 1 2 / 0 4 / 1 5  Page 3 



CITY OF ELKO 
Planning Department 

Website: www.elkocity.com 

Email: planning@elkocitynv.gov 

1 7 5 1  College Avenue · Elko, Nevada 89801 ·  (775) 777-7160 ·  Fax (775) 777-7219 

CITY OF ELKO 
PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION REPORT 

Special Meeting of January 4, 2 0 1 8  

WHEREAS, the following item was reviewed and considered by the Elko City Planning 
Commission on January 4, 2 0 1 8  per City Code Sections 3 -2 -2 1 :  

Initiate an amendment to the City of Elko district boundary, specifically APN 001-200-002, 
removing the R (Single-Family Multi-Family Residential) Zoning District and replacing it 
with the PQP (Public, Quasi-Public) Zoning District, and matters related thereto. 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission, upon review and consideration of the application and 
supporting data, public input and testimony, initiate an amendment to the City of Elko district 
boundaries, and direct staff to bring the item back as a public hearing. 

Attest: 

CC: Jeremy Draper, Development Manager (via ema il) 
Shanell Owen, City Clerk 



Agenda Item# I.A.3 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Review, consideration and possible action on Variance No. 3-18, filed by Daniel 
Broockmann for a reduction of the required front yard setback from 15 feet to 11.6 
feet, the required interior side yard setback from 7 feet to 4.8 feet, and the required 
exterior side yard setback from 12 feet to 10. 7 feet, within an R - Single Family and 
Multiple Family Residential Zoning District, (APN 001-091-001) to allow for the 
conversion from single family to multiple family residential, and matters related 
thereto, FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: April 3, 2018 

3 .  Agenda Category: PUBLIC HEARINGS, 

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 

5. Background Information: The applicant has requested a building permit for the 
conversion of the property into a duplex from a single family residence. This is 
considered a change in use and therefore any legal non-conforming entity of the 
property would be required to conform. Currently the property doesn't meet the 
front, exterior side yard and interior side yard setbacks as well as off street parking 
requirements. 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Memo from Development Director, 
Memo from City Planner 

8. Recommended Motion: Conditionally approve Variance No. 3-18, with the following 
conditions: (stated in City Planner memo) 

9. Findings: 

• The proposed variance is in conformance with the Land Use Component of 
the Master Plan is consistent with existing land uses in the immediate 
vicinity. 

• The proposed variance is consistent with the Transportation Component of 
the Master Plan. 

• The property is not located within the redevelopment area and consideration 
of the plan is not required. 

• The proposed variance is consistent with City of Elko Wellhead Protection 
Plan. The proposed use of the property and allowed uses under the proposed 
district do not present a hazard to City wells. 

Created on 1/16/2018 

j 

Planning Commission Action Sheet 



Agenda Item# I.A.3 

• The property does not conform to Section 3-2-4 of city code. Approval of the 
variance application is required to bring the property into conformance with 
code. 

• The developed property meets the stipulated area and dimension 
requirements stipulated in Section 3-2-S(G) R- Single Family and Multiple 
Family Residential. The structure encroaches into all of the stipulated yard 
areas excepting the rear yard area. Approval of the variance application is 
required to bring the property into conformance with code. 

• The property does not conform to Section 3-2-17 of city code. Development of 
the required parking areas will be required as a condition for variance 
approval. 

• In accordance with Section 3-2-22, the applicant has demonstrated that the 
existing structure has been in place for over 24 years and it appears the 
structure predates the current setbacks stipulated in code and encroaches 
into the current stipulated setbacks. 

• In accordance with Section 3-2-22, the applicant has demonstrated that this 
circumstance prevents the applicant from obtaining building permits to 
finish the basement level of the structure depriving the applicant of full use 
of the structure. 

• In accordance with section 3-2-22, the applicant has demonstrated that the 
property has unique circumstances based on that fact the basement daylights 
and other developed properties in the immediate area do not offer that 
potential for usable floor space. 

• Granting of the variance will not result in material damage or prejudice to 
other properties in the vicinity. This finding is based on the fact the variance 
request is not for the actual conversion to a duplex use. In the event of that 
occurrence, the conversion of the structure to a duplex use will have to 
conform to all code requirements including off street parking. This finding is 
also based on the fact the structure was previously converted from a 
multifamily use to a single family use. 

• Granting of the variance will not substantially impair the intent or purpose 
of the zoning ordinance. Single family or duplexes are listed as principal uses 
in the underlying zone. Neither use requires a larger lot size than specified 
for the district. 

• Granting of the variance will not impair natural resources. 

• The parcel is not located within a designated Special Flood Hazard Area. 

Created on 1/16/2018 Planning Commission Action Sheet 



l ,, 

Agenda Item # I.A.3 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

11. Agenda Distribution: Daniel Broockmann 
189 West Ash Street 
Elko, NV 89801 

Created on 1/16/2018 Planning Commission Action Sheet 



STAFF COMMENT FLOW SHEET 

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA DATE: Y )  3  
**Do not use pencil or red pen, they do not reproduce** 

Title: \Jav 10,V)C e. 3- 1  B 

Applicant(s):J) QVJiC \ :::?2rcoCX.,YYGWrJ 
Site Location: l <o9 u L A�n &. -  fwN QOI -CBI -COi 

Current Zoning: 1' Date Received: 3 / 0, / 1� Date Public Notice: 3/ 20 / J  B 
I  

0'v; d - 

**If additional space is needed please provide a separate memorandum** 

Assistant City Manager: Date: __ �-+--/_/ _S---+l_../--'8=-;---'-p_f_c=- c- _.,._,.v,_/1,,1_�_,;,_1,.--,,/ __ A_,(_5 _ 

f vU 5 f' v{ I- fl cl 1� v 5
1
/-- C<-7£/-= 

Init ial 

'  

City Manager: Date:_�����-�-J�t_/����������������� 
No Co 11'1'\ Y':::\H\. rs IL O "'-'-"- ,- t:'.\ � · 

Initial 



City of Elko 
1751 College Avenue 

Elko, NV 89801 
(775) 777-7160 

FAX (775) 777-7119 

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT 

REPORT DATE: 

PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: 
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: 
APPLICATION NUMBER: 
APPLICANT: 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 

March 13, 2018 
April 3, 2018 
I.A.3 
Variance 3-18 
Daniel Broockmann and Jacqueline Lucero 
189 West Ash Street, Elko 

A Variance request to reduce: 

1. Interior side yard setback from 7' for a duplex to 4.8' 
2. Front yard setback from 15' to 11.6' 
3. Exterior side yard setback from 12' to 10.7' 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

RECOMMEND CONDITIONAL APPROVAL, subject to findings of fact, and conditions. 

Page I of7 



PARCEL NUMBER: 

PARCEL SIZE: 

EXISTING ZONING: 

VAR 3 - 1 8  

Daniel Broockmann 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

001-091-001  

7,652 sq. ft. 

(R) Single Family and Multiple Family Residential. 

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: 

EXISTING LAND USE: 

BACKGROUND: 

(RES-MD) Residential medium density 

Residential 

1 .  The applicant is the property owner. 
2. The property was developed in approximately 1953 .  
3 .  The lot area is approximately 7,652 square feet and meets the area requirements 

stipulated in code. 
4. The property, as developed, is a legal non-conforming use with regard to current setback 

requirements stipulated in code and the lack of developed off-street parking. 
5. The applicant has applied for a building permit to finish the basement area with the intent 

for a future conversion from a single family dwelling to a duplex. The proposed 
expansion of usable floor area requires a variance. 

6. It appears that the structure was developed as a duplex or other multi-family dwelling 
unit based on city files showing a conversion to a single family dwelling unit. This is 
further supported by the multiple ingress/egress points to the structure. 

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS: 

The property is surrounded by: 
North, South, West and East: (R) Single and Multiple Family I Developed 

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS: 

The property is currently developed with a single family use. 
The property is generally flat. 
The property is located on the comer of West Ash Street and A Street with ingress/egress 
from the alley. 

APPLICABLE MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS: 

• City of Elko Master Plan - Land Use Component 
• City of Elko Master Plan - Transportation Component 
• City of Elko Redevelopment Plan 
• City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan 
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts 
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-5 Residential Zoning Districts 
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations 

Page 2 of7 



------------------------ ·-·- · · - · · ·  

VAR 3 - 1 8  

Daniel Broockmann 

• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-22 Variances 
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management 

MASTER PLAN - Land use: 

1 .  The Master Plan Land Use Atlas shows the area as Residential Medium Density. 
2. R- Single Family and Multiple Family Residential zoning district is listed as a 

corresponding zoning district for Residential Medium Density. 
3 .  Objective 1 :  Promote a diverse mix of housing options to meet the needs of a variety of 

lifestyles, incomes, and age groups. 

The proposed variance is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan. 

MASTER PLAN - Transportation: 

1 .  The area will be accessed from West Ash Street, A Street and the alley way. 

2. Both West Ash and A Street are classified as a residential locals. 

The proposed variance is in conformance with the Transportation Component of the Master Plan. 

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN: 

The property is not located within the redevelopment area and consideration of the plan is not 
required. 

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN: 

1 .  The property is located outside any capture zone for any City of Elko well. 

The proposed use of the property does not present a hazard to City wells. 

SECTION 3-2-4 ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONING DISTRICTS: 

1 .  Section 3-2-4(8) Required Conformity To District Regulations: The regulations set forth 
in this chapter for each zoning district shall be minimum regulations and shall apply 
uniformly to each class or kind of structure or land, except as provided in this subsection. 

• No building, structure or land shall hereafter be used or occupied and no building 
or structure or part thereof shall hereafter be erected, constructed, moved, or 
structurally altered, unless in conformity with all regulations specified in this 
subsection for the district in which it is located. 

• No building or other structure shall hereafter be erected or altered: 
a. To exceed the heights required by the current City Airport Master Plan; 
b. To accommodate or house a greater number of families than as permitted in 

this chapter; 
c. To occupy a greater percentage of lot area; or 
d. To have narrower or smaller rear yards, front yards, side yards or other open 

spaces, than required in this title; or in any other manner contrary to the 
provisions of this chapter. 

Page 3 of7 



VAR 3 - 1 8  

Daniel Broockmann 

• No part of a required yard, or other open space, or off street parking or loading 
space, provided in connection with any building or use, shall be included as part 
of a yard, open space, or off street parking or loading space similarly required for 
any other building. 

• No yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof shall be reduced in dimension 
or area below the minimum requirements set forth in this title. 

Alteration of the structure requires conformance with the stipulation of the applicable zone 
district. The structure, as located on the property does not conform to the front, exterior side yard 
and interior side yard setbacks. 

The property does not conform to Section 3-2-4 of city code. Approval of the variance 
application is required to bring the property into conformance. 

SECTION 3-2-S(G) RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICTS: 

1 .  Minimum area stipulated for the district is six thousand five hundred (6,500) square feet 
for a comer lot. 

2. Minimum lot width stipulated for the district of sixty feet (60') 

3 .  Minimum lot depth stipulated for the district of one hundred feet ( 100')  

4. Minimum setbacks stipulated for the district are as follows: 
Front Yard: A minimum setback of fifteen feet ( 1 5 ' )  
Rear Yard: A minimum setback of twenty feet (20') 
Interior Side: For multiple family, a minimum setback of seven feet (7') 
Exterior Side: For a residence in existence prior to November 25, 2003, twelve feet ( 1 2  ') 

The developed property meets the stipulated area and dimension requirements. The structure 
encroaches into all of the stipulated yard areas excepting the rear yard area. Approval of the 
variance application is required to bring the property into conformance. 

SECTION 3-2-17 TRAFFIC, ACCESS, PARKING AND LOADING REGULATIONS: 

1 .  It appears that the current development does not meet requirement for off street parking 
however, the site plan provided shows the potential for the required off street parking to 
be added with access off the alley. 

The property does not conform to Section 3-2- 17  of city code. Development of the required 
parking areas will be required as a condition for variance approval. 

SECTION 3-2-22 VARIANCES: 

B. Procedure: Any person requesting a variance by the planning commission shall include: 

Application Requirements 

Page 4 of7 



VAR 3 - 1 8  

Daniel Broockmann 

1 .  There are special circumstances or features, i .e . ,  unusual shape, configuration, 
exceptional topographic conditions or other extraordinary situations or conditions 
applying to the property under consideration. 

2. The special circumstance or extraordinary situation or condition results in exceptional 
practical difficulties or exceptional undue hardships, and where the strict application of 
the provision or requirement constitutes an abridgment of property right and deprives the 
property owner of reasonable use of property. 

3 .  Such special circumstances or conditions do not apply generally to other properties in the 
same zoning district. 

4. The granting of the variance will not result in material damage or prejudice to other 
properties in the vicinity, nor be detrimental to the public interest, health, safety and 
general welfare. 

5 .  The granting of the variance will not substantially impair the intent or purpose of the 
zoning ordinance or effect a change of land use or zoning classification. 

6. The granting of the variance will not substantially impair affected natural resources. 

SECTION 3-8 FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT: 

1 .  This parcel is not designated in a Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA). 

FINDINGS 

1 .  The proposed variance is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master 
Plan is consistent with existing land uses in the immediate vicinity. 

2. The proposed variance is consistent with the Transportation Component of the Master 
Plan. 

3 .  The property is not located within the redevelopment area and consideration of the plan is 
not required. 

4. The proposed variance is consistent with City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan. The 
proposed use of the property and allowed uses under the proposed district do not present 
a hazard to City wells. 

5 .  The property does not conform to Section 3-2-4 of city code. Approval of the variance 
application is required to bring the property into conformance with code. 

6. The developed property meets the stipulated area and dimension requirements stipulated 
in Section 3-2-5(G) R- Single Family and Multiple Family Residential. The structure 
encroaches into all of the stipulated yard areas excepting the rear yard area. Approval of 
the variance application is required to bring the property into conformance with code. 

7. The property does not conform to Section 3-2- 17  of city code. Development of the 
required parking areas will be required as a condition for variance approval. 

8. In accordance with Section 3-2-22, the applicant has demonstrated that the existing 
structure has been in place for over 24 years and it appears the structure predates the 
current setbacks stipulated in code and encroaches into the current stipulated setbacks. 

Page 5 of7 



VAR 3 - 1 8  

Daniel Broockmann 

9. In accordance with Section 3-2-22, the applicant has demonstrated that this circumstance 
prevents the applicant from obtaining building permits to finish the basement level of the 
structure depriving the applicant of full use of the structure. 

10 .  In accordance with section 3-2-22, the applicant has demonstrated that the property has 
unique circumstances based on that fact the basement daylights and other developed 
properties in the immediate area do not offer that potential for usable floor space. 

1 1 .  Granting of the variance will not result in material damage or prejudice to other 
properties in the vicinity. This finding is based on the fact the variance request is not for 
the actual conversion to a duplex use. In the event of that occurrence, the conversion of 
the structure to a duplex use will have to conform to all code requirements including off 
street parking. This finding is also based on the fact the structure was previously 
converted from a multifamily use to a single family use. 

12 .  Granting of the variance will not substantially impair the intent or purpose of the zoning 
ordinance. Single family or duplexes are listed as principal uses in the underlying zone. 
Neither use requires a larger lot size than specified for the district. 

1 3 .  Granting of the variance will not impair natural resources. 

14 .  The parcel is not located within a designated Special Flood Hazard Area. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends this item be conditionally approved with the following conditions: 

CONDITIONS: 

Planning Department: 

1 .  Compliance with all staff recommendations. 
2. Commencement within one year and completion within eighteen ( 18)  months. This 

includes development of off street parking and completion of the conversion of the 
basement area to a usable floor space and issuance of the required Certificate of 
Occupancy. Additional permits are required for certain components of the work. 

3 .  Conformance to plans approved as a part of the variance. 
4. Subject to review in two (2) years if determined necessary by the planning commission. 

Development Department: 

1 .  A  variance is granted for the setbacks of the existing principle structure to be reduced for 
the following: 

a. Interior side yard setback from 7' to 4.8 '  
b. Exterior side yard setback from 1 5 '  to 10 .7 '  
c. Front setback from 1 5 '  to 1 1 . 6 '  

2. The required off-street parking is to be developed in accordance with Elko City Code 3-2- 

Page 6 of7 



VAR 3 - 1 8  

Daniel Broockmann 

1 7 .  

Building Department: 

Please see Elko City building code amendments table R302.1 regarding Exterior walls 
• Walls: < 5 feet require 1 hour fire rating 
• Projections: 2 feet to <5 feet require I hour on underside. 0 to 2 feet not allowed 
• Openings: 3 feet to 5 feet allowed at 25% maximum of wall area or less 
• Penetrations : < 5 feet must comply with section R3 l 7.3 

Public Works Department: 

1 .  Applicant must provide required off street parking 

Page 7 of7 



CITY OF ELKO 

DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
1755 COLLEGE AVENUE 

ELKO, NEVADA 89801 
(775)777-7210 

(775)777-7219 FAX 

To: Elko City Planning Commission 
From: Jeremy Draper, Development Manager 
RE: Variance 3-18,  Dan Broockmann, 189 W. Ash St 
Date: March 1 2 ,  2018 

The City of Elko Development Department is providing this correspondence to aid the 
Planning Commission's review of Variance Application 3-18 .  

Project Information 

• The property is located generally at the intersection of A Street and Ash Street 
• The property is identified as APN 001-109-001 .  
•  The parcel is currently developed. 

• The parcel is currently zoned R-Single Family and Multiple Family Residential. 
• The parcel is 0 . 177  acres. 

• The property is bound by R-Single Family and Multiple Family Residential on all 
sides 

• The property is not located within a FEMA Floodzone. 
• The property is proposed to be converted to a duplex. 

C:\Users\Sarchuleta\Downloads\Var 3-18 189 W Ash St Broockmann (3).docx 
Created by Jeremy Draper 



Page 2 of 4 

• The application is for a variance from ECC 3-2-5-G-1, specifically the: 
o Interior side yard setback from 7' to 4.8' 
o Exterior side yard setback from 15 '  to 10 .  7' 
o Front setback from 15 '  to 1 1 . 6 '  

•  The applicant proposes to convert this property to a duplex. 

Master Plan 

Land Use: 

• The Land Use component of the Master Plan identifies this area as Medium 
Density Residential. 

Transportation 

• The property fronts Ash Street and A Street, both local roadways. 

Elko Wellhead Protection Plan 

• The property is located outside the 30-year capture zone. 

Section 3-2-5-F-Residential Office 

• Conformance with this section is required 

Section 3-2-17-Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations 

• It appears based on the provided site plan that the property wil l be in 
conformance with this section upon development of the parking area. 

Section 3-2-22-Variances 

Procedure 

• The applicant states the section of code from which the variance has been 
requested. 

• A legal description of the parcel has been provided. 

• A plot plan showing the proposed location of property l ines related to the location 
of the existing accessory structure is provided but is not by a properly licensed 
surveyor 

• F i l l ing fees have been deposited with the Planning Department. 

Application Requirements 

• There are special circumstances or features, i .e. ,  unusual shape, 
configuration, exceptional topographic conditions or other extraordinary 



Page 3 of 4 

situations or conditions applying to the property under consideration. 
The special circumstance(s) cited in the application has an existing primary 
structure that was constructed as a residential property and encroached into the 
interior side yard, exterior side yard and front yard setbacks. The structure was 
constructed prior to the existing codes being adopted and zoning being 
established. 

• The special circumstance or extraordinary situation or condition results in 
exceptional practical difficulties or exceptional undue hardships, and 
where the strict application of the provision or requirement constitutes an 
abridgment of property right and deprives the property owner of 
reasonable use of property. 
The applicant indicates a variance is required for the existing condition not 
meeting the required setbacks, of the R district. 

• Such special circumstances or conditions do not apply generally to other 
properties in the same zoning district. 
The applicant indicates that other properties do not have a similar large 
unfinished daylight basement, which could be converted to a duplex. 

• The granting of the variance will not result in material damage or prejudice 
to other properties in the vicinity, nor be detrimental to the public interest, 
health, safety and general welfare. 
It does appear that granting of the variance will not result in material damage or 
prejudice to other properties in the vicinity, nor will granting of the variance be 
detrimental to the interest, health, safety and general welfare of the public. 

• The granting of the variance will not substantially impair the intent or 
purpose of the zoning ordinance or effect a change of land use or zoning 
classification. 
It does appear that granting of the variance will not substantially impair the intent 
or purpose of the Zoning Ordinance or effect a change in the land use. 

• The granting of the variance will not substantially impair affected natural 
resources. 
The Development Department has determined that granting of the variance will 
not impair natural resources. 

Findings 

1 .  The special circumstance(s) cited in the application has an existing primary 
structure that was constructed as a residential property and encroached into the 
interior side yard, exterior side yard and front yard setbacks. The structure was 
constructed prior to the existing codes being adopted and zoning being 
established. 

2. The applicant indicates that other properties do not have a s imi lar large 
unfinished daylight basement, which could be converted to a duplex, this appears 
to be unique to this neighborhood. 

3. It does not appear that granting the variance will result in material damage or 
prejudice to other properties in the vicinity. Granting of the variance does not 



Page 4 of 4 

appear to be detrimental to the interest, health, safety and general welfare of the 
publ ic. 

4. Granting of the variance will not substantially impair the intent or purpose of the 
zoning ordinance. 

5 .  Granting of the variance will not impair natural resources. 

Recommendation 

The City of Elko Development Department recommends that the variance be 
approved with the following conditions: 

1 .  A  variance is granted for the setbacks of the existing principle structure to be 
reduced for the following: 

a .  Interior side yard setback from 7' to 4.8' 
b. Exterior side yard setback from 15 '  to 10 .  7' 
c. Front setback from 1 5 '  to 1 1 . 6 '  

2. The required off-street parking is to be developed in accordance with Elko City 
Code 3-2-17.  



c-G..:, 

TELEPHONE 
POLE 

349.25' _ @�- 

FOUND STREET MONUMENT 
AT ASH & FIRST ST. 

EXISTING GUTTER 
& SIDEWALK 

70.00' 

SITE PLAN 
FOR 

DANIEL BROOCKMANN 
LOT 5, BLOCK 84R 

SUNSET HEIGHTS SUBDIVISION 

CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA 

ASH STREET 

N 41·57'39• E 55.00' 

ALLEY 

N 41'57'39• E 

lz 

u I� 
!=' I� 
0 - 
c:q� 

• I� 

\ 

24.09' 

POWER 
POLE 

c-G..:, 

I 

'9.oo·T 9.oQ'l � 
� 

I I I N  !='  
U)  I  PROPOSED I �  
� I  OFF STREET I q_ 0 

PARKING q_ 

I CONCRETE 
vi , - T  
�  

I  5.�· ---i O!, 

I PROPOSED I � 
I OFF STREET I O 

PARKING q_ 

I  s.oo' 1 s.oo' I 

SET 5/8• REBAR 
WITH CAP 

PLS 6203 (TYP) 

:: 
> 

:: 

!!> = 90"00'oo· 
R = 15.00 
L = 23.56 

EXISTING GUTTER 
& SIDEWALK 

T
-  @  

FOUND STREET 
MONUMENT 

RECEIVED 

MAR O 9 20 18 







0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

-<
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

-0
 

f-'
 

f-'
 

f-'
 

f-'
 

f-'
 

f-'
 

f-'
 

f-'
 

f-'
 

f-'
 

f-'
 

f-'
 

f-'
 

f-'
 

f-'
 

f-'
 

f-'
 

f-'
 

f-'
 

f-'
 

f-'
 

f-'
 

f-'
 

f-'
 

f-'
 

f-'
 

f-'
 

f-'
 

f-'
 

f-'
 

f-'
 

f-'
 

f-'
 

z
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

\D
 

00
 

00
 

.i:,.
 

.i:,.
 

\D
 

\D
 

.i:,.
 

\D
 

00
 

00
 

.i:,.
 

00
 

\D
 

\D
 

00
 

.i:,.
 

.i:,.
 

\D
 

\D
 

00
 

\D
 

.i:,.
 

\D
 

.i:,.
 

.i:,.
 

00
 

\D
 

.i:,.
 

.i:,.
 

.i:,.
 

00
 

\D
 

.i:,.
 

w
 

N
 

w
 

w
 

f-'
 

.i:,.
 

.i:,.
 

f-'
 

N
 

N
 

w
 

N
 

f-'
 

f-'
 

N
 

w
 

.i:,.
 

f-'
 

.i:,.
 

w
 

.i:,.
 

.i:,.
 

.i:,.
 

w
 

w
 

N
 

f-'
 

.i:,.
 

w
 

w
 

w
 

f-'
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

f-'
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

f-'
 

0
 

f-'
 

0
 

f-'
 

f-'
 

0
 

f-'
 

0
 

f-'
 

f-'
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

f-'
 

0
 

f-'
 

0
 

N
 

0
 

0
 

f-'
 

f-'
 

0
 

0
 

f-'
 

\D
 

.i:,.
 

00
 

u,
 

\D
 

N
 

u,
 

.i:,.
 

w
 

00
 

u,
 

N
 

00
 

0
 

-.J
 

0
 

w
 

0)
 

u,
 

00
 

.i:,.
 

0)
 

w
 

w
 

\D
 

.i:,.
 

w
 

f-'
 

0)
 

N
 

-.J
 

-.J
 

-0
 

0
 

z
 
s
 
s
 
s
 

,-
 

,-
 

,-
 

,-
 

rr
 

......
 

......
 

I
 

I
 

I
 

I
 

I
 

I
 

I
 

G)
 

G)
 

G)
 

"TI
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

n
 

n
 

n
 

OJ
 

OJ
 

)>
 

-0
 

I
 

,-
 

m
 

-<
 

0
 

0
 

)>
 

)>
 

0
 

)>
 

-<
 

m
 

m
 

)>
 

c
 

)>
 

,-
 

Vl
 

;:i::,
 

,-
 

0
 

)>
 

)>
 

m
 

)>
 

;:i::,
 

)>
 

c
 

0
 

)>
 

0
 

n
 

z
 

,-
 

r=
 

,-
 

0
 

-0
 

;::,,;;:
 

n
 

n
 

G)
 

c
 

z
 

;:i::,
 

;:i::,
 

z
 

r=
 

s:
 

m
 

Vl
 

;:i::,
 

0
 

-<
 

CXl
 

;:i::,
 

z
 

,-
 

Vl
 

;:i::,
 

?J
 

)>
 

z
 

,-
 

0
 

z
 

Vl
 

;:i::,
 

z
 

G)
 

G)
 

;:i::,
·

 }>
 

Vl
 

;::,,;;:
 

-i
 

m
 

,Vl
 

,Vl
 

;:i::,
 

,-
 

m
 

0
 

;:i::,
 

c
 

)>
 

_o
 

0
 

-i
 

0
 

?'-
 

z
 

)>
 

c 
;:i::,

 
m

 
)>

 
0

 
Vl

 
0

 
,Vl

 
m

 

<
 

;:i::,
 

_::j
 

m
 

N
 

,-<
 

)>
 

<
 

0
 

?J
 

;:i::,
 

z
 

z
 

c
 

z
 

z
 

......
 

n
 

_o
 

s
 

-0
 

-i
 

,Vl
 

,-
 

......
 

z
 

"TI
 

z
 

0
 

z
 

)>
 

s
 

s
 

;::,,;;:
 

,-i
 

,-i
 

n
 

_o
 

)>
 

,Vl
 

z
 

z
 

)>
 

)>
 

z
 

z
 

n
 

m
 

s
 

<
 

=i
 

,m
 

I
 

m
 

,m
 

G)
 

s
 

' 
n

 
m

 
0

 
0

 
z
 

ri
 

;::,,;;:
 

s
 

,;::,,;;:
 

I
 

?J
 

m
 

z
 

)>
 

,-
 

......
 

;:i::,
 

,-
 

Vl
 

-i
 

......
 

-i
 

)>
 

)>
 

z
 

-<
 

0
 

z
 

c
 

m
 

)>
 

......
 

;:i::,
 

-i
 

)>
 

0
 

}>
 

m
 

m
 

,-
 

)>
 

;:i::,
 

n
 

m
 

c
 

CXl
 

m
 

0
 

-<
 

0
 

ri
 

z
 

m
 

I
 

n
 

,-
 

z
 

I
 

n
 

;:i::,
 

,-
 

)>
 

0
 

� 
)>

 
;:i::,

 
,-

 
n

 
0

 
;::,,;;:

 
0

 
m

 
;:i::,

 
z
 

"TI
 

m
 

s
 

s
 

)>
 

s
 

m
 

0
 

z
 

)>
 

-i
 

m
 

Vl
 

;:i::,
 

I
 

Vl
 

;:i::,
 

)>
 

s
 

n
 

"TI
 

0
 

� 
I

 
m

 
-i

 
I

 
)>

 
s
 

z
 

"TI
 

Vl
 

)>
 

-<
 

)>
 

6
 

m
 

)>
 

m
 

;:i::,
 

m
 

s
 

;:i::,
 

n
 

z
 

n
 

0
 

RO
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

G)
 

s
 

;:i::,
 

RO
 

)>
 

z
 

Vl
 

Vl
 

s
 

)>
 

Vl
 

z
 

,-
 

-<
 

;:i::,
 

vi
 

N
 

RO
 

-<
 

-<
 

"TI
 

;:i::,
 

m
 

)>
 

z
 

)>
 

z
 

......
 

0
 

::j
 

,-
 

s
 

-i
 

-i
 

;:i::,
 

m
 

s
 

0
 

Vl
 

;:i::,
 

0
 

n
 

......
 

)>
 

;:i::,
 

-i
 

RO
 

;::,,;;:
 

,-
 

::j
 

z
 

n
 

Vl
 

RO
 

;:i::,
 

I
 

z
 

;:i::,
 

::j
 

m
 

)>
 

0
 

;:i::,
 

-i
 

;:i::,
 

m
 

m
 

......
 

c
 

RO
 

m
 

z
 

-i
 

m
 

0
 

;:i::,
 

,-
 

z
 

)>
 

m
 

CXl
 

z
 

Vl
 

Vl
 

-i
 

� 
;:i::,

 
RO

 
,-

 

-i
 

-i
 

,-
 

)>
 

0
 

m
 

......
 

Vl
 

-i
 

vi
 

n
 

RO
 

I
 

<
 

m
 

Vl
 

;:i::,
 

)>
 

0
 

,-
 

;:i::,
 

)>
 

)>
 

()
 

-i
 

-i
 

)>
 

)>
 

,-
 

......
 

n
 

)>
 

0
 

n
 

m
 

RO
 

)>
 

;:i::,
 

,-
 

)>
 

;:i::,
 

n
 

m
 

)>
 

I
 

-<
 

m
 

)>
 

)>
 

n
 

,-
 

)>
 

m
 

)>
 

;:i::,
 

Vl
 

m
 

,-
 

I
 

0
 

-i
 

CXl
 

3
 

n
 

,-
 

-i
 

)>
 

m
 

-<
 

;:i::,
 

;:i::,
 

-i
 

z
 

,-
 

-i
 

&
. 

;:i::,
 

;:i::,
 

)>
 

0
 

Vl
 

,...-
 

0
 

('!:::,
 

Q,..
 

-0
 

�
 

s
 

)>
 

0
 

�
 

0
 

f-'
 

f-'
 

N
 

f-'
 

f-'
 

w
 

f-'
 

N
 

f-'
 

\D
 

N
 

N
 

-0
 

N
 

f-'
 

f-'
 

N
 

f-'
 

f-'
 

w
 

f-'
 

N
 

-0
 

f-'
 

f-'
 

N
 

0)
 

f-'
 

0)
 

f-'
 

N
 

f-'
 

N
 

f-'
 

-0
 

\D
 

0
 

00
 

N
 

u,
 

0)
 

w
 

f-'
 

N
 
w

 
N

 
0

 
N

 
w

 
\D

 
w

 
0

 
w

 
-.J

 
f-'

 
N

 
0

 
0

 
u,

 
w

 
f-'

 
-.J

 
f-'

 
f-'

 
u,

 
\D

 
.i:,.

 
N

 
s

 
r::p

 
w

 
\D

 
w

 
f-'

 
.i:,.

 
0)

 
u,

 
.i:,.

 
f-'

 
00

 
u,

 
N

 
0

 
0

 
-.J

 
N

 
f-'

 
N

 
w

 
\D

 
f-'

 
w

 
.i:,.

 
u,

 
u,

 
N

 
\D

 
0)

 
0)

 
-.J

 
N

 

� 
� 

-.J
 

� 
-.J

 

� 
;::,,;;:

 
0

 
n

 
� 

� 
CXl

 

� 
� 

� 
� 

� 
)>

 
s

 
�

 �
 

CXl
 

)>
 
� 

� 
;:i::,

 
u,

 
N

 
0

 

� 
� 

� 
� 

)>
 

Vl
 

0
 

m
 

f-'
 

0
 

0
 

Vl
 

0
 

Vl
 

<
 n

 
f-'

 
f-'

 
0

 
"TI

 
"TI

 
m

 
s

 
m

 
"TI

 
-0

 
Vl

 
c

 
"TI

 
)>

 
x

 
"TI

 
"TI

 
"TI

 
)>

 
)>

 
I

 
0

 
"TI

 
"TI

 
x

 
I

 
"TI

 
)>

 
0

 
I

 
Vl

 
)>

 
)>

 
"TI

 
"TI

 
0

 
0

 
Vl

 
-0

 
-i

 
Vl

 
-.J

 
Vl

 
Vl

 
c

 
N

 
Vl

 
m

 
n

 
-i

 
Vl

 
Vl

 
N

 
;:i::,

 
;:i::,

 
)>

 
;:i::,

 
z

 
;:i::,

 
;:i::,

 
;:i::,

 
;:i::,

 
Vl

 
;:i::,

 
;:i::,

 
Vl

 
;:i::,

 
;:i::,

 
,-

 
;:i::,

 
:,;;,

 
c

 
m

 
,-

 
Vl

 
I

 
0)

 
I

 
I

 
-i

 
z

 
.i:,.

 
-i

 
I

 
Vl

 
,-

 
0)

 
Vl

 
I

 
I

 
Vl

 
Vl

 
0

 
-0

 
:,;;,

 
Vl

 
m

 
-i

 
-i

 
Vl

 
Vl

 
Vl

 
Vl

 
-i

 
Vl

 
Vl

 
\D

 
Vl

 
m

 
-i

 
Vl

 
Vl

 
-i

 
-i

 
,-

 
-i

 
-i

 
:,;;,

 
:,;;,

 
-i

 
Vl

 
-i

 
-i

 
-i

 
Vl

 
Vl

 
-i

 
-i

 
0

 
-i

 
Vl

 
0

 
G)

 
Vl

 
Vl

 
-i

 
-i

 
)>

 
-<

 
-i

 
-i

 
-i

 
)>

 
-i

 
--i

 
--i

 
m

 
-0

 
0

 
m

 
m

 
c::_

 
0

 
Vl

 
,-

 
;:i::,

 
n

 
z

 
0

 
)>

 
--i

 
)>

 
,-

 
;:i::,

 
c

 
n

 
:,;;,

 
<

 

�
 

z
 

OJ
 

=i
 

m
 

Vl
 

-<
 

)>
 

0
 

I
 

-
·
 

<
 

:,;;,
 

�
 

<;:)
 

m
 

:5
 

-<
 

c
 

\.)
 

z
 

(":)
 

=i
 

f-'
 

�
 

f-'
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 
m

 
m

 m
 
m

 
m

 
m

 
m

 
m

 
m

 
m

 
m

 
m

 
m

 
m

 
m

 
m

 
m

 
m

 
m

 
m

 
;:i::,

 
m

 
)>

 
m

 
m

 
m

 
m

 m
 

-0
 

C9
 

,-
 

r
 

r
 
,-

 ,-
 r

 
,-

 ,-
 ,-

 
,-

 ,-
 ,-

 ,-
 ,-

 ,-
 ,-

 ,-
 ,-

 ,-
 ,-

 
,-

 ,-
 ,-

 ,-
 r

 
m

 
,-

 G)
 
,-

 ,-
 
,-

 ,-
 
,-

 s
 

;::,,;;:
 

;::,,;;:
 

;::,,;;:
 

;::,,;;:
 

;::,,;;:
 

;::,,;;:
 

;::,,;;:
 

;::,,;;:
 

;::,,;;:
 

;::,,;;:
 

;::,,;;:
 

;::,,;;:
 

;::,,;;:
 

;::,,;;:
 

;::,,;;:
 

;::,,;;:
 

;::,,;;:
 

;::,,;;:
 

;::,,;;:
 

;::,,;;:
 

;::,,;;:
 

;::,,;;:
 

;::,,;;:
 

;::,,;;:
 

;::,,;;:
 
z

 
;::,,;;:

 
c

 
;::,,;;:

 
;::,,;;:

 
;::,,;;:

 
;::,,;;:

 
;::,,;;:

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
n

 
)>

 
-i

 

CP
 

z
 
z

 
z

 
z

 
z

 
z

 
z

 
z

 
z

 
z

 
z

 
z

 
z

 
z

 
z

 
z

 
z

 
z

 
z

 
z

 
z

 
z

 
z

 
z

 
z

 
z

 
z

 
0

 
z

 
z

 
z

 
z

 
z

 
Vl

 
<

 
<

 
<

 
<

 
<

 
<

 
<

 
<

 
<

 
<

 
<

 
<

 
<

 
<

 
<

 
<

 
<

 
<

 
<

 
<

 
<

 
<

 
<

 
<

 
<

 
<

 
<

 
<

 
<

 
<

 
<

 
-i

 
<

 
,-

 
,-

 

g
 

)>
 

-0
 

:,;;,
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 

00
 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
0

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
-0

 
�

 
\D

 
\D

 
\D

 
\D

 
\D

 
\D

 
\D

 
\D

 
\D

 
\D

 
\D

 
\D

 
\D

 
\D

 
\D

 
\D

 
\D

 
\D

 
\D

 
\D

 
\D

 
\D

 
\D

 
\D

 
\D

 
\D

 
\D

 
0

 
\D

 
\D

 
\D

 
\D

 
\D

 
!:::::!

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
u,

 
00

 
0)

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
00

 
-0

 
3

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
f-'

 
f-'

 
f-'

 
f-'

 
f-'

 
f-'

 
f-'

 
f-'

 
f-'

 
f-'

 
f-'

 
w

 
f-'

 
f-'

 
f-'

 
f-'

 
f-'

 
f-'

 
f-'

 
f-'

 
f-'

 
w

 
f-'

 
f-'

 
f-'

 
w

 
f-'

 
w

 
f-'

 
f-'

 
f-'

 
f-'

 
f-'

 
'

 
'

 
'

 
'

 
'

 
w

 
I

 

N
 

'
 

I
 

'
 

'
 

'
 

'
 
w

 
'

 
'

 
'

 
'

 
w

 
'

 
'

 
'

 
w

 
'

 
vi

 
'

 
N

 N
 N

 
'

 
w

 
�

 
w

 
N

 
f-'

 
N

 
00

 
N

 
N

 
N

 
N

 
0

 
N

 
w

 
N

 
N

 
w

 
\D

 
N

 
N

 
w

 
N

 
\D

 
N

 
0

 
\D

 
0)

 
\D

 
.i:,.

 
0

 
u,

 
\D

 
0)

 
\D

 
\D

 
0

 
\D

 
0

 
0

 
\D

 
\D

 
0

 
u,

 
0

 
\D

 
.i:,.

 
0

 
0

 
\D

 
0)

 
00

 
\D

 
\D

 
\D

 
\D

 
0

 
=s

 
N

 
N

 
0

 
u,

 
N

 
N

 
N

 
0

 
f-'

 
N

 
f-'

 
-.J

 
N

 
N

 
N

 
f-'

 
f-'

 
f-'

 
f-'

 
N

 
N

 
\D

 
f-'

 
N

 
f-'

 
0

 
f-'

 
0

 
f-'

 
f-'

 
N

 
N

 
u,

 
00

 
00

 
\D

 
f-'

 
0)

 
-.J

 
N

 
f-'

 
\D

 
f-'

 
0)

 
\D

 
0)

 
0)

 
f-'

 
0

 
-.J

 
-.J

 
u,

 
00

 
0

 
-.J

 
u,

 
N

 
f-'

 
u,

 
N

 
N

 
0

 
00

 
0)

 

:s
 



0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

......
 

......
 

......
 

......
 

......
 

......
 

......
 

......
 

......
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

00
 

00
 

.i::,.
 

.i::,.
 

.i::,.
 

.i::,.
 

00
 

co
 

co
 

N
 

N
 

w
 

w
 

w
 

w
 

N
 

......
 

......
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

......
 

0
 

0
 

......
 

0
 

......
 

......
 

0
 

0
 

......
 

co
 

-..J
 

......
 

Q)
 

.i::,.
 

0
 

u,
 

N
 

N
 

N
 

�
 

-i
 

Vl
 

Vl
 

:::0
 

:::0
 

:::0
 

)>
 

)>
 

0
 
s
 

r
 

0
 

0
 

m
 

-i
 

G)
 

)>
 

c
 

::::j
 

0
 
s
 

0
 

-<
 

l>
 

r
 

l>
 

z
 

:::0
 

}>
 

-i
 

:::0
 

I
 

z
 

m
 

:::0
 

0
 

@
 l>

 
I

 
:::0

 
:::0

 
G)

 
l>

 
m

 
m

 
_o

 
r

 

<
 

r
 

:::0
 

c
 

:::0
 

G)
 

c
 

0
 

......
 

"Tl
 

0
 

0
 

m
 

_Vl
 

m
 

:::0
 

Vl
 

.:
 

-<
 

:::0
 

)>
 

N
 

m
 

:::0
 

A
 

0
 

Vl
 

I
 

l>
 

"Tl
 

0
 

c
 

0
 

z
 

m
 

m
 

r
 

�
 

0
 

0
 

l>
 

Vl
 

:::0
 

r
 

m
 

c
 

0
 

x
 

I
 

z
 

r
 

:::0
 

l>
 

:::0
 

�
 

:::0
 

0
 

Vl
 

m
 

�
 

"Tl
 

z
 

0
 

m
 

0
 

z
 

r
 

......
 

}>
 

z
 

m
 

�
 

m
 

m
 

�
 

z
 

" 
z
 

l>
 

......
 

m
 

�
 

OJ
 

......
 

0
 

-i
 

Vl
 

l>
 

s
 

z
 

m
 

m
 

:::0
 

Vl
 

Vl
 

)>
 

;;,,:;
 

OJ
 

s
 

Vl
 

m
 

r
 

r
 

l>
 

l>
 

0
 

:::0
 

n
 

m
 

:::0
 

)>
 

m
 

z
 

l>
 

......
 

m
 

m
 

Vl
 

c
 

Vl
 

......
 

N
 

......
 

......
 

......
 

N
 

......
 

......
 

......
 

0
 

......
 

w
 

w
 

.i::,.
 

.i::,.
 

0
 

0
 

Q)
 

.i::,.
 

w
 

-..J
 

N
 

-..J
 

N
 

-..J
 

-..J
 

co
 

0
 

�
 

�
 

�
 

�
 

�
 

u,
 

u,
 

�
 

l>
 

)>
 

......
 

Vl
 

l>
 

s
 

l>
 

s
 

l>
 

Vl
 

Vl
 

l>
 

-i
 

Vl
 

Vl
 

Vl
 

-i
 

-i
 

Vl
 

I
 

l>
 

I
 

l>
 

I
 

Vl
 

I
 

" 
" 

-i
 

Vl
 

r
 

Vl
 

r
 

Vl
 

Vl
 

-i
 

m
 

-i
 

m
 

-i
 

-i
 

Vl
 

Vl
 

-i
 

-i
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

I
 

I
 

I
 

r
 

I
 

r
 

I
 

I
 

I
 

;;,,:;
 

;;,,:;
 

;;,,:;
 

;;,,:;
 

;;,,:;
 

;;,,:;
 

;;,,:;
 

;;,,:;
 

;;,,:;
 

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
 

z
 z

 z
 z

 z
 z

 z
 z

 z
 

<
 <

 <
 <

 <
 <

 <
 <

 <
 

00
 00

 00
 00

 00
 00

 00
 00

 00
 

co
 co

 lD
 co

 lD
 co

 lD
 io

 co
 

00
 00

 00
 00

 00
 00

 00
 00

 00
 

0
 0

 0
 0

 0
 0

 0
 0

 0
 

......
 ......

 ......
 ......

 ......
 ......

 ......
 ......

 ......
 

'
 

'
 

'
 

'
 

'
 

'
 

'
 

'
 

I
 

N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 N

 N
 w

 N
 

lD
 co

 lD
 co

 lD
 lD

 co
 0

 lD
 

0
 ......

 u,
 ......

 u,
 ......

 -..J
 0

 0
 

00
 ......

 lD
 0

 lD
 N

 .i::,.
 -..J

 co
 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Elko City 
Planning Commission will conduct a series of public 
hearings.on Tuesday, April 3 ,  2 0 1 8  beginning at 5 : 3 0  
P .M.  P.D.S.T. at Elko City Hall, 1 7 5 1  College Avenue, 
Elko, Nevada, and that the public is invited to provide 
input and testimony on these matters under 
consideration in person, by writing, or by 
representative. 

The specific item to be considered under public hearing 
format is :  

Variance No. 3-18, filed by Daniel Broockmann for a 
reduction of the required front yard setback from 15' to 
11.6', the required interior side yard setback from 7' to 
4.8', and the required exterior side yard setback from 
12' to 10.7' within an R (Single-Family and Multi 
Family Residential) Zoning District, and matters 
related thereto. The subject property is located 
generally on the southeast corner of the intersection of 
W. Ash Street and A Street. (189 W. Ash St. - APN 001- 
091-001) 

Additional information concerning this item may be 
obtained by contacting the Elko City Planning 
Department at (77 5) 777- 7 160 .  

ELKO CITY PLANNING COMMISSION 



CITY OF ELKO PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

1751 College Avenue* Elko * Nevada * 89801 

(775) 777-7160 * (775) 777-7219 fax 

APPLICATION FOR VARIANCE 

APPLICANT(s): Danie l  Broockmann and Jacquel ine Lucero 
MAILING ADDRESS: 189  West Ash Street, Elko, NV 89801 

PHONE NO (Home) (208)954-4571 (Business) _ 
NAME OF PROPERTY OWNER (If different): _ 

(Property owner's consent in writing must be provided.) 
MAILING ADDRESS: 189  West Ash Street Elko NV 89801 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND LOCATION OF PROPERTY INVOLVED (Attach if necessary): 
ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NO. :  001-091-001  Address 189  West Ash Street, Elko, NV 89801 

Lot(s), Block(s), &Subdivision Lot 5, Block 84R, Sunset Heights Subdivision 

Or Parcel(s) & File No.------------------------- 

FILING REQUIREMENTS: 

Complete Application Form: In  order to begin processing the appl icat ion, an appl ication form 
must be complete and s igned. Complete applications are due at least 21 days prior to the next 
scheduled meeting of the Elko City Planning Commission (meetings are the 1s t  Tuesday of 
every month) .  

Fee: A $500.00 non-refundable fee must be paid .  If in conjunction with a Rezone Application a 
$250.00 non-refundable fee must be paid. 

Plot Plan:  A plot plan provided by a properly l icensed surveyor depicting the existing condit ion 
drawn to scale showing property l ines ,  existing and proposed bu i ld ings ,  bu i ld ing setbacks, 
parking and loading areas, driveways and other pertinent information must be provided. 

Elevation Plan:  Elevation profile of all proposed bui ld ings or alterations in sufficient detai l to 
explain the nature of the request must be provided. 

Note: One .pdf of the entire appl ication must be submitted as well as one set of legible,  
reproducible plans 8 Yz" x 1 1 "  in size. If the applicant feels the Commission needs to see 24" x 
36" p lans,  1 0  sets of pre-folded plans must be submitted. 

Other Information: The appl icant is encouraged to submit other information and documentation 
I .  .  . .  I  1 1 _ • _  \  I .  • . . .  .  I '  . .  1 • .  _  

RECEIVED 

Revised 1 /24/18 MAR O 9 20 18 Page 1 



The APPLICANT requests the following variance from the following section of the zoning 

ordinance: 
Title 3 ,  Chapter 2 ,  Section 5G1 

1 .  The existing zoning classification of the property (R) Single-Fami ly And Mult ip le-Fami ly 

2 .  The appl icant shal l  present adequate evidence demonstrating the following criteria which are 

necessary for the Plann ing Commission to grant a variance: 

a) Identify any special circumstances, features or condit ions applying to the property under  
consideration. i .e . ,  unusual shape, configuration, exceptional topographic conditions or 
other extraordinary situations or conditions 
The property in question has an existing structure which has been in place 

for longer than 24 years. This structure does not meet the min imum setback 

requirements and is currently legal ly nonconforming. 

b) Identify how such circumstances, features or conditions result in practical difficulty or 
undue hardship and deprive the property owner of reasonable use of property. 

Because the property is legal ly nonconforming we are unable to get a 

bu i ld ing permit to legal ly finish our basement and make that space usable.  

Currently the basement is not a usable space. 

c) Indicate how the granting of the variance is necessary for the appl icant or owner to 
make reasonable use of the property. 

The change of use to a duplex is triggering the need for a variance. 

d)  Identify how such circumstances, features or condit ions do not apply general ly to other 
properties in the same Land Use District. 
Other properties in the same land use district do not have the same type of 

large, unf in ished, "daylight basement" spaces. 

Revised 1 /24/18 Page 2 



e) Indicate how the granting of the variance will not result in material damage or prejudice 
to other properties in the vicinity nor be detrimental to the public health, safety and 
general welfare. 
No alteration to the footprint of the existing structure wi l l  be carried out 

during renovation. This is an opportunity to bring a nonconforming 

structure into conformance, inc luding off-street parking construction. 

f) Indicate how the variance wil l  not be in conflict with the purpose or intent of the Code. 
The intent of the Code is to ensure that newly bui l t  structures do not 

encroach on property l i nes ,  as no new structures wi l l  be bui l t ,  there 

is no conflict with the Code. 

g) Indicate how the granting of the variance wil l  not result in a change of land use or zoning 
classification. 
The property is already zoned for multiple-family residences. The 

transformation of a single-fami ly home to a mult ip le-fami ly home 

wil l have no effect on land use or zoning. 

h)  Indicate how granting of the variance wil l not substantial ly impair  affected natural 
resources. 
As the footprint of the structure wil l not change, no natural resources 

wil l be affected. 

3 .  Describe your abi l i ty ( i . e .  sufficient funds or a loan pre-approval letter on hand)  and intent to 

construct within one year as a l l  variance approvals must commence construction within one year 

and complete construction within 1 8  months per City Code Section 3-2-22 F . 1 . :  _  

W e  have sufficient funds avai lab le (greater than $50,000) ,  to complete the renovation of the 

basement and ensure that the project is finished within 1 8  months. 

(Use additional pages if necessary to address questions 2a through h) 

This area intentional ly left blank 

Revised 1 /24/18 Page 3 



By My Signature below: 
Ill I  c o n s e n t  to h a v i n g  the City of E l k o  Staff e n t e r  on my property o n l y  for t h e  s o l e  p u r p o s e  of 

i n s p e c t i n g  s a i d  property as p a rt  of t h i s  a p p l i c a t i o n  p r o c e s s .  

D I  object to h a v i n g  the City of E l k o  Staff e n t e r  onto my p r o p e rt y  as a part of t h e i r  review of 
t h i s  a p p l i c a t i o n .  (Your objection will not affect the recommendation made by the staff or the final determination 

made by the City Planning Commission or the City Counci l . )  

Ill I  a c k n o w l e d g e  t h a t  s u b m i s s i o n  of t h i s  a p p l i c a t i o n  d o e s  not i m p l y  a p p r o v a l  of t h i s  r e q u e s t  by 
t h e  City P l a n n i n g  D e p a r t m e n t ,  t h e  C i t y  P l a n n i n g  C o m m i s s i o n  a n d  t h e  City C o u n c i l ,  n o r  d o e s  it i n  
a n d  of i t s e l f  g u a r a n t e e  i s s u a n c e  of a n y  o t h e r  r e q u i r e d  p e r m i t s  a n d / o r  l i c e n s e s .  

Ill I  a c k n o w l e d g e  t h a t  t h i s  a p p l i c a t i o n  m a y  be t a b l e d  u n t i l  a  l a t e r  m e e t i n g  if e i t h e r  I  or my 
d e s i g n a t e d  r e p r e s e n t a t i v e  or a g e n t  is not p r e s e n t  at t h e  m e e t i n g  for w h i c h  t h i s  a p p l i c a t i o n  is 
s c h e d u l e d .  

Ill I  have c a r e f u l l y  read a n d  c o m p l e t e d  a l l  q u e s t i o n s  c o n t a i n e d  w i t h i n  t h i s  a p p l i c a t i o n  to t h e  
b e s t  of my a b i l i t y .  

D a n i e l  B r o o c k m a n n  Applicant I Agent _ 
( P l e a s e  p r i n t  or t y p e )  

Mail ing Address 1 8 9  West Ash Street 
Street A d d r e s s  or P . O .  Box 

E l k o ,  NV 8 9 8 0 1  
C i t y ,  S t a t e ,  Z i p  C o d e  

P h o n e  N u m b e r :  ( 2 0 8 )  9 5 4 - 4 5 7 1  
--------------� 

E .
1  

dd b r o o c k m a n n @ y a h o o . c o m  m a 1  a  r e s s :  _  

SIGNATURE: � � 

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 
File No. :  _1

�_-_lS __ Date Filed: D ) q  / 1 2>  Fee Paid:-$ Ff'f, c�±\: 515 

Revised 1 / 2 4 / 1 8  P a g e  4  



Agenda Item # I.A.4 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Review, consideration and possible action on Variance No. 4-18, filed by Kenworth 
Sales Company for an increase in allowable sign area from 194 sq. ft. to 275 sq. ft., 
within an IBP - Industrial Business Park Zoning District, (APN 001-860-110), and 
matters related thereto, FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: April 3, 2018 

3.  Agenda Category: PUBLIC HEARINGS, 

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 

5 .  Background Information: The applicant has requested an increase in the allowable 

sign area for the proposed new sign to be installed for the new Kenworth Sales 
facility. The proposed sign will be located on the Ruby Vista drive frontage. 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Memo from Development Director, 
Memo from City Planner 

8. Recommended Motion: Conditionally approve Variance No. 4-18, with the following 
conditions: (stated in City Planner memo) 

9. Findings: 

• The proposed use and under a variance is in conformance with the Land Use 
Component of the Master Plan is consistent with existing land uses in the 
immediate vicinity. 

• The property is not located within the redevelopment area and consideration 
of the plan is not required. 

• There are no signage regulations stipulated in Section 3-2-11 of the City code. 

• In accordance with section 3-2-22, the applicant has demonstrated that the 
property has unique circumstances based on that fact the building 
orientation has the shortest length parallel to Ruby Vista and the longest 
length along Statice Street, therefore, the sign area is calculated on the 
shortest length of the building. The size and orientation of the parcel would 
not accommodate a different orientation for the structure. 

• In accordance with Section 3-2-22, the applicant has demonstrated that the 
allowable sign area equates 196 square feet versus the 275 square feet that is 
the standard trademark sign for the company. This circumstance would 
require a custom made sign and associate design for the sign infrastructure. 

Created on 1/ 16/2018 Planning Commission Action Sheet 



Agenda Item # I.A.4 

Additionally, visibility from the adjacent freeway is an important 
consideration for the business. 

• In accordance with section 3-2-22, the other two parcels in the vicinity, 
fronting Ruby Vista are already fully developed and the cited conditions 
therefore do not generally apply to other properties in the area. 

• Granting of the variance will not result in material damage or prejudice to 
other properties in the vicinity. This finding is based on the distance 
separation from the proposed sign to the adjacent properties and 

• Granting of the variance will not substantially impair the intent or purpose 
of the zoning ordinance. The area as currently developed, in addition to the 
proposed signage will not result distractions and obstructions that may 
adversely affect or conflict with traffic control signs, signals and other traffic 
control devices. In addition, granting of the variance will not result in visual 
clutter along streets and roadways and will provide each sign user an 
opportunity for effective identification and advertising by addressing the 
quantity, height and area of freestanding signs on all sites. 

• Granting of the variance will not impair natural resources. 

10 .  Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

1 1 .  Agenda Distribution: Kenworth Sales Company 
2125 S. Constitution Blvd. 
West Valley City, UT 84119 

Created on 1/ 16/2018 Planning Commission Action Sheet 



STAFF COMMENT FLOW SHEET 
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA DATE: � ) 3 

**Do not use pencil or red pen, they do not reproduce** 

Title: \J Q riOtnCe 4 - / <?J  

Applicant(s) \Se�� So.I� �m�� 
Site Location 4f = �  \}  i :O  =y : J\JJ 00.l -12J.d)_ - I I  O  

Current Zoning: J-J)V Date Received: 3/ro/t 8 Date Public Notice: 3/20/1B 
COMMENT: Tui.s i s  :iD Incvease. YW C1.lloL0o.hle. S,qn Oreq 

J'vom ) g y  
1  

:m 215 '  

**If additional space is needed please provide a separate memorandum** 

Assistant City Manager: Date:_3-+-/_Z_3-+--'-/�'--�=--,--c��-�---+--"�-,:-_JJ_ 
J · if > :t ,j_ I '(-' e-11 t t. 

S/4v1/ 

Initial 

City Manager: Date: __ �>�/�;;__3 __ t�1_8' _ 

Initial 



City of Elko 
1751 College Avenue 

Elko, NV 89801 
(775) 777-7160 

FAX (775) 777-7119 

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT 

REPORT DATE: 

PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: 
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: 
APPLICATION NUMBER: 
APPLICANT: 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 

March 16, 2018 
April 3, 2018 
I.A.4 
Variance 4-18 
Kenworth Sales Company 
4224 Ruby Vista Drive 

A variance request to: From provisions under Section 3-9 Sign Regulations to increase 
allowable sign area from 194 square feet to 275 square feet. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

RECOMMEND CONDITIONAL APPROVAL, subject to findings of fact, and conditions. 

Page I ofS 



VAR 4- 1 8  

Kenworth Sales Company 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

PARCEL NUMBER: 

PARCEL SIZE: 

EXISTING ZONING: 

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: 

EXISTING LAND USE: 

BACKGROUND: 

001 -860- 1 10  

6.854 acres 

(IBP) Industrial Business Park 

(IND-BS PARK) Industrial Business Park 

Currently being developed as Light Industrial 

1 .  The property owner is the parent company to the applicant, Kenworth Sales Company. 
2. The property is currently under development as the new facility for Kenworth Sales and 

Service 
3 .  The lot area is approximately 6.854 acres and meets the area requirements of 5 acres as 

stipulated in Elko City Code 3 -2 - 1 1 .  
4. The adjacent parcels do not have a freestanding sign on their property therefore there is 

not a distance between signs or a congestion of signage concern. 
5. The business relies on 1-80 traffic visibility for a portion of their business transactions. 
6. Sign area allowance is determined by the lineal footage of the building parallel to the 

adjacent street frontage. The building orientation is such that the short side of the 
building is parallel with Ruby Vista Drive. 

7. There is approximately 2 feet elevation difference between 1-80 and the parcel. The 
parcel higher in elevation. 

8. The parcels along Ruby Vista Drive are all large parcels which allows for substantial 
distance separation between signs. 

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS: 

The property is surrounded by: 

• North: (IC) Industrial Commercial I Undeveloped 
• Southeast: 1-80 right-of-way 
• Southwest: (IBP) Industrial Business Park I Developed 

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS: 

• The property is currently under development as a Light Industrial land use. 
• The property is generally flat. 
• The property is located at the intersection of Ruby Vista Drive and Statice Street. 

APPLICABLE MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS: 

• City of Elko Master Plan - Land Use Component 
• City of Elko Redevelopment Plan 
• City of Elko Zoning- Section 3 -2 - 1 1  IBP, IC Industrial Districts 
• City of Elko Zoning- Section 3-2-22 Variances 

Page 2 of 5 



V A R 4 - 1 8  

Kenworth Sales Company 

• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-9 Sign Regulations 

MASTER PLAN - Land Use: 

1 .  The Master Plan Land Use Atlas shows the area as Industrial Business Park. 
2. IBP- Industrial Business Park zoning district is listed as a corresponding zoning district 

for Industrial Business Park. 
3 .  Objective 7: Promote high quality and visually appealing industrial uses, where 

appropriate, to promote economic sustainability and strengthen the community's image. 
4. The new facility as well as the proposed sign meet Objective 7 of the Land Use 

document. 

The proposed use under a variance is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the 
Master Plan. 

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN: 

The property is not located within the redevelopment area and consideration of the plan is not 
required. 

SECTION 3-2-11 IBP, IC INDUSTRIAL DISTRICTS: 

There are no signage regulations stipulated in Section 3 -2 - 1 1  of the City code. 

SECTION 3-2-22 VARIANCES: 

B. Procedure: Any person requesting a variance by the planning commission shall include: 
Application Requirements 
1 .  There are special circumstances or features, i .e . ,  unusual shape, configuration, 

exceptional topographic conditions or other extraordinary situations or conditions 
applying to the property under consideration. 

2. The special circumstance or extraordinary situation or condition results in exceptional 
practical difficulties or exceptional undue hardships, and where the strict application of 
the provision or requirement constitutes an abridgment of property right and deprives the 
property owner of reasonable use of property. 

3 .  Such special circumstances or conditions do not apply generally to other properties in the 
same zoning district. 

4. The granting of the variance will not result in material damage or prejudice to other 
properties in the vicinity, nor be detrimental to the public interest, health, safety and 
general welfare. 

5. The granting of the variance will not substantially impair the intent or purpose of the 
zoning ordinance or effect a change of land use or zoning classification. 

6. The granting of the variance will not substantially impair affected natural resources. 

SECTION 3-9 SIGN REGULATIONS: 

1 .  It is the intent of this chapter to promote and protect the health, safety and welfare of the 
citizens of the city by establishing standards to ensure the placement of safe, effective 
signage throughout the city. Specific regulations and standards are intended to address 
the following: 

A. To ensure that signs erected within the city are constructed of safe, durable materials 
and secured in a manner adequate to withstand physical stresses. 

Page 3 of 5 



V A R 4 - 1 8  

Kenworth Sales Company 

B. To protect and enhance property values and create an attractive economic and business 
climate. 
C. To protect and enhance the physical beauty and appearance of the community. 
D. To reduce sign or advertising distractions and obstructions that may adversely affect 
or conflict with traffic control signs, signals and other traffic control devices. 
E. To reduce visual clutter along streets and roadways thus providing each sign user an 
opportunity for effective identification and advertising by addressing the quantity, height 
and area of freestanding signs on all sites. 

2. Each property, lot or parcel of record within any commercial or industrial zoning district 
of the city is permitted the following: 

• One freestanding sign on each street frontage, except that a gasoline service 
station may have one additional trade name or pricing sign if the premises has 
only one street frontage and except that an automotive dealership may have one 
sign for each new car dealership. Frontage along a freeway or interstate highway 
is not considered street frontage. 

• Directional or instructional signs which do not advertise a business, other than the 
business logo but which identify restrooms, public telephones, walkways or signs 
providing direction, such as parking lot entrances and exit signs and those of a 
similar nature. Directional signs are limited to one sign per driveway approach 
and shall not exceed an area of six ( 6) square feet. 

3 .  Sign Height: 
• The maximum height of a freestanding sign shall be twenty five feet (25') if 

located on property abutting a street right of way having a twenty five (25) mile 
per hour or less speed limit. 

• The maximum height of a freestanding sign shall be thirty five feet (35') if located 
on property abutting a street right of way having a speed limit greater than twenty 
five (25) miles per hour. 

• The maximum height of a freestanding sign shall be forty five feet ( 45') if located 
on property within one hundred feet ( I 00') of the Interstate Route 80 right of way. 

4. Sign Area: 

• The maximum area of a freestanding sign shall be two (2) square feet of sign area 
for every one linear foot of building frontage facing the adjacent street. 

5 .  The applicant has stated that freeway visibility is crucial to their business. The property is 
within I 00' of the 1-80 right-of-way and therefore can be a maximum height of forty five 
feet (45'). 

The proposed sign exceeds the sign the allowable area stipulated in Section 3-9 of city code. 

FINDINGS 

I .  The proposed use and under a variance is in conformance with the Land Use Component 
of the Master Plan is consistent with existing land uses in the immediate vicinity. 

Page 4 ofS 



VAR4- 18  

Kenworth Sales Company 

2. The property is not located within the redevelopment area and consideration of the plan is 
not required. 

3 .  There are no signage regulations stipulated in Section 3 -2- 1 1  of the City code. 

4. In accordance with section 3-2-22, the applicant has demonstrated that the property has 
unique circumstances based on that fact the building orientation has the shortest length 
parallel to Ruby Vista and the longest length along Statice Street, therefore, the sign area 
is calculated on the shortest length of the building. The size and orientation of the parcel 
would not accommodate a different orientation for the structure. 

5 .  In accordance with Section 3-2-22, the applicant has demonstrated that the allowable sign 
area equates 196 square feet versus the 200 square feet that is the standard trademark sign 
for the company. This circumstance would require a custom made sign and associate 
design for the sign infrastructure. Additionally, visibility from the adjacent freeway is an 
important consideration for the business. 

6. In accordance with section 3-2-22, the other two parcels in the vicinity, fronting Ruby 
Vista are already fully developed and the cited conditions therefore do not generally 
apply to other properties in the area. 

7. Granting of the variance will not result in material damage or prejudice to other 
properties in the vicinity. This finding is based on the distance separation from the 
proposed sign to the adjacent properties and 

8. Granting of the variance will not substantially impair the intent or purpose of the zoning 
ordinance. The area as currently developed, in addition to the proposed signage will not 
result distractions and obstructions that may adversely affect or conflict with traffic 
control signs, signals and other traffic control devices. In addition, granting of the 
variance will not result in visual clutter along streets and roadways and will provide each 
sign user an opportunity for effective identification and advertising by addressing the 
quantity, height and area of freestanding signs on all sites. 

9. Granting of the variance will not impair natural resources. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends this item be conditionally approved with the following conditions: 

Planning Department: 

1 .  Compliance with all staff recommendations. 
2. Commencement within one year and completion within eighteen ( 1 8 )  months. A sign 

permit is required for the work. 
3 .  Conformance to plans approved as a part of the variance. 
4. Subject to review in two (2) years if determined necessary by the Planning 

Commission. 

Page 5 of 5 



CITY OF ELKO 

DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
1755 COLLEGE AVENUE 

ELKO, NEVADA 89801 
(775)777-7210 

(775)777-7219 FAX 

To: Elko City Planning Commission 
From: Jeremy Draper, Development Manager 
RE: Variance 4-18, Kenworth Sales Company 
Date: March 22, 2018 

The City of Elko Development Department is providing this correspondence to aid the 
Planning Commission's review of Variance Application 4-18 .  

Proiect Information 

• The property is located generally at the intersection of Statice Street and Ruby 
Vista Drive. 

• The property is identified as APN 001-860-110 .  
•  The parcel is currently developed. 
• The parcel is currently zoned IBP-Industrial Business Park. 

C:\Users\Sarchuleta\Downloads\Var 4-18 Kenworth Sign ( 1 ).docx 
Created by Jeremy Draper 



Page 2 of 4 

• The parcel is 6.85 acres. 

• The property is bound by IBP to the southwest, and IBP and IC to the north. 

• The property is not located within a FEMA Floodzone. 

• The application is for a variance from ECG 3-9-7(C)(1 ), specifically the allowable 
square footage of the sign 

• The applicant requests to have a sign that is a total of 200 square feet. 

• ECG 3-9-7(C)(1) allows a sign to be 2 square feet for every 1 l inear foot of 
bui lding frontage facing the adjacent street. 

• The allowable sign of a sign place on Ruby Vista Drive is 194  square feet. 

Master Plan 

Land Use: 

• The Land Use component of the Master Plan identifies this area as Industrial 
Business Park 

Transportation 

• The property fronts Ruby Vista Dr, a Minor Arterial, and Statice St an Industrial 
Collector. 

Elko Wellhead Protection Plan 

• The property is located within the 2-year capture zone. 

Section 3-2-11-A-IBP-lndustrial Business Park 

• Conformance with this section is required 

Section 3-2-17-Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations 

• Conformance with this section is required 

Section 3-2-22-Variances 

Procedure 

• The applicant states the section of code from which the variance has been 
requested. 

• A legal description of the parcel has been provided. 

• F i l l ing fees have been deposited with the Planning Department. 

Application Requirements 



Page 3 of 4 

• There are special circumstances or features, i .e. , unusual shape, 
configuration, exceptional topographic conditions or other extraordinary 
situations or conditions applying to the property under consideration. 
The special circumstance(s) cited in the application has a standard sign size 
used nationwide for their offices, the property is located adjacent to 1-80, 

separated only by Ruby Vista Drive. 
• The special circumstance or extraordinary situation or condition results in 

exceptional practical difficulties or exceptional undue hardships, and 
where the strict application of the provision or requirement constitutes an 
abridgment of property right and deprives the property owner of 
reasonable use of property. 
The applicant indicates a variance is required to keep their sign standard and not 
require a custom sign for this property. 

• Such special circumstances or conditions do not apply generally to other 
properties in the same zoning district. 
The applicant indicates a variance is required to keep their sign standard and not 
require a custom sign for this property. 

• The granting of the variance will not result in material damage or prejudice 
to other properties in the vicinity, nor be detrimental to the public interest, 
health, safety and general welfare. 
It does appear that granting of the variance wil l not result in material damage or 
prejudice to other properties in the vicinity, nor will granting of the variance be 
detrimental to the interest, health, safety and general welfare of the public. The 
sign code is designed to reduce the clutter from having multiple signs along a 
frontage, and to promote effective signage throughout the city. Due to the large 
frontage for this property and the proximity to 1-80 the increased size of the sign 
appears appropriate. 

• The granting of the variance will not substantially impair the intent or 
purpose of the zoning ordinance or effect a change of land use or zoning 
classification. 
It does appear that granting of the variance will not substantially impair the intent 
or purpose of the Zoning Ordinance or effect a change in the land use. 

• The granting of the variance will not substantially impair affected natural 
resources. 
The Development Department has determined that granting of the variance wil l  
not impair natural resources. 

Findings 

1 .  The special circumstance cited in the application is the applicant has a standard 
sign size used nationwide for their offices, the property is located adjacent to 1 -  

8 0 ,  separated only by Ruby Vista Drive. 
2 .  The applicant indicates a variance is required to keep their sign standard and not 

require a custom sign for this property. 



Page 4 of 4 

3. It does appear that granting of the variance will not result in material damage or 
prejudice to other properties in the vicinity, nor wil l granting of the variance be 
detrimental to the interest, health, safety and general welfare of the publ ic. The 
sign code is designed to reduce the clutter from having multiple signs along a 
frontage, and to promote effective signage throughout the city. Due to the large 
frontage for this property and the proximity to 1-80 the increased size of the sign 
appears appropriate. 

4. Granting of the variance will not substantially impair the intent or purpose of the 
zoning ordinance. 

5. Granting of the variance will not impair natural resources. 

Recommendation 

The City of Elko Development Department recommends that the variance for the size 
of the sign to be increased to 200 square feet be approved. 



\
 \

 

\
 \

 

-1< 
\ 

A 
� 

' 
� :

 
\

 \
 

.
-

 

,
 

.• 

00
 

�
 

l>
 

=
 

II
 � 

z
 � ,..... ,.....
 � =
 

:z
 

0
 � G)
 

z
 

0
 

CD
 

en
 

0
 

-c
 

en
 

0
 

0
 

w
 

.;;
 "'
 

"'
 

z
 

::e
 

0
 

,,
 

....
 

:z:
 

....
 

,,
 

c:
 

0
 � z
 " 



INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED 0/S PYLON SIGN 
Qty 1 Internally Illuminated D/S Pylon Sign 
3m Translucent Printed Flex Faces 
Gerber High Performance Translucent Red. Black & Yellow Vinyl 
. 063 Aluminum Retainers and Returns Painted Black 
Square Tube Aluminum Accents Painted Black 

A 
I. Sreel Pole 8 Frame Steel Angle 

2. L.E D l1ghrlng 
' 

Fuse 

J. Aluminum Panel 10 Ballast 

mmm:I 4 Wireway Cover I I  Alum,num Retainers 

5 . Soc1cetl 

6 Drain Holes IJ Aluminum s,aes 

7. Junction Box 14 Frame Steel Angle 

P O L E / P Y L O N  S I G N  

· c u st o m e r  to Supply Kenworth Cabinet for IG Installation 

RECEIVED 

MAR 1 3 20 1 8  

268.46 sq.ft. (total) :34'-0" 

[ I  
I---  6'-4 ,, ... 

5'-0" 

15'-2" 

Dl6tance &et.wun Pipes 

45'-0" 

16'-0" � 
"' 
"' � 
. c 
"' o 

Jl 
-g 

20'-0" � 
� 
. 

� 
Jl 
-g 

� 4'-0" i+- 
1 1  a-o 1 1  

_j,'-6'� 14'-6'/•" ____j,._6'� 

���-��-:-�-��-�-,'--��-�--�-'.N-,:-:-�-s.�-,;-S_P_YL_D_N_SI_G_N����� 
FILE PATH: NEW JOBSD I KENWORTH TRUCKING I ELKO I DESIGN I  KW E PS 003-18 

Kenworth 
4224 Ruby Vista Drive 
Elko, Nevada 89801 

OUIGNI 

KW E PS 003-18 

DATE OlSl(iilUII 

03/12/18 MAT 

Al Latimer 801.558.6420 

© MS OflA.Wl"-GWM (RE.Alto 

TO ASSIST YOU INVISUAUllNG 

OVA PAOPOSAL ANO CAt,INOT 

8E(Of'IEOOl.i.£\IISE.OINAH'f 

FOAM. THE OIIIGINAL IOtAS 

H(RflNAAffl,4EUCLUSNf 

PIIQPUltYO� IGG-OlJP. 

,,, ��;�A�-���:':::,. 
UFIA�UI\M_A 



0
 

0
 

0
 

-<
 

0
 

0
 

O')
 

......
 

0
 

-0
 

......
 

00
 

......
 

z
 

o
 

en
 

g;
 

0
 

n
o

 
0

 ......
 

0
 

0
 ......

 
0

 
O')

 ......
 

O')
 

c..n
 

Vl
 :;,o

 
C

m
 

m
 -o

 

e
 :;,o

 J>
 

r
 l>

 

:3
 

m
 r

 
;;:,:;:

 z
 

OJ
 -i

 
_o

 
J>

 

:;,o
 

-<
 

m
 

Q
 

�
 

�
. 

n
 z

 
-i

 m
 

I
n

 
-<

 

0
 0

 
0

 

-
 

r
 �

 

�
 

"Tl
 

2
 m

 

0-
 

z
 -0

 
2..

 
G)

 :;,o
 

0
 

Vl
 O

 

�
 

r
 -o

 
;:)

 
r

m
 

n
 :;,o

 
r»

 
::j

 

�
 

m
 

Vl
 

O')
 

-
 

r
 

-
 

C9
 

r
 

n
 

n
 n

 
o

-
 

-0
 

-i
 O

 
�

 
J>

 z
 

J>
 

X
 m

 
0

 

0
 �

 
0

 

�
 �

 
......

 

-i
 O

 
z

 
-i

 

�
 

z
 

z
 

G)
 

-0
 O')

 
O

w
 

......
 -0

 

OJ
 O')

 
---J

 �
 

c..n
 

O
w

 
c..n

 J>
 

x
 Vl

 
n

 0
 

00
 �

 
0

 0
 

0
 0

 
r

 N
 

---J
O

 
r

 
L

 
O

r
 

m
 

m
 

G)
 

:;,o
 

m
 

�
 

Vl
 

J>
 

G)
 

<
 

:;,o
 

m
 
-
· 

m
 

g
 

m
 

z
 

n
 

(:)
 

:;,o
 

�
 

:;,o
 

G)
 

m
 

:;,o
 

Z
 

m
 

O
m

 

z
 z

 
<

 �
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

<
 

r
 

r
 

J>
 

G)
 

m
 

n
 

0
 

00
 00

 
(.()

 0
 

c..n
 ......

 

0
 ......

 

-;,J
 �

 
00

 c..n
 

0
 0

 
---J

 ......
 

0
 ......

 

00
 -0

 
�

 N
 

0
 -0

 
......

 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Elko City 
Planning Commission will conduct a series of public 
hearings on Tuesday, April 3 ,  2 0 1 8  beginning at 5 : 30  
P .M.  P.D.S.T.  at Elko City Hall, 1 7 5 1  College Avenue, 
Elko, Nevada, and that the public is invited to provide 
input and testimony on these matters under 
consideration in person, by writing, or by 
representative. 

The specific item to be considered under public hearing 
format is :  

Variance No. 4-18, filed by Al Latimer on behalf of 
Kenworth Sales Company, for an increase in the 
allowable sign area from 194 square feet to 275 
square feet within an IBP (Industrial Business 
Park) Zoning District, and matters related 
thereto. The subject property is located generally 
on the corner of the intersection of Ruby Vista 
Drive and Statice Street. ( 4224 Ruby Vista Dr. - 
APN 001-860-110) 

Additional information concerning this item may be 
obtained by contacting the Elko City Planning 
Department at (77 5) 777- 7 160 .  

ELKO CITY PLANNING COMMISSION 



CITY OF ELKO PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

1751 College Avenue * Elko * Nevada * 89801 

(775) 777-7160 * (775) 777-72191.RECEIVED 

MAK 1 3 20 1 8  

APPLICATION FOR VARIANCE 

APPLICANT(s):IKenworth Sales Company 
MAILING ADDRESS:!2125 s. Constitution Blvd, WVC, UT 84119 
PHONE NO (Home] I  (Business)l801-487-4161 
NAME OF PROPERTY OWNER (If different):!.__ _, 

(Property owner's consent in writing must be provided.) 

MAILING ADDRESS:,_! ------------------------' 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND LOCATION OF PROPERTY INVOLVED (Attach if necessary): 
ASSESSOR'S PARCEL N0.: !001-860-11'1.Q !Addressl4224 Ruby Vista Dr. 

Lot(s), Block(s), &Subd�i�vi�s�io�n�'-------------------� 
OrParce l (s )&F i le  No.l .... 5_95_9_7_4 __, 

FILING REQUIREMENTS : 

I  

Complete Application Form: In order to begin processing the application, an application form 
must be complete and signed. Complete app l ications are due at least 21 days prior to the next 
schedu led meeting of the Elko City Planning Commission (meetings are the 1st  Tuesday of 
every month). 

Fee: A $500.00 non-refundable fee must be paid. If in conjunction with a Rezone Application a 
$250.00 non-refundable fee must be paid. 

Plot Plan :  A plot plan provided by a properly licensed surveyor depicting the existing condition 
drawn to scale showing property lines, existing and proposed bui ldings, building setbacks, 
parking and loading areas, driveways and other pertinent information must be provided. 

Elevation P lan :  E levation profile of a l l  proposed bui ldings or a lterations in sufficient deta i l to 
expla in the nature of the request must be provided. 

Note: One .pdf of the entire application must be submitted as well as one set of legible , 
reproducible plans 8 W' x 1 1 "  in size. If the applicant feels the Commission needs to see 24" x 
36" plans, 1 0  sets of pre-folded plans must be submitted. 

Other Information: The applicant is encouraged to submit other information and documentation 

Revised 1 /24/18 Page 1 



The APPLICANT requests the following variance from the following section of the zoning 

ordinance: 

3-9-7 C . 1  

1 .  The existing zoning classification of the propert, I 

2. The applicant shall present adequate evidence demonstrating the following criteria which are 

necessary for the Planning Commission to grant a variance: 

a) Identify any special circumstances, features or conditions applying to the property under 
consideration. i .e . ,  unusual shape, configuration, exceptional topographic conditions or 
other extraordinary situations or conditions 

Our trade mark Kenworth sign is 200 sq. ft. with and additional 3 signs at�·. 
7e,vyhDnt cmvo 

I>-) I A\ w*irY1eH 

-� 
b) Identify how such circumstances, features or conditions result in practical difficulty or 

undue hardship and deprive the property owner of reasonable use of property. 

If we do not have a variance we will  have to custom make a new s i g n  

c) Indicate how the granting of the variance is necessary for the applicant or owner to 
make reasonable use of the property. 

Freeway visibi l i ty is crucial to our business. 

d) Identify how such circumstances, features or conditions do not apply generally to other 
properties in the same Land Use District. 

Many businesses depend on local traffic while we depend on freeway visibility. 

5x6 

Revised 1 /24/18 Page 2 



e) Indicate how the granting of the variance will not result in material damage or prejudice 
to other properties in the vicinity nor be detrimental to the public health, safety and 
general welfare. 

The sign will be constructed as not harm any other property. 

f) Indicate how the variance will not be in conflict with the purpose or intent of the Code. 

The sign wil l be a pole/road sign visible from the freeway. 

g) Indicate how the granting of the variance will not result in a change of land use or zoning 
classification. 

No changes as the sign is for identification only. 

h) Indicate how granting of the variance will not substantially impair affected natural 
resources. 

jThe sign wil l  be well constructed and elevated.I 
3. Describe your ability (i .e. sufficient funds or a loan pre-approval letter on hand) and intent to 

construct within one year as all variance approvals must commence construction within one year 

cu C d S f 3 2 22 F 1 th "th" 1 8  t  r  I  t  d  an comp e e cons rue ion w, in mon s per I :V o e ec 1on  -  -  . . .  

Already under construction. 

(Use additional pages if necessary to address questions 2a through h) 

This area intentionally left blank 

Revised 1/24/18 Page 3 



By My Signature below: 

� I consent to having the City of Elko Staff enter on my property only for the sole purpose of 
inspecting said property as part of this application process. 
D I object to having the City of Elko Staff enter onto my property as a part of their review of 
this application. (Your objection will not affect the recommendation made by the staff or the final determination 
made by the City Planning Commission or the City Council.) 

ii I  acknowledge that submission of this application does not imply approval of this request by 
the City Planning Department, the City Planning Commission and the City Counci l ,  nor does it in and of itself guarantee issuance of any other required permits and/or licenses. 
i::{ I  acknowledge that this application may be tabled until a later meeting if either I or my 
designated representative or agent is not present at the meeting for which this application is scheduled. 
Q( I  have carefully read and completed al l  questions contained within this application to the 
best of my ability. 
Applicant I Agentl __ ij_..,_\___.� ............ -"-t--'1-· .si\Q��t{ __. (Please print or type) 
Mail ing Address I ��G \\. \���, \JL�'n\M ct'-\(Bf) Street Address or P.O. "Box 

City, State, Zip Code 
Phone Number ��6�� ] 
Email address:/ =;:;c== =·(� 

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 

File No.: _Y - ..._!<2> __ Date Filed: 3 / 1 t2 /  I t)  Fee Paid:$5(,X) C'l.±t: 7:pqq 

Revised 1 /24/18 Page4 



March 1 5 ,  2  0  1 8  

Kenworth Sales 
Company 

RECEIVED 

MAR 1 5 2018 

Treadway Investment Company LLC consents to a sign variance for 
Kenworth Sales Company located at 4224 Ruby Vista Drive, Elko, NV. 

Kyle Treadway - President 

2125 S. CONSTITUTION BLVD. WEST VALLEY CITY, UT 84119 (801) 487-4161 FAX: (801) 467-3820 
IDAHO MONTANA NEVADA OREGON UTAH WASHINGTON WYOMING 

WWW.KENWORTHSALESCO.COM 



Shelby Archuleta 

From: 

Sent: 

To: 

Subject: 

Al Latimer <alanlat imer@aol .com> 

Thursday, March 1 5 ,  20 18  3:44 PM 

Shelby Archuleta 

Re: Variance Application 

Hello Shelby 
Information you have requested. One You are correct on the APN # please change to 001-860-1 10 .  
Two the signs below Kenworth sign are 5' x 5' .  
Three Treadway Investment is the parent co. to Kenworth. 
I wil l send you a letter from Treadway that i just received next. Then i wil l  call you to make sure you received everything 
Thanks for al l your help. 
Al 

Al Latimer 
IG Sign 
Sales Manager 

C 801 .558.6420 
0 801766 0464 
F 801 .  766 0466 

880 North 100 East 
Lehi , Utah 84043 

-----Original Message----- 
From Shelby Archuleta <sarchuleta@elkocitynv.gov> 
To: alanlatimer <alanlatimer@aol .com> 
Sent: Thu, Mar 1 5 ,  2 0 1 8  9: 1 5  am 
Subject: Variance Application 

Good Morning, 

I  would l ike to verify a few things on the variance appl icat ion for Kenworth. 

On the application the APN is 00 1 -860- 1 1 1 ,  but the APN for 4224 Ruby Vista Dr is 001-860-110 .  Is it ok if I 
change that on the Application? 

In the application the lower signs are listed as 6x6, but on the visual they are 5x5. I need to know which one it 
is going to be to input the sq ft for the sign. 

You have listed Kenworth Sales Company as the property owner, but I am showing Treadway Investment 
Co, LLC as the property owner. I will need verification of the property owner, and if Treadway is a parent 
company of Kenworth I ' l l  just need that in writ ing. 

Please let me know if you need clarification on anything. If I do not receive response to these questions by the end of 

the day (3/15) I  wi l l  have to move the Variance to the May 151 Planning Commiss ion Meeting. 

Thank you! 

1 



Agenda Item # I.B.1 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1 .  Title: Review and consideration of Annexation No. 1-18, filed by Legend Engineering, 
on behalf of Ed and Sharon Netherton and JoyGlobal Surface Mining Inc., consisting 
of approximately 32.74 acres of property located southwest of the intersection of P 
and H Drive and West Idaho Street, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE 
ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: April 3, 2018 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS, MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS, PETITIONS, AND 

COMMUNICATIONS 

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 

5. Background Information: The subject properties are located at the intersection of 
West Idaho Street and P & H Drive (APN 006-09N-004, 007 & 009). 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Memo from Development Director, 
Memo from City Planner 

8. Recommended Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt an 
ordinance which conditionally approves Annexation No. 1-18 subject to the 
following conditions: (stated in City Planner memo) 

9. Findings: 

• The petitioner is not requesting an amendment to the Land Use Component of the 
Master Plan. The existing land use of one of the properties is consistent with the 
Master Plan. The remaining properties are vacant. The annexation and subsequent 
zone classification of the properties must conform to the Master Plan. 

• The proposed annexation and existing land uses are compatible with the 
Transportation Component of the Master Plan. Master Plan. 

• The proposed annexation is consistent with the goals, objectives and supports long 
range planning as outlined in the Development Feasibility, Land Use, Water 
Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure and 
Annexation Potential Report dated November 2012. 

• The proposed annexation is in conformance with the City's Airport Master Plan. 

• In conformance with NRS 268.636(1) the property owners have submitted a map 
showing a boundary contiguous to the city of approximately 35%. 

Created on 12/13/2016 Planning Commission Action Sheet 



Agenda Item# I.B.1 

• In conformance with NRS 268.646(2), inclusive, it has been determined that the 
proposed annexation satisfies considerations and/or concerns identified as minimum 
factors for consideration under. 

• In conformance with NRS 268.646(3), it has been determined that the proposed 
annexation will not have any long-term adverse impacts on adjacent areas nor will 
the proposed annexation and development of the property have an adverse influence 
the local government structure of the County or the City. 

• In conformance with NRS 268.646( 4), it has been that the proposed annexation will 
not place a burden of the availability of water, the requirement for water or have a 
negative impact other natural resources in the area. 

• In conformance with NRS 268.646(5) it has been determined that the area proposed 
for annexation does not fall under the jurisdiction of the Bureau of Land 
Management. 

• In conformance with NRS 268.646(6) it has been determined that The City of Elko is 
not required nor does it have an annexation program adopted and certified 
pursuant to NRS 268.625. The proposed annexation is consistent with the Land Use 
component of the Master Plan and the adopted Development Feasibility, Land Use, 
Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure, Transportation 
Infrastructure and Annexation Potential Report dated November 2012. 

• In conformance with NRS 268.663(3), although not required, it has been determined 
that all portions of County roads that provide primary access to the area have been 
or will be annexed into the City and will become City streets. 

• The annexation application identifies the zoning classification upon annexation as a 
Light Industrial District. At this time, a zone application has not been filed in 
conjunction with the annexation petition. Future zone designation must conform 
with section 3-2-4 of city code. 

• The proposed annexation is in conformance with the City's Wellhead Protection 
Plan. 

• Annexation of the property provides an immediate accrual to the tax base for the 
City. 

• Annexation of the property provides an opportunity for expanded Light Industrial 
uses. 

• The area proposed for annexation is not localized or isolated. 

• Other, required, utilities will be installed at developer expense to facilitate 
development of the properties. 

Created on 12/13/2016 Planning Commission Action Sheet 



Agenda Item# I.B.1 

• The topography of the area is well suited for the proposed light industrial land uses. 

• Expanded uses on the properties will result in a positive economic impact to the 
community. 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

1 1 .  Agenda Distribution: Ed and Sharon Netherton 

1072 Kahaapo Loop 
Kihei, ID 96753 
Email: ednetherton@gmail.com 

JoyGlobal Surface Mining Inc. 
4450 P&H Drive 
Elko, NV 89801 
Robert.richens@mining.komatsu 

Legend Engineering 
Lonny Reed 
52 West 100 North 
Heber City, UT 84032 
lonny@legendenginnering.com 

Created on 12/13/2016 Planning Commission Action Sheet 



STAFF COMMENT FLOW SHEET 

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA DATE: lJ J 3 **Do not use pencil or red pen, they do not reproduce** 
Title: A DO ) - ) <2> 

Applicant(s) �= � ,\-&bc\��� Site L o c a t i o n : � rtlf &l  c,i �  tt'br,ve 

Current Zoning:_£0� Oat� Received: 3}1:) 1 Cb Date Public Notice: A} /A 
coMMENT l h i' S  1 :s.  :±n I YJr ve as e  '--\Lu. � f:noa:ticJ' � 31. -=/LJ 

o eve::> 

**If additional space is needed please provide a separate memorandum** 

' { ; 

Ini t ia l  
City�anager: Date:�����-���/-������������������� 

AJo lotM.v\:'.\�IA-t.>/i-oet (4cu1 S: · 

Initial 



City of Elko 
1751 College Avenue 

Elko, NV 89801 
(775) 777-7160 

FAX (775) 777-7119 

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT 

DATE: 

PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: 
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: 
APPLICATION NUMBER: 
APPLICANT: 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 

March 19, 2018 
April 3, 2018 
I.B.1 
Annexation 1-18 
Legend Engineering on behalf of JoyGlobal 
Surface Mining Inc. & Ed and Sharon Netherton 
±32.74 Acres 

An annexation of approximately 32.74 acres. The property is located in Elko County 
adjacent to the City's incorporated boundary as shown below. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

RECOMMEND AP PROV AL, subject to findings of fact and conditions as stated in this report. 

Page I of I I  



ANNEXATION 1 - 1 8  

APN: 006-09N-004, 007 & 009 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

PARCEL NUMBER: 

PARCEL SIZE: 

EXISTING ZONING: 

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: 

EXISTING LAND USE: 

006-09N-004, 006-09N-007 & 006-09N-009 

32.74 Acres 

Light Industrial (Elko County Zoning) 

Industrial Business Park (IND-BS-PARK) 

Light Industrial - Joy Global Surface Mining parcel 
and no existing land use for vacant parcels owned 
by Ed and Sharon Netherton. 

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS: 

• The property is surrounded by: 

o North: Light Industrial (LI) I Developed 
o West: General Agriculture (AG) I Undeveloped 
o South: General Agriculture (AG) I Undeveloped 

o East: General Agriculture (AG) I Undeveloped 

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS: 

• The area is currently undeveloped on parcels 006-09N -007 & 006-09N-009 and 
developed on parcel 006-09N-004 with a light industrial land use. 

• The area is generally flat. 
• The area is accessed from West Idaho Street and P & H Drive. 

MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS: 

Applicable Master Plan Sections, NRS Sections and City Code Sections and other coordinating 
plans are: 

• City of Elko Master Plan- Land Use Component 
• City of Elko Master Plan - Transportation Component 
• City of Elko Development Feasibility, Land Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer 

Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure and Annexation Potential Report dated 
November 2012 

• Nevada Revised Statutes - 268 .610 to 268.670, inclusive 
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts 
• City of Elko Wellhead Protection Program 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

1 .  The petition has been filed by Legend Engineering on behalf of the property owners. 
2. There are two separate property owners petitioning for annexation. 

Page 2 of 1 1  



-------------------------------------·�- - - ·  

ANNEXATION 1 - 1 8  

APN: 006-09N-004, 007 & 009 

3 .  The properties are owned by Harnischfeger, the parent company to Joy Global Surface 
Mining, (APN 006-09N-004) and Ed and Sharon Netherton. 

4. The petition includes all of APN 006-09N-004 (JoyGlobal), 007 & 009 (Netherton). The 
properties are located west of the 298 interchange on 1-80 at the intersection of P & H 
Drive and West Idaho Street. 

5 .  The City Council accepted the petition for the subject annexation on March 27, 20 18 ,  and 
directed Staff to continue with the annexation process by referring the matter to the 
Planning Commission. 

6. The area fronts West Idaho Street and P & H Drive. 
7. The area is identified as having annexation potential in the adopted Development 

Feasibility, Land Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure, Transportation 
Infrastructure and Annexation Potential Report dated November 2012 .  

8. City utilities have not been extended to the properties. 
9. The developed property is served by a water well intended to serve several properties in 

the immediate vicinity. Currently Joy Global and Coach USA facilities are utilizing the 
well for water service. The City of Elko provided water rights for development of the 
well under an agreement that requires relinquishment of the water rights to the City upon 
annexation of the properties. The agreement is between Joy Global and the City. 

10 .  In 2016 ,  The City of Elko extended the water line down Cattle Drive to a location near 
the properties. 

1 1 .  Sewer has not been extended to the area. Existing facilities in the area utilize septic for 
sanitary sewer. 

12 .  Other non-city utilities are located in the immediate area. 
1 3 .  Annexation of the properties promotes development and utilizes the Exit 298 interchange 

for the full benefit of the City. 
14 .  Elko County was notified of the proposed annexation on March 9, 2 0 1 8 .  The County has 

expressing that they have no concerns. 
1 5 .  The applicant has not applied for a rezone application at this time. 
16 .  There is an assignment and assumption of water rights agreement, dated November 1 ,  

20 18 ,  between the City and Joy Global Surface Mining in which the City approved the 
assignment of a water rights agreement between the City and Calvin Dean Stitzel and 
Marilyn E. Lund for use of 58 acre feet of water to develop certain properties identified 
in the agreement. The agreement contains a provision requiring the transfer of the water 
rights back to the City in the event the area is annexed into the City and the City is 
required to furnish water from its system. 

MASTER PLAN: 

Land Use: 

1 .  Land Use is shown as Industrial Business Park. 
2. The annexation application identifies the zoning classification upon annexation as a Light 

Industrial District. At this time, a zone application has not been filed in conjunction with 
the annexation petition. 

3 .  Supporting zone districts for Industrial Business Park are Industrial Business Park, Light 
Industrial and Industrial Commercial. 

Page 3 of 1 1  



ANNEXATION 1 - 1 8  
APN: 006-09N-004, 007 & 009 

4. The petitioner is not proposing any amendments to the Land Use Component of the 
Master Plan as a result of the annexation petition as provided for under Section 3-2-4(0) 
of City code. 

5. The existing land use of one of the properties is consistent with the designated land use 
and the remaining properties are vacant. 

6. Future zone classification of the properties are required to conform with the Master Plan. 
Objective 5 :  Encourage development that strengthens the core of the City, and new 
annexations that are logical and orderly and do not promote sprawl. 

7. Objective 7: Promote high quality and visually appealing industrial uses, where 
appropriate, to promote economic sustainability and strengthen the community's image. 

8. Objective 8 :  Encourage new development that does not negatively impact County-wide 
natural systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, 
floodplains etc., or pose a danger to human health and safety. 

The petitioner is not requesting an amendment to the Land Use Component of the Master Plan. 
The existing land use of one of the properties is consistent with the Master Plan. The remaining 
properties are vacant. The annexation and subsequent zone classification of the properties must 
conform to the Master Plan. 

Transportation: 

I .  The area will be accessed from West Idaho Street. 
2. West Idaho Street is classified as a Minor Collector. 
3 .  The area is near the Exit 298 and 1-80 interchange. 

The proposed annexation and existing land uses are compatible with the Transportation 
Component of the Master Plan. Master Plan. 

DEVELOPMENT FEASIBILITY, LAND USE, WATER INFRASTRUCTURE, 
SANITARY SEWER INFRASTRUCTURE, TRANSPORTATION INFRASTRUCTURE 
AND ANNEXATION POTENTIAL REPORT - NOVEMBER 2012 

1 .  The area is identified as having annexation potential in the adopted Development 
Feasibility, Land Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure, Transportation 
Infrastructure and Annexation Potential Report dated November 20 12 .  That plan, for the 
most part, identified areas as having annexation based on established of transportation 
and utility corridors potential in the plan. 

2. The property is adjacent to developed land within the City of Elko. 
3 .  The area can be served from the existing 5400 water zone. A water main was constructed 

along Cattle Drive in 2016.  
4. Developable area is estimated to be approximately 32.74 acres. The property owned by 

Joy Global Surface Mining is partially developed. The property owned by Ed and Sharon 
Netherton is not developed. 

5 .  Sewer is currently not available in this location. The city has completed preliminary 
design work for the establishment of sanitary sewer in the area. 

6. Annexation of the area is a logical and orderly expansion of the City's incorporated 
boundary. 

7. As stipulated in the assignment and assumption of water rights agreement, dated 
November 1 ,  20 18 ,  between the City and Joy Global Surface Mining, the City will 
receive a benefit of 58 acre feet of water transferred back to the City upon annexation of 
the properties. 

Page 4 of 1 1  



ANNEXATION 1 - 1 8  
APN: 006-09N-004, 007 & 009 

The proposed annexation is consistent with the goals, objectives and supports long range 
planning as outlined in the Development Feasibility, Land Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary 
Sewer Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure and Annexation Potential Report dated 
November 2012 .  

AIRPORT MASTER PLAN 

1 .  The area is partially located within the defined runway approach airspace area delineated 
in the airport master plan. 

2. Development within the area will restricted in accordance 14  CFR Part 77.9. 
3 .  The restrictions stipulated in the federal code are not expected to have a significant, if 

any, impact on property development under the allowable land use stipulated in city 
which are in conformance with the City Master Plan. 

The proposed annexation is in conformance with the City's Airport Master Plan. 

NEVADA REVISED STATUTE: 

NRS 268.636(1) states whenever the majority of property owners of any territory lying 
contiguous to a city desire to annex such territory to the city, they may cause an accurate map of 
plat of the territory to be made under the supervision of a competent surveyor. The map is to be 
filed with the city. 

The property owner's representative has submitted the required map. The applicants owns the 
entire area proposed for annexation. The property boundary is approximately 7,269.5 feet with 
2,597.2 feet contiguous to City of Elko boundary on the north, south and easterly lot lines. This 
equates to approximately 35% of the property boundary as contiguous to the City's incorporated 
boundary. 

NRS 268.646 requires minimum factors to be considered in the review of a proposed 
annexation. 

NRS 268.646(1) requires the evaluation of factors such as population, population density, land 
area and land uses, per capita assessed valuation, topography, proximity to other populated areas 
and the likelihood of significant growth within the next 10  years in the area and adjacent areas. 

The total area proposed for annexation is approximately 32. 74 acres. The Elko County 
Assessor's Office indicates initial development of the property occurring in 2001 under the 
current use. 

The location and proposed land uses of the area are supported by existing and proposed 
roadways. 

There is a high probability of property development based on recent and current property 
development in the immediate vicinity. Joy Global Surface Mining is planning the development 
of a new regional facility. This is due to the water line extension to 1-80 Exit 298. 

NRS 268.646 (2) requires the evaluation for the need for organized community services, the 
present cost of and adequacy of governmental services and controls in the area, probable future 
needs for such services and controls, and the probable effect of the proposed formation and of 
alternative courses of action on the cost and adequacy of services and controls in the area and 
adjacent area. 

Page 5 of 1 1  



ANNEXATION 1 - 1 8  '  
APN: 006-09N-004, 007 & 009 

General 

Annexation of the property does provide the opportunity to provide continued light industrial 
land use along West Idaho Street. West Idaho Street is classified as a major arterial and falls 
under NDOT jurisdiction. The location provides excellent access to either 1-80 or the 
community. 

Land Division and Potential Zoning 

APN 006-09N-004 is partially developed with a light industrial land use. APN 006-09N-007 & 

009 are undeveloped. 

The application identifies the zoning classification that is being requested upon annexation of the 
property as Light Industrial. At this time a zone application has not been filed with the City. The 
purpose of the (LI) Light Industrial zoning district is to provide and preserve areas reserved 
primarily for less intensive industrial use and activity normally associated with previously 
prepared materials and with minimal levels of noise, dust, odor, vibration or smoke, and to 
preclude encroachment of land uses such as residential uses that could be in conflict with the 
industrial and manufacturing environment. 

The proposed zoning would be complimentary to the land use shown in the Master Plan. 

Sewer 

Sanitary sewer does not exist in the immediate area. A dry gravity sewer will be installed along 
the frontage of the property until a time that the city can complete the installation of a lift station 
and force main to the WRF. The developed portion of the property is currently developed with 
the use of septic system. 

Water 

City of Elko water infrastructure is located in the immediate area at the north comer of the 
adjacent property owned by Coach USA. The area can be served off the existing 5400 water 
zone. 

The City of Elko will receive the benefit of 58 acre feet transferred back to the City upon 
annexation of the properties. 

Access 

Primary access is off P & H Drive. West Idaho Street, a major arterial, provides connectivity 
between P & H Drive, 1-80 and the City. 

Other Services 

The _size, location and use of the property will not place any significant burden on other City 
services. 

NRS 268.646(3) requires the evaluation of the proposed annexation and of alternative actions on 
adjacent areas, on mutual social and economic interests and on local governmental structure of 
the county. 

Page 6 of 1 1  



ANNEXATION 1 - 1 8  
APN: 006-09N-004, 007 & 009 

Annexation of the property will not have any long-term adverse impacts on adjacent areas. The 
property is partially developed. 

Annexation and development of the property will not adversely influence the local government 
structure of the County nor the City. 

NRS 268.646(4) requires the evaluation of the proposed annexation and of alternative actions 
upon the availability of water and requirement of water and other natural resources throughout 
the affected area. 

The City currently has approximately 18,000-acre feet of water rights available and is utilizing 
approximately 50% of that supply. Based on the Development Feasibility, Land Use, Water 
Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure and Annexation 
Potential Report dated November 2012, there was projected deficit of 700 - 800 (3.8% - 4.4% 
of the total) acre feet of water to serve annexed areas in addition to areas identified as a having 
annexation potential. Upon adoption of the report, the Council determined that through 
optimization of the plan and optimization of water usage, the projected shortfall did not present a 
significant concern. Areas identified in the report as having annexation potential provide orderly 
and logical growth of the City and are generally aligned with future transportation and utility 
corridors. 

The Council has taken action, subsequent to the adoption of the report, to approve a realignment 
of Errecart Blvd. reducing area required for annexation along the Errecart Blvd alignment. This 
decision has resulted in a net reduction of projected water consumption by over 500 acre feet, 
nearly offsetting the projected deficit referenced. 

Proper storm water controls would mitigate any potential impacts from storm water runoff 

Annexation of the property will not negatively impact other natural resources in the area. 

NRS 268.646(5) requires a determination by the Bureau of Land Management that the territory 
proposed to be annexed is suitable for residential, commercial, or industrial development, or will 
be opened to private acquisition. 

The area proposed for annexation does not fall under the jurisdiction of the Bureau of Land 
Management. 

NRS 268.646(6) requires a determination that the annexation is consistent with any applicable 
comprehensive regional plan, area plan or master plan and any program of annexation adopted 
and certified pursuant to NRS 268.625. 

The City of Elko is not required nor does it have a program adopted and certified pursuant to 
NRS 268.625. 

The City of Elko Master Plans specifically addresses the annexation of property under Objective 
5 as outlined in Best Practice 5 . 1  and Best Practice 5 .3 .  City Staff has identified areas having 
potential for annexation that promote logical and orderly growth of the community. Those areas 
are identified in the adopted Development Feasibility, Land Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary 
Sewer Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure and Annexation Potential Report dated 
November 2012 .  This area is identified as having annexation potential in the report. The 
proposed annexation is consistent with the goals, objectives and supports long range planning as 
outlined in the report. 

Page 7 of 1 1  



ANNEXATIO 1 - 1 8  

APN: 006-09N-004, 007 & 009 

The proposed annexation is consistent with the Land Use component of the Master Plan and the 
adopted Development Feasibility, Land Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure, 
Transportation Infrastructure and Annexation Potential Report dated November 2012 .  

NRS 268.663(3) requires the evaluation and possible annexation of County roadways under 
certain circumstances to possibly become city streets. 

The area proposed for annexation is not a subdivision and therefore the City is not required to 
annex entire roadways that provide primary access to the area. 

West Idaho Street appears to currently be located within the City of Elko. P & H Drive is 
included in the annexation application with the exception of the Yi street frontage of Coach USA 
that was previously annexed into the city with Annexation 1 - 1 6 .  

All of the roadways providing access to the area will be annexed into the City upon approval of 
the annexation. 

City Code Section 3-2-4 

The annexation application identifies the zoning classification upon annexation as a Light 
Industrial District. At this time, a zone application has not been filed in conjunction with the 
annexation petition. 

The following section of code provides the Planning Commission and City Council the 
discretion to designate an appropriate zone district after holding the appropriate public hearing: 

Section 3-2-4 D. Classification Of Annexed Areas: All territory which is annexed to the city after 
the effective date hereof shall be zoned upon annexation AG general agriculture, unless the 
planning commission shall recommend and/or the city council shall otherwise designate the 
zoning district after holding duly advertised public hearings in accordance with section 3-2-21 of 
this chapter. As part of considering any petition for annexation of territory to the city, a review of 
conformance with the city master plan, including land use designation, shall be performed by the 
planning commission, with recommendations forwarded to the city council. If said annexation 
necessitates substantial amendment to the master plan, the planning commission may adopt such 
amendment only after holding duly advertised public hearings in accordance with Nevada 
Revised Statutes section 278.210 .  

CITY OF ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PROGRAM 

A proposed well (test hole/monitoring well currently exists) approximately 240 feet from the 
property is expected to be installed as development occurs in the area. At that time, it could be 
expected that this property will be located within the 2 year capture zones. The City of Elko may 
complete the installation of a sewer main and lift station prior to the installation of the proposed 
well to eliminate a number of septic systems and leach fields in the area. 

FINDINGS 

1 .  The petitioner is not requesting an amendment to the Land Use Component of the Master 
Plan. The existing land use of one of the properties is consistent with the Master Plan. 
The remaining properties are vacant. The annexation and subsequent zone classification 
of the properties must conform to the Master Plan. 

Page 8 of 1 1  



ANNEXATION 1 - 1 8  
APN: 006-09N-004, 007 & 009 

2. The proposed annexation and existing land uses are compatible with the Transportation 
Component of the Master Plan. Master Plan. 

3 .  The proposed annexation is consistent with the goals, objectives and supports long range 
planning as outlined in the Development Feasibility, Land Use, Water Infrastructure, 
Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure and Annexation Potential 
Report dated November 2012 .  

4. The proposed annexation is in conformance with the City's Airport Master Plan. 

5. In conformance with NRS 268.636(1)  the property owners have submitted a map 
showing a boundary contiguous to the city of approximately 35%. 

6. In conformance with NRS 268.646(2), inclusive, it has been determined that the proposed 
annexation satisfies considerations and/or concerns identified as minimum factors for 
consideration under. 

7. In conformance with NRS 268.646(3), it has been determined that the proposed 
annexation will not have any long-term adverse impacts on adjacent areas nor will the 
proposed annexation and development of the property have an adverse influence the local 
government structure of the County or the City. 

8. In conformance with NRS 268.646(4), it has been that the proposed annexation will not 
place a burden of the availability of water, the requirement for water or have a negative 
impact other natural resources in the area. In addition, the City will receive 58 acre feet 
of water rights upon annexation of the properties. 

9. In conformance with NRS 268.646(5) it has been determined that the area proposed for 
annexation does not fall under the jurisdiction of the Bureau of Land Management. 

1 0 .  In conformance with NRS 268.646(6) it has been determined that The City of Elko is not 
required nor does it have an annexation program adopted and certified pursuant to NRS 
268.625. The proposed annexation is consistent with the Land Use component of the 
Master Plan and the adopted Development Feasibility, Land Use, Water Infrastructure, 
Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure and Annexation Potential 
Report dated November 2012 .  

1 1 .  In conformance with NRS 268.663(3), although not required, it has been determined that 
all portions of County roads that provide primary access to the area have been or will be 
annexed into the City and will become City streets. 

12 .  The annexation application identifies the zoning classification upon annexation as a Light 
Industrial District. At this time, a zone application has not been filed in conjunction with 
the annexation petition. Future zone designation must conform with section 3-2-4 of city 
code. 

1 3 .  The proposed annexation is in conformance with the City's Wellhead Protection Plan. 

14. Annexation of the property provides an immediate accrual to the tax base for the City. 

1 5 .  Annexation of the property provides an opportunity for expanded Light Industrial uses. 

Page 9 of 1 1  



ANNEXATION 1 - 1 8  
APN: 006-09N-004, 007 & 009 

16 .  The area proposed for annexation is not localized or isolated. 

1 7 .  Other, required, utilities will be installed at developer expense to facilitate development 
of the properties. 

18 .  The topography of the area is well suited for the proposed light industrial land uses. 

19 .  Expanded uses on the properties will result in a positive economic impact to the 
community. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends approval of Annexation 1 - 1 8  to be forwarded to the City Council based on the 
conditions outlined below. If approved by the City Council, the conditions will be included in the 
annexation ordinance. 

Development Department: 

1 .  The property owners shall receive approval for a zone designation for the property to be 
consistent with the Land Use designation in the City of Elko Master Plan. 

Utility Department: 

1 .  Joy Global Surface Mining shall extend the water main on P&H Drive the full frontage of 
the APN 006-09N-004 (Joy), 007 & 009 (Netherton), and make a point of connection in 
West Idaho Street. Water service (potable and fire protection) shall be extended within 
180  days  of annexation of the properties and the existing facility shall be connected to the 
City water system at that time; or, the water main shall be extended in conjunction with 
development of a new facility provided that Joy Global Surface Mining has applied for 
and received a Building Permit from the City and is actively engaged in constructing the 
new facility within the stipulated 180  days. Extension of water service and connection to 
the City water system may be extended by the length of time required for development of 
a new facility and will be required to obtain a Certificate of Occupancy for a new 
facility. 

2. Joy Global Surface Mining shall file applications with Nevada Division of Water 
Resources to transfer all City water rights back to the City as stipulated in its agreement 
with the City dated November 1 ,  2 0 1 3 .  The total water rights stipulated in the agreement 
is 58 acre feet. The same point of diversion shall be listed on the application. The 
application to transfer the water rights shall be filed no later than 60 days after extension 
of the water main in P & H drive and connection to either the existing facility or a newly 
developed facility. 

3 .  The existing well shall be dedicated to the City of Elko no later than 90 days after the 
water rights have been transferred to the City. An easement shall be granted to the City of 
Elko to include access to the well, the well site including a 20' perimeter outside of the 
well house, and also a 20' wide utility easement westerly to the westerly property 
boundary at the time of well dedication. 

4. Joy Global Surface Mining shall extend dry sewer mains at the time of new facility 
development or expansion of the existing use. 

Page 10 of 1 1  



ANNEXATION 1 - 1 8  
APN: 006-09N-004, 007 & 009 

5.  The City shall not be responsible for operation of the existing water supply system 
pending the extension of water service by Joy Global Surface Mining as stipulated in 
Item 1 .  

6. Cross connections between the existing water system and the City's water system will not 
be allowed. All points of cross connection are to be properly abandoned under City 
approval. 

Page 1 1  of 1 1  



CITY OF ELKO 

DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
1755 COLLEGE AVENUE 

ELKO, NEVADA 89801 
(775)777-7210 

(775)777-7219 FAX 

To: 
From: 
Date: 
Re: 

Planning Commission 
Jeremy Draper, Development Department 
March 28, 2018  
Annexation Petition 1 - 18 ,  Joy Global/Komatsu 

The City of Elko Development Department has reviewed the annexation application offers the 
following comments for consideration to aid the Planning Commission's review of the above 
referenced application: Applicable Master Plan Sections, NRS Sections and City Code Sections 
and other coordinating plans are: 

• City of Elko Master Plan - Land Use Component 
• City of Elko Master Plan - Streets and Highways Component 
• City of Elko Development Feasibil ity, Land Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer 

Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure and Annexation Potential Report dated 
November 2012  

•  Nevada Revised Statutes - 268.610 to 268.670, inclusive 
• City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-4 Zoning Districts 
• City of Elko Wellhead Protection Program 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

C:\Users\Sarchuleta\Downloads\Annex 1 - 1 8  Komatsu PC 0313 18  (1) .docx 
Created by Jeremy Draper 



Page 2 of 7 

1 .  The application is submitted by Legend Engineering on behalf of Harnischferger a parent 
company to Joy Global Surface Mining Inc. and Ed and Sharon Netherton. 

2. The petition includes that portion of APN 006-09N-004, -007, and -009 lying 
approximately 1 ,200 '  northwest of Idaho Street and Interstate 80 containing more or less 
32.74 acres of land including 1 .88 acres of right-of-way in P&H Drive as shown on 
parcel map 452341. 

3. The area is identified as having annexation potential as shown in the adopted 
Development Feasibility, Land Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure, 
Transportation Infrastructure and Annexation Potential Report dated November 2012 .  

4. The area fronts W. Idaho Street and P&H Drive. 
5. City water has been extended to the edge of the property and the property lies within the 

5400 water service zone. City sewer does not exist in this area, however preliminary 
design has been completed by the City of Elko Engineering Department. 

6. Other non-city util ities are located in the immediate area. 
7. Annexation of the property is at the request of the City of Elko based on the an 

agreement for the assignment and assumption of water rights dated November 1 ,  2013 
between the City of Elko and Joy Global Surface Min ing,  Inc. This agreement provided 
water rights to these users as the City of Elko could not provide water during the original 
period of development of these properties. 

8. The area was included in the land use component of the master plan showing a 
proposed Industrial Business Park. 

9. The City Council accepted the application for annexation at their March 27, 2018 
meeting. 

1 0 .  The proposed annexation is logical and orderly. 

MASTER PLAN: 

Land Use: 

1 .  Land Use is shown as Business Park Industrial. 
2. The petitioner has not submitted an application for rezone at this time. 
3. Corresponding zoning districts for Business Park Industrial Land Use are 

• Industrial Business Park, IBP 
• Light Industrial , LI 
• Industrial Commercial, IC 

4. Section 3-2-4-0 of City Code states that a review of conformance with the city master 
plan, including land use designation, shall be performed by the planning commission. 

5. Objective 7: Promote high quality and visually appealing industrial uses, where 
appropriate, to ensure economic sustainability as well as strengthen the community's 
image. 

6. Objective 8: Ensure that new development does not negatively impact County-wide 
natural systems,, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, 
floodplains etc., or pose a danger to human health and safety. 

Transportation: 

1 .  The area fronts W. Idaho St., a Major Arterial. 



Page 3 of 7 

DEVELOPMENT FEASIBILITY, LAND USE, WATER INFRASTRUCTURE. 
SANITARY SEWER INFRASTRUCTURE. TRANSPORTATION INFRASTRUCTURE 
AND ANNEXATION POTENTIAL REPORT - NOVEMBER 2012 

• The area is identified as having annexation potential. 
• This area is adjacent to developed property currently located within the incorporated 

boundary of the City. 
• The area can be served of the existing 5400 water zone. 
• Developable area is estimated to be approximately 32.74 acres 
• Under an Industrial Development we estimated that this would result in approximately in 

the development of 2.4 industrial units, and a commitment of 2. 73 acre-feet of water per 
year. 

• Parcel 006-09N-004 is currently developed as Joy Global Surface Mining Inc. 
• Parcels 006-09N-007 and -009 are currently undeveloped. 
• Sewer is currently unavailable in this location. The developer wil l be required to install a 

dry sewer and utilize a septic system until such time that a force main is installed to the 
Water Reclamation Facility. 

• Annexation of the area does appear to be logical and orderly and continues the 
development of land near exit 298 of 1-80. 

NEVADA REVISED STATUTE: 

NRS 268.636(1) states whenever the majority of property owners of any territory lying 
contiguous to a city desire to annex such territory to the city, they may cause an accurate map 
of plat of the territory to be made under the supervision of a competent surveyor. The map is to 
be filed with the city. 

The property owner's representative has submitted the required map. 

NRS 268.646 requires minimum factors to be considered in the review of a proposed 
annexation. 

NRS 268.646(1) requires the evaluation of factors such as population, population density, land 
area and land uses, per capita assessed valuation, topography, proximity to other populated 
areas and the likelihood of significant growth within the next 1 0  years in the area and adjacent 
areas. 

The total annexed area consists of approximately 32. 7 4 acres. 

The property is currently developed. 

NRS 268.646 (2) requires the evaluation for the need for organized community services, the 
present cost of and adequacy of governmental services and controls in the area, probable future 
needs for such services and controls, and the probable effect of the proposed formation and of 
alternative courses of action on the cost and adequacy of services and controls in the area and 
adjacent area. 



Page 4 of 7 

The area being considered for annexation is currently within our mutual aid area for fire 
services, annexation to the City will not increase the need for governmental services and 
controls in the area. 

General 

Annexation of the property does provide the opportunity to provide continued l ight industrial land 
use along Idaho Street, a Major Arterial. The annexation of this property will also result in the 
fulfillment of a agreement between the City of Elko and Joy Global to provide water rights for the 
development of the property. Once within the City, Joy Global will be able to abandon the non 
compliant water system and relinquish the water rights back to the City of Elko. 

Land Division and Potential Zoning 

The property is partially developed and is slated for redevelopment with the construction of a 
new facility. Two parcels are currently vacant and are ready for development. Some parceling 
of al l parcels may take place in the future. 

The application has not submitted a rezone application at this time. 

Sewer 

Sanitary sewer does not exist in the immediate area. A dry sewer and septic system will be 
required to be installed and utilized until a force main can be installed providing service to the 
Water Reclamation Facility. 

City of Elko water service exists in the immediate area. The property can be served off the 
existing 5400 water zone with the extension of a waterline from Idaho Street. 

Access 

Primary access is from P&H Drive and Idaho Street. 

Other Services 

The size and location of the property is not expected to place any significant burden on other 
City services. 

NRS 268.646(3) requires the evaluation of the proposed annexation and of alternative actions 
on adjacent areas, on mutual social and economic interests and on local governmental structure 
of the county. 

Annexation of the property is not expected to have any long-term adverse impacts on adjacent 
areas. 

NRS 268.646(4) requires the evaluation of the proposed annexation and of alternative actions 
upon the availabil ity of water and requirement of water and other natural resources throughout 
the affected area. 



Page 5 of 7 

The City currently has approximately 18,000 acre feet of water rights available and is utilizing 
approximately 50% of that supply. Based on the Development Feasibility, Land Use, Water 
Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure and Annexation 
Potential Report dated November 2012 ,  the City could face a potential shortfall of 700 - 800 
acre feet of water to serve annexed areas in addition to areas identified as a having annexation 
potential. Areas identified as having annexation potential provide orderly and logical growth of 
the City and are generally aligned with future transportation corridors. 

The applicant is part of a user group that was granted water rights by the City of Elko for the 
development of a private water system. As part of the agreement, revised in 2013 with Joy 
Global, the water rights would be returned to the City of Elko when the City completes the 
installation of a waterline to this area and annexation to the City has been completed. 

Proper storm water controls would mitigate any potential impacts from storm water runoff. 

Annexation of the property will not negatively impact other natural resources in the area. 

The completion of this annexation will result in no additional water rights being required for 
future development due to the existing agreement between the City and Joy Global. 

NRS 268.646(5) requires a determination by the Bureau of Land Management that the territory 
proposed to be annexed is suitable for residential, commercial, or industrial development, or will 
be opened to private acquisition. 

The area proposed for annexation does not fall under the jurisdiction of the Bureau of Land 
Management. 

NRS 268.646(6) requires a determination that the annexation is consistent with any applicable 
comprehensive regional p lan, area plan or master plan and any program of annexation adopted 
and certified pursuant to NRS 268.625. 

The City of Elko Master Plans specifically addresses the annexation of property under Objective 
5 as outlined in Best Practice 5 . 1  and Best Practice 5.3 .  City Staff has identified areas having 
potential for annexation that promote logical and orderly growth of the community. The 
proposed annexation is not in an area that was identified as having annexation potential; 
however, it should not be excluded from consideration for annexation. 

The Land Use component of the Master Plan contains an exhibit showing the area as industrial 
business park. 

NRS 268.663(3) requires the portions of the county roads which provide the primary access to 
the subdivision are also annexed and become city streets. 

Idaho Street is currently a under City jurisdiction, P&H Drive wil l fall under City jurisdiction with 
this annexation. 

City Code Section 3-2-4 

A companion rezone application has not been filed with the City at this t ime. 



Page 6 of 7 

The following section of code provides the PC and CC the discretion to designate an 
appropriate zone district after holding the appropriate public hearing: 

Section 3-2-4 D. Classification Of Annexed Areas: All territory which is annexed to the 
city after the effective date hereof shall be zoned upon annexation AG general 
agriculture, unless the planning commission shall recommend and/or the city council 
shal l otherwise designate the zoning district after holding duly advertised publ ic hearings 
in accordance with section 3-2-21 of this chapter. As part of considering any petition for 
annexation of territory to the city, a review of conformance with the city master plan, 
including land use designation, shall be performed by the planning commission, with 
recommendations forwarded to the city council. If said annexation necessitates 
substantial amendment to the master plan, the planning commission may adopt such 
amendment only after holding duly advertised public hearings in accordance with 
Nevada Revised Statutes section 278.210 .  

CITY OF ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PROGRAM 

The property is not located within the wellhead protection area. However it should be noted that 
the City has plans for a future well within 600 feet of the proposed annexation, this would most 
l ikely result in the annexation fall ing within the 2-year capture zone for this well. Compliance 
with this plan will be required once developed. 

SUMMARY 

Factors for consideration 

1 .  The area is identified as having annexation potential in the Development Feasibil ity, 
Land Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure, Transportation 
Infrastructure and Annexation Potential Report dated November 2012 .  The annexation 
of this property appears to promote the logical and orderly growth of the City. 

2. The area is identified in the Master Plan as suitable for Business Park Industrial land 
use. 

3. The City resources committed in support for development of the property under a 
Business Park Industrial land use are minimal. 

4. Maintenance obl igations are not a concern with the annexation of the property. City 
obligations for infrastructure maintenance wil l occur as the property develops. 

5. The property is currently developed and the property owners have indicated they wish to 
redevelop the property, two parcels remain undeveloped at this time. 

FINDINGS 

1 .  The annexation is consistent with the City' Land Use Component of the Master Plan. 
Appropriate zoning of the property is required as the property develops to ensure 
conformance with the land use designation shown in the Master Plan. 



Page 7 of 7 

2. The annexation is consistent with the City' Transportation Component of the Master 
Plan. 

3. The Development Feasibility, Land Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer 
Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure and Annexation Potential Report dated 
November 2012 ,  does identify the area as having potential for annexation. 

4. The area proposed for annexation is not localized, isolated and does promote future 
transportation and utility corridors promoting future growth opportunities within the City. 

5. Annexation of the area is not expected to have any immediate or negative impact on City 
resources. The area can be served from the existing 5400 water zone. Additional utility 
and roadway infrastructure will be installed at developer expense to facilitate 
development of the property. 

RECOMMENDATION 

The City of Elko Development Department recommends approval of Annexation 1 - 1 8  be 
forwarded to the City Council based on the following conditions: 

1 . The property owners shall receive a rezone of their property to be consistent with the 
Land Use designation in the City of Elko Master Plan. 



CONSENT TO ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION 
OF WATER RIGHTS AGREEMENT 

THIS CONSENT TO ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTIOI\ OF WATER RIGHTS 

AGREEMENT (hereinafter the "Consent") is made and entered into this j .s± day of 

}JQVQJyyiQJ::: , 2013 ,  by and between THE CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA, a municipal 

corporation and political subdivision of the State of Nevada (hereinafter the "City"), CALVIN 

DEAN STITZEL and MARILYN E. LUND (hereinafter "Stitzel/Lund") and P&H MINING 

EQUIPMENT INC. also known as JOY GLOBAL SURFACE MINING INC., a Delaware 

Corporation (hereinafter "P&H"). 

WHEREAS, on the 281h day of February, 1994, the City and Stitzel/Lund entered into the 

Water Rights Agreement attached hereto at Exhibit "1;" 

WHEREAS, the Water Rights Agreement provides that Stitzel/Lund may not assign the 

water rights obtained by them on the real property without the prior written consent of the City; 

WHEREAS, Stitzel/Lund desire to obtain the consent of the City to assign the Water 

Rights Agreement to P&H; 

WHEREAS, P&H desires to assume the rights and obligations of Stitzel/Lund, subject to 

the terms and conditions of this Consent, upon the purchase from Stitzel/Lund of the real 

property described at Exhibit "2" hereto (hereinafter the "Real Property"); 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above recitals, the parties do hereby agree 

as follows: 

1 .  CONSENT. The City hereby consents to the assignment of the Water Rights 

Page 1 of 4 



Agreement attached hereto at Exhibit "1" from Stitzel/Lund to P&H, and the assumption thereof 

by P&H, subject to the terms and conditions herein contained. 

2. PURCHASE OF REAL PROPERTY: This Consent and the amendments to the 

Water Rights Agreement described herein shall become effective upon the purchase of the Real 

Property from Stitzel/Lund by P&H within six (6) months of the date this Consent is approved by 

the Elko City Council. In the event P&H does not purchase the Real Property within six (6) 

months of the date this Consent is approved by the Elko City Council, this Consent shall 

automatically become null and void and shall be of no further effect. 

3. ADDITIONAL TERMS: The following terms are hereby made part of this 

Consent and, moreover, upon the purchase of the Real Property by P&H within six (6) months of 

the date this Consent is approved by the Elko City Council, the following terms shall be 

automatically deemed added to and made part of the Water Rights Agreement: 

A. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Consent and the Water Rights 

Agreement, as amended, together constitute the entire agreement between the parties with regard 

to the subject matter described therein, and those documents supersede all prior agreements, 

offers and negotiations in relation thereto, and may not be amended except by an Agreement in 

writing signed by the parties. 

B. APPLICABLE LAW. This Consent and the Water Rights Agreement, as 

amended, shall be construed, given effect and governed by the laws of the State of Nevada, and 

in the event of a breach of this Consent or the Water Rights Agreement, as amended, by any of 

the parties, the other party shall have all remedies at law or equity provided by the laws of the 

State of Nevada. 

Page 2 of 4 



C. VENUE. Irrespective of any statutory provisions to the contrary, venue 

for any action arising under this Consent or the Water Rights Agreement, as amended, shall be in 

the Fourth Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada, in and for the County of Elko. 

D. ATTORNEY'S FEES. Should either party be required to seek legal 
action to enforce or interpret the terms and conditions of this Consent or the Water Rights 
Agreement, as amended, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorney fees and 
costs. 

STITZEL/LUND 

���lla-��-r� 
CALVIN DEAN STITZEL 

Its: t0r:..y O Lr / 

Attest: �{/)lvf?'h 
SHANELL OWEN, CITY 
CLERK 

P&H MINING EQUIPMENT, INC. 

By:___.:,o::::__,.,,,£....-----:.,;c-.-....,,1------ 

lts: t:z� ".1 e,ra I 

NOTARY 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this 3 i.s+ day of Gc:Lhl£
1 

d 01] , 

Page 3 of 4 



2013 ,  by: 

1 .  Calvin Dean Stitzel 
2. Marilyn E. Lund 

3.  

4. 

5 .  

NOTARY PUBLIC 
ST ATE OF NEV ADA 

•PAMELAJ. 
AGUIRRE 

IIOTNff �·STATf <iNE\W 
Elko County • Nevada 

CERTIFICATE# 99-58153-6 
APPT. EXP. OCT. 28, 2015 

Page 4 of 4 



RECITALS: 

AGREEMENT: 

WATER RIGHTS AGREEMENT 

1 EXHIB IT "1" 

Stitzel/Lund have filed an Application for Permit to Appropriate the Public Waters 
of the State of Nevada, Application Number 58379, which Second Amended application 
was filed with the Nevada Division of Water Resources on January 6, 1993, a copy of 
which is attached as Exhibit "B". 

Elko has filed an Application for Permit to Appropriate the Public Waters of the 
State of Nevada, Application Number 56590 which was filed with the Nevada Division of 
Water Resources on July 26, 1991, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit "A". 

Fiie Copy 

THIS WATER RIGHTS AGREEMENT made and entered into this :1,8-f/.. day of 
February, 1994 by and between THE Cl1Y OF ELKO ("Elko") and CALVIN DEAN 
STITZEL and MARILYN E. LUND ("Stitzel/Lund"). 

Elko agrees not to utilize a portion of their water rights under Permit Number 
56590 so that Stitzel/Lund can develop this property pursuant to the following terms and 
conditions: 

2. Stitzel/Lund shall use the water solely for the development of real property 
located in the N/W 1/4 of the N/W 1/4, Section 30, T. 34 N., R. 55 E., MDB&M. 

1. Elko agrees not to use 58 acre-feet of water authorized for their use under 
Permit 56590 in order to allow Stitzel/Lund to obtain a permit pursuant to their 
application for a permit under Application Number 58379. The actual portion transferred 
shall not exceed the amount Stitzel/Lund place to beneficial use as specified on the 
Certificate of Appropriation issued by the Division of Water Resources. 

3. Stitzel/Lund agree that at any time the real property is annexed into the City 
of Elko, the water rights developed by Stitzel/Lund on the real property shall be 
transferred to the City of Elko at the request of the City. Upon such request, Elko shall 
furnish water from the municipal water system to the Stitzel/Lund properties as they are 
developed at that time. 

4. Stitzel/Lund shall not assign or transfer the water rights obtained by them 
on the real property without the prior written consent of Elko, which consent shall not be 
unreasonably withheld. 



2 

THE CI1Y OF ELKO 

5. This Water Rights Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit 
of the heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns of the respective parties 
hereto. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOI', the parties hereto have set their hands as of the day and 
year first hereinabove written. 

ATI'EST: 



THIS SPACE FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 

4. If use is for: 

: -e  :  .  ' ' ! ,  

N/ A 

··--·--·- .. ·--------------- 

····--------·----·---- 

---·-·--·-···-·-·····---····--·--····----··-------·- 

No O 

________ Map filed _ 

No O 

Date of filing in State Engineer's Office - 

Corrected application filed. ,, __ 

---·-----··--··--------------- 

Is applicant 2 1  years of age or older? Yes O 

the public waters_ of the State of Nevada, as he�i�aner stated. (If applicant is a corporation, give date and place of 

I . The source or the proposed appropriation js.___underaround .. Wel.Ltb-41_. _ 
-'11.mcofii'rum, lake. •pri ... "'*''""'nd or ........ -· 

� I • � • I : (c) Other use (describe fully under "No, 12. ,Remarks")----·-··-------------·--- 

( I )  Horsepower developed - -··-·- .. - .. -·--·- .. ·-·-·····"··_·-_--_-_--_· ----,.!� __ E
8

X•H•IB•IT __ ,] 
(2) Point of return of water to stream � ... 

2. The amount of water applied for is �6....0 cf..�roo, equal, �s.u'aallona per minuie-. __.second feet. 

• -Serial No .... 0&..6..?.0 ..... 
. 1-tkLL -(<{I 

APPLICATION i'OR PERMIT TO APPROPRIATE THE PUBLIC WATERS OF THE STATE OF NEVADA 

(a) If stored in reservoir give number of acre·fceL-····-·----- .. ·---·--··-·----- ------- 

incorporation; if a copartnership or association give names of mernbers.L,., 

3. The water to be used for. �i�iw..an<Unreatic. ,. _ 
lrrl1t1ioa, ....-r, mlnl"I, commercial, domesllc or odlcr vlO, Muot lii.k lo - tr.-Jo, , ... 

(d) Power: 

(a) Irrigation, stale number of acres to be Irrigated_ _. ., _ 

Returned to applicant for correction.c.. .. , -···-··--·-···-····---··-··-- .. --- 

(b) Stockwater, state number and le.ind of animals .. _ 

ls applicant a U.S. citizen? Yes O 

City of Elko . 
The applicant __ ,,, __ -.---------·--·-·---··-----······--·······-···· .. ·-·········-··-·--····-······---------·- 

1751 C.Ollege Avenue Elko 
···-·-··-·-···-··---··-····- -·--·-····--· .. ·--···-- .. -- o f _  ,-w•-·····-···--··--r-·-········-------------- 

Slrtt1 and No. or P.O. Boa No. c,17 and y..,.,. . . 

Nevada 89801 s 
··-·-- .. ·-···-··---·-·-·-····-··-· .. ,·--·····---------·-· hereby make .... application for pennlsslon to appropriate 

Stale and Zap Code No. 

NRS 533.325 requires that applicant be a citizen of the United States or have legally declared their intention to become a 
citizen, and that they be 21 years of age or older. 

-·----·-·------------·-------- 

. .  .. ··-·· -- ------------- 



•-•··---••--•••h--n••·---·--- _,--••••-••-•u••HO•••••-•••••••••••• .. ••n•••• ... ••••n••••-•••,.•••-•-•••••- ••-••••••••-•••-u••---•--••U--•-·-·-- 

Ci17, SI.II<, Zip Code No. 

.,_d_JJtD_� 
Slgna1ure, appliunl or •&<•I · 

Michael n. Roschelman, AQent 
·-···--···5!1.0.5 .. .Mae .. .Aone. .. !\veoue._.___ ---- 

scree, and No .• or r.O. Bos No. 
Reno, Nevada 8957.� 

··--·--·-···-·---·-----------------··---··--···--···········-··---------------- 

·-·-··-·--·-----·-----------·····---···---····-·····-··--···················----··--·---------- 

. . 
. not exceed 18,000 aCJ:e feet _ _pe.r �d' ...... The _estirnated .. QQO�l,lll>il..ve use�hi�L 

. application is 4 , 3 4 3  acre feeL�_year. · ·-··-· 

... The _total. oarbined du�y of_ this application _and .. the .. i;lxisting..}fs\.\:.�L.rJqbt s�ll.... 

• 5 .  'The �atcr is to be diverted r.ts source at the following point., -··c:··-····,·······,··:·························:··················· uw u bctn,t lill'1Ch111 1 �0-acre ,uhJlv1d(,n nf l""•M•<" 

. ... .'!.1::� ... ?.� ... !.��--�-�---��--�···!!� ... .<?..� ... �.!.!9.!':l .. ,.}.9. .. .7.'}i� .. g?.?.r;;A, .. �.!.P.e .. ·���-! •• ,9.-h •.. ��-··j;\··J;l9.i.o.t .. J.ri:xn. .... 
survey. 111,t by course arid dittancc 10 a •cccion C'Ofn<:t. U on un�n,ycd l1rw;1, 11 sh(,uld be �o 1t1tcJ . 

.... �ti.ch the_� corner. of _Section __10. bears .. N ... 19°_30,'_0_0"E •. , _a __ dist-,o� .. oLi.259.,.00' ··-· 

··--·-··--···----·-··------··-···· .. ··-··-···-·--·-········----··---···---····-···--···-··--·····--·--·-·---- 

/\ll of Sections 25,  30, 3 1 ,  36 '1'35N 11561': sectIon 6 'T'14N R5fiF.1 Sect:ion!'; 6. Place of use ...... --------·--------······--············-·········--····················-···-·············-···········----······---······-·--··-··-·-····-··· Describe by le1•I 1ubJivl1ion. U on ufl,urn-y�d l11'1d, ,1 should be so tt.tcd. 

l through 5 ,  8  throuqh 17, 20 thr;uuqh 24 T34N R5,F. M.O.ij.&M. 
•UU••••••••• .. -•••-nh•--n••-••--·---••-••·-•••••-•••--••••••-•--•••••-•••Hooou•-••••• 0,000,u,oo•n• •••••••- -.u-••••••-• -·•-•- .. --, .... . 

APl'UCATION MUST DE SIGNEU 
DY TIIE APPLICANT OR AGENT 

$200 FILING FEE MUST ACCOMPANY APPLICATION · • 

7 .  Use will begin abouL_,,2���) . and end about., � J.l. of each year. 
Monlh ind Day Monlh and Day 

.. f?.UTP and. pipeline __ to _place of use.·---···-·········-···-···-··························-··----·-·····-·-·-·--·-----·· 
di1cltu and Humes, drilled well whh pump and ....,.o,, etc. 

9. Estimated cost of works S200 A 000 ······-····-···-···-····-····-··············-··-····-···-------··--···-··---- 

specifications of your diversion or storage works.)---·-··-�-!'gJJ.l.�L!'M:i.Q ... ��«1..�U ... e.m.i.wged_ntb_rotor, 
SI.lie inanncr In whid• wtl<r 11 lo be divened, Le, 4i•ersl0fl 11rvaur.:, 

8. Description of proposed works (Under the provisions of NRS 535 .0IO you may be required 10 submit plans and 

12 .  Remarks: For use other than irrigation or stock watcrlng, state number and type or units to be served or annual 
consumptive use . 

10. Estimated time required to construct works----···-·--·········2-�1---·-···--·-·······-········----------- 
II we I completed, dcteribc wD<u. 

1 1 .  Estimated time required 10 complete the application of water lo beneficial use. A.Q .. �- 

TELEPHONE NUMBER 

702 747-8550 
{. ) ·------·------·-· 

•.. 



THlS SPACE FOR OFF(CE USE ONLY 

4. If use is for: 

, hereby make�-- application for permission to appropriate 

No O 

___________________ _Map filed · _ 

Swc aM Zip Code No. 

Corrected application filed 

St.- and No. ee P.O. Box No. 

Nevada 89801 

(a) Irrigation, state number of acres to be irrigatu;edu...------ 

1 . 0 0  cfs ·  
2. The amount of water applied for is-----.....,,,----,----,.,,,_,,-,-..,,..--�-------"s·econd feet. 

One scc,ond r- equals �8.&3 &aliens per milluce. 

1. The source "of the' proposed appropriation i __ u_n_d_e_r_g_r...,....o_u_n':"d--,,...,---"--;---.,---,--.------- 
NlfflC of_.,., lalc.e, opr;,,,, undugn,u,,d or Olhet ..... ree. 

(a) If stored in reservoir give number of acre-feeu.. _ 

(b) Stockwater, state number and kind of animals-------------- 

Date of filing in State Engineer's Office--·----··-·-··-·-·----·-------- .. ·-··· .... ·---·--·-·-···--·-·······- 

(1) Horsepower developed._ __ ���������������-··-------( !I EXHIBIT ) � � c l � c l W � s � -  _  �  
.._ " 

Returned to applicant for correction ,, ,,. , , ------------ .. ·--------------------- 

(c) Other use (describe fully under "No. 12. Remarks")--- 

(d) Power: 

Commercial 3. The water to be used for-----=-�,------,-,· 
lrriptioa. J)0'¥1'Cr, mi111111. commcrclal, dmiiatic or other us,c.. Must limu IO one major \IIC. 

incorporation; if a copartnership or association give names of members.)---· 
the public waters of the State of Nevada, as hereinafter stated. (If applicant is a corporation, give date and place of 

----------�-------------- 

NRS 533.325 requires that applicant be a citizen of the United States or have legally declared their intention to become a citizen, and that they __ l>e 2_1 years of age or oldct.,' 
====== 

. C a l v i n  Dean S t i t z e l  & M a r i l v n  E .  Lund The applicanr..L; ----------- .. -·-----·-··------------------- 
P . O .  Box 1182 E l k o  

___ .of ...... ---·--·--------- -----------·-·---·- 
Cicy and T""'n 

Is applicant a U.S. citizen? Yes b No O 

Is applicant 21 years of age or older? Yes tJ 

' . .  



- __ _._ .. -·· _. - , , .-  .......... · . ·. 

City, SW.:, Zip Code No. 

·--------·------··- 

W e l l ,  P i p e l i n e s  and Storage Tank 
Suz  awu,cr  in whlcll walU i.1abcdi.:;-11ed:-i.e. divcnion stNcturc, 

By __ tttl'b"�tso-g;;ntQJiili,�� or·�···------ 

640 Idaho Street 

HIGH DESERT Engineering,  Agent 

--·-·--·--s'"",.....,-anc1--,...,.,No-.-. o-,...,.p_...,.o-. Bo• No. 
E l k o ,  Nevada 89801 

$20,000 

'c- : --�·-\��- : : · -  _, .• - · · - - - · · - --�-�=  .  .' · · - - --- · . - : .  

738 - 4053 

specifications of your diversion or storage works.) 
-----------···-·-- ditcha aod llumes, dtilled wdl will, pump and mocor, etc. 

9. Estimated cost of works. _ 

APPLICATION MUST BE SIGNED 

BY THE APPLICANT OR AGENT 

$200 FILING FEE MUST ACCOMPANY APPLICATION 

NW 1 / 4  NW 1 / 4  ( L o t  l )  of  Section  30.  T  34 N ,  R  55 E ,  MOB & 6. Place of use-----··-··-·········----··-·-·····---·--·······-·-··-····-··--·--·· --·-----·- .. ··-·------······-·· Describe by legal subdivision. If on uruurveyed land. I! ,hould be so sured. 

M .  

five years 

· : ,  ' .  

survey, and by course aRd disUinoc to a section corner. lf on unwrn;yod land, il should be so slated. 

corner of said Section 30, bears N 4 4 °  2 9 "  49" W ,  2 1 0 . 2 0  feet.  

8. Description of proposed works (Under the provisions of NRS 535.010 you may be required to submit plans and 

·-··-----------·----------·--··-········-·-··-·····-·-----------·-·····-···-·····-·------ 

Repair Shop, Tire Shop, 2-Bay Truck Wash, Cafe and 500 Motel Units .  

·------------------·· 

January 1  December 31 7. Use will begin abou ..... .,. .........and end abouc., ·-·--·---·----Of each year. 
Mondi aod Day Month and Day 

. • · · N W  1 / 4  ·w 1 / 4  ( L o t  1  l  · o f  
A  5· .. T.he water is to be diverted from .urcc at the following point.. - _,.---.-··,······----------,-,--,·--···-·.- 

Ocscn og wuhLn 1 40-ucn:: �ubc.J1v1"00 of pul>hc 

5 e c t i o n  3 0 ,  T  3 4  N ,  5 5  E ,  M O B  & M . ,  a t  a  poi f r o m  w h i c h  t h �  NW 

three years 10. Estimated time required to construct works--·-·---- 

1 1 .  Estimated time required to complete the application of water to beneficial use. ·------- 

TELEPHONE NUMBER 

12. Re�lcs: . For use other.than irrigation or stock watering, state number and type of units to be served or annual 
consumptive· use. · · · · · · ·,r · · . . - ' • 

Waters applied for under .this application a r e .  to serve· a _Truck 

·  702 

___ .  __ .:. . .  ,�-·�':,·:�· .... · · -  



I . .. .  '.111f.>·'t"I.- I .::' · .'I  

, �  H  !  .  I  j  

"\ I t  

I 

/ 

/ 

' 

. ,  : 

.' 

) 

I I ' 
' I  I /'i' . .  I  

\.  

'  <  ·, ,',', ,' j , '  
' : 1  I  
!  �  I  l '  

'  t,' 
'•, 

J ·. " 

if) 

'•/!•ii' 
11 t,i!,1}'1 •• 

I f )  

I/ I I  

"  
. .  

.  . .  

' ·  ' •} 

" 
.. , 

!· � 
!, ,, 
. .  ,  

t.• • •  

I · .  
. , •  

.  �  '  

.. 1, 

' · .  N(,J 1 · 

i, Jj/ ( ) I  

,·�.J(J(,' 

• • •  ¥• • ¥ � 

f:XHl!J/1' "n" 

� C/K.I� ,I() 

I . •  11 /1., fl . •  �5 r., I.I.II.II I, II. 

mvso« [I K() C()IN/1 Y 

<:It/ VIN tJLltN SI/Ill/, er. Al . 
to 

I /AfiN/SCI /f·TGf!? COUf>ORII T/ON 

r:IIRVI: 1AIJ/L � 
or i (A · 1 f!.Alfi.H · ,· ifJtfi!IJ l c ! ,olw 

DQW'.DP" ,20 oo .1,,12 M?f!. I i:,!f.f.!t. , 
Cl 

.100' 

I 

iu« 11.IIU. 
Lit.it oi:iiiiiir. 
.. (i LJ!iv,-·.,1r € 

12 :; §2'81'12'. It 

ts U l!J'!!/!'21: f 
. i.-i ,UW:JO.: '-. 
iii ll�Wl' { .  
L6 . U � '. L  
17 .ll J!2ID�: t: 
1/J li. � C.  

'Tii . . . .  ..1J. t.rJ.� I 

_l I(/ S �0'2,2',1,!° [V 

.'lOO' 0 

l+·l ·.J-.U \- - · 

scnu: J r-. :/0()' 



• • 
WATER RIGHTS AGREEMENT 

Ale Copy 

THIS WATER RIGHTS AGREEMENT made and entered into this cJ8-f/.. day of 
February, 1994 by and between THE CI'IY OF ELKO ("Elko") and CALVIN DEAN 
STITZEL and MARILYN E. LUND ("Stitzel/Lund"). 

RECITALS: 

Elko has filed an Application for Permit to Appropriate the Public Waters of the 
State of Nevada, Application Number 56590 which was filed with the Nevada Division of 
Water Resources on July 26, 1991, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit "A". 

Stitzel/Lund have filed an Application for Permit to Appropriate the Public Waters 
of the State of Nevada, Application Number 58379, which Second Amended application 
was filed with the Nevada Division of Water Resources on January 6, 1993, a copy of 
which is attached as Exhibit "B". 

AGREEMENT: 

Elko agrees not to utilize a portion of their water rights under Permit Number 
56590 so that Stitzel/Lund can develop this property pursuant to the following terms and 
conditions: 

1. Elko agrees not to use 58 acre-feet of water authorized for their use under 
Permit 56590 in order to allow Stitzel/Lund to obtain a permit pursuant to their 
application for a permit under Application Number 58379. The actual portion transferred 
shall not exceed the amount Stitzel/Lund place to beneficial use as specified on the 
Certificate of Appropriation issued by the Division of Water Resources. 

2. Stitzel/Lund shall use the water solely for the development of real property 
located in the N/W 1/4 of the N/W 1/4, Section 30, T. 34 N., R. 55 E., MDB&M. 

3. Stitzel/Lund agree that at any time the real property is annexed into the City 
of Elko, the water rights developed by Stitzel/Lund on the real property shall be 
transferred to the City of Elko at the request of the City. Upon such request, Elko shall 
furnish water from the municipal water system to the Stitzel/Lund properties as they are 
developed at that time. 

4. Stitzel/Lund shall not assign or transfer the water rights obtained by them 
on the real property without the prior written consent of Elko, which consent shall not be 
unreasonably withheld. 

1 



• • 
5. This Water Rights Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit 

of the heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns of the respective parties 
hereto. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands as of the day and 
year first hereinabove written. 

THE CI'IY OF ELKO 
ATTEST: 

d��· "'GIULIANA MURP,Ctyierk 

c�1.Q�u� 
CALVIN DEAN STITZEL � 

2 



• .Serial No .... Ql.e..Q.?.0 .. . . 
f'tkLL "if<// 

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT TO APPROPRIATE THE PUBLIC 

WATERS OF THE STATE OF NEVADA 

THIS SPACE FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 

Date of filing in State Engineer's Office ·-------······························-·-······--·-········-··-·-···--···--·----- 
- Returned to applicant for correction·--···········-·-·-·······-···-···········-·-··-············-·················-·····--····-·-·--···-··--·· 

Corrected application filed·-··-··---·-··-·-··· ___ .Map filed.·-·--·----·-·· 

City of Elko The applicant.c., .. ·--················--····-···-···········--··--····--·-···-···········-··············-·······················-·-·-·-·-·····-··--·--·---·--·--··--·· 

1751 College Avenue Elko 
········-·-····················-·················-······················-···············---·-···of. .... - .. ·········-········-·-·-··-··. ··-··········---------------- Street •nd No. or P.O. Box No. City and T.,...n 

Nevada 89801 s ·····---·-··············-·-····-···················.-·············-··---···--------·• hereby make .... application for permission to appropriate 
Stale •nd Zip Code No. 

the public waters_ of the State of Nevada, as hcrei�after stated. (If applicant is a corporation, give date and place of 

. . ·c .  hi . . . . f b ) . N/ A incorporation; 1 a copartners rp or assocration give names o mem ers. ···--··----··· --------- 
. ' r ·  '  :  .  •  · , ·  f ' : ,  

----·-·---·-···-----·--·----· 

ls applicant a U.S. citizen? Yes O No O 

Is applicant 2 1  years of age or older? Yes O No O 

NRS 533.325 requires that applicant be a citizen of the United States or have legally declared their intention to become a 
citizen, and that they be 2 1  years of age or older. 

l .  The source of the proposed appropriation is __ undenn:nuod .. Well.fu._4.l _ 
�.me of ltream, lake. •prlna, underaround ot olher source. 

-----••••••<o--•--••••-n••••••----------·-- 

2. The amount of water applied for is., 6...0. .. cfs __,econd feet. 
One second fool equals «8.8J 1allon1 per minute. 

(a) If stored in reservoir give number of acre-feeL.·-·······-··-··············-·····---·······---···-··--·--··---------··· 

3. The water to be used for. Muxlic.ipal_and .. lares.tic -- _. _ 
Irrigation. pow,:r, mlnln1, commercial, dom011ic or olher uae. Must limk lo one major ate, 

4. If use is for: 

(a) Irrigation, state number of acres to be irrigated---·-······-····-···--············---····------------- 

(b) Stockwater, state number and kind of animals----·····-·-----·--·······-·-----····---- 

(c) Other use (describe fully under "No. 12. Remarks")-----······ 
(d) Power: 

EXHIBIT 

A 

( I )  Horsepower developed -···-···-·················---···--··· .. ············u - --·--··-·-·---- : 

' ---------1 
�----.1 

(2) Point of return of water to stream. _ 



.. 

·�S . .,.he water is to be diverted f.ts source at the following p o i n t .  .....................•....... , , .. , _.., .. r ••••••••.••• • .  r- 

O u be ing within a 40-acrc !UbJ1v1,u,ln nf �t<-lic 

The .. SE_..1 I 4 .. of_ the __ NE _ __! I 4 __ �f Section 19. ... !}1.ri .. !3?.�.i;;., .. M.:.P.� .. -���-'--.Q� qt_ __ � __ w.io.t .. .f.t"OOJ ..... 
;u;:.;�y, and by course and distance to I IICC(ion comer. If on unsurveyed lend, it 1h01Jld be so !l8ICJ. 

____ whic�---t��---�---?.?.E!:1.�E ... ��---�-t�9.� .. .!.Q ... � ... N .. J.r_JQ.'..�.Q.�.�-'·'···-�--g;i,._�_t®.�---o.f .. .2.2!l0 .... 00..� ..... 

All of Sections 2 5 ,  30, 3 1 ,  36 T35N R56R: Section 6 T14N RS6E: Sections 6. Place of use .. -----·-------··----·--·--····························································--··············.································-··-·····-·········--·-·······-----· Descrtbe by legal subdivision. If on unsurveyed lend. 11 ,hoo1d be so ll&fcd. 

1 through 5 ,  8  throuqh 17 ,  20 throuqh 24 T34N R5SF. M.n .� .&M.  

7. Use will  begin about, i!_���--! .and end about... � JJ of each year. 
Month and Day Month and Day 

8 .  Description of proposed works (Under the provisions of NRS 5 3 5 . 0 1 0  you may be required to submit plans and 
specifications of your diversion or storage works.) � .. 9.f:;P),aj ®.9._Q9...��--�U OOJJiDDed_rith_nntor, 

Stale manner in y.,hich water is to be diverted. Le. diversion Jlructure • 

. PUfl) __ and __ pipeline __ to __ place __ of. use··························································-----················-------········--·---···-·-····-- 
di1,1,c, and nume<, drilled well wi1h pump and motor, etc. 

9. Estimated cost of works-----·····-··-··· $200, 000 --······················································-··················-·--·-··--·-···--------··-··-······ 

10 .  Estimated time required lo construct works.·--·······-····-········----�---�---········-···········-···········-··---------··------· 
If well completed, describe ""Ofh. 

1 1 .  Estimated time required to complete the application of water to beneficial use l_O __ �----·------· 

···························-··-···-----···-·-················-····························-········-··········································---·······-···--·- .. ····-·--- 

1 2 .  Remarks: For use other than irrigation or stock watering, stale number and type of units to be served or annual 
consumptive use . 
... Th� total __ caroined duty __ of. this __ application .. and .. the __ existing __ water __ r�t -�ml.L 

__ not exceed _18,000 acre feet __ per .rear The _estirrated __ conswptive use .. llll®:LthMl . 

__ application .. is 4,  343 acre_ feet_� year.······························-----··----------------- 

······-·········----···--···-····---------·······-··········--········-···-·-········································-·--··-···----··------·- .. ----- 

�,n, .... ,..., -41!- 

City. State, Zip Code No. 

B y _ d_ � � _  
Siinotun:, 1pplican1 or a�nl 

Michael D, Busche Iman , Aqent · 
······-······5�.05 ... Mae .. .Anne .. 'ft.ovenue.. _ 

Street and No., or P.O. Bo. No. 

Reno, Nevada 8957.1 
A P P L I C A T I O N  MUST BE S I G N E D.  
UY THE APPLICANT OR AGENT 

$200 FILING FEE MUST ACCOMPANY APPLICATION. , , 

TELEPHONE NUMBER 

702 747-8550 
( )·----·····-··--------·-··-·-········-- 



APPLICATION.ORS:::!: M ::D :PROPRIATa:: N;��:::I········-·········-···- 
WATERS OF THE STATE OF NEVADA 

THfS SPACE FOR OFFlCE USE ONLY 

Date of filing in State Engineer's Office----····-----·-·····-·-··---·---·--····-····---···--·----·······-······----·--·-----·····-····-···· 

Returned to applicant for correction ..... ---·······-----·······-·-····-····-·-······-··-·············-···-··-··········-·-·-···-············--····--- 

Corrected application filed Map filed ·-------------------- 

. C a l v i n  Dean S t i t z e l  &  M a r i l y n  E .  L u n d  
The apphcanL--------------------···-····-·-······-----·-··-···-·--···---·······----·--····-·--··-- 

State and Zip Code No. 

P .  0 .  Box 1 1 8 2  E l k o  
--·-·····-· -·Stred.and No. or P.O. Box N-;;:-··------·0f---····--··-----·------c;1y.iid-Tow;;-·--··········-····-··--··-··-··-- 

N e v a d a  89801 s 
, hereby make .... application for permission to appropriate 

the public waters of the State of Nevada, as hereinafter stated. (If applicant is a corporation, give date and place of 

incorporation; if a copartnership or association give names of members.)----- 

-------------··----- 

Is applicant a U.S. citizen'! Yes tJ No O 

Is applicant 21 years of age or older? Yes tJ No O 

NRS 533.325 requires that applicant be a cifu:en of the United States or have legally declared their intention to become a 
citizen, and that theybe 21 years of age or older.· 

===== 
- U n d e r g r o u n d  

1 .  The source 'ofthe "proposed appropriation is------:-:---:-----c:--:---,---,----,--�------ 
Namc of stream, lake, spring. underground or othc,- M>Ur<:<!. 

1 .  00 c f s  
2. The amount of water applied for is------�---,�--.,.....,..,.0-=---,,,.------,--------"econd feet. 

Oee second foot equals 448.83 gallons per minute. 

(a) If stored in reservoir give number of acre-fee�---------------- 
C o m m e r c i a l  3. The water to be used for _ 

Irrigation. power, minin&. commercial, dom�iic or other use. Must-limit to one maToruse-:--··----- 

4. If use is for: 

(a) Irrigation, state number of acres to be irrigated.L, _ 

(b) Stockwater, state number and kind of animals _ 

(c) Other use (describe fully under "No. 12. Remarks")-----··- 

(d) Power: 

n 
EXHIBIT ) D 

. - · · ·-- - · ·  ··- 

(1) Horsepower developed _ 

(2) Point of return of water to strea ... rn..__ _ 



. • · · N W  1 / 4  ·w 1 / 4  ( L o t  l l  o f  ' 5 .  ;r:he water is to be diverted from .urce at the following point.. - -; , .. , ,.,-,··············,· 
Dcscn ng within a 40-acrc subdivision of public 

S e c t i o n  3 0 ,  T  3 4  N ,  5 5  E .  M D B  & M . ,  a t  a  p o i  f r o m  w h i c h  t h e  N W  

survey.  and by course and distance to a section corner. If on unsurveyed land. it should be so stated. 
c o r n e r  o f  s a i d  S e c t i o n  3 0 ,  b e a r- s  N 4 4  °  29 · 4 9 "  W ,  2 1 0 .  20 f e e t .  

NW 1 / 4  NW 1 / 4  ( L o t  1 )  o f  S e c t i o n  3 0 ,  T  3 4  N ,  R  5 5  E ,  M D B  & 6. Place of use--·--·--··-·-·······-······-··-·······---······-·········-·······················--·-·····-·····--·-············-·····-··············-·--········-···-·· Describe by legal subdivision. If on unsurveyed land. ii should be so stated. 

M .  

January 1 December 31 7. Use will begin abouL.----·--·----·------··..and end about___ of each year. 
Month and Day Month and Day 

8. Description of proposed works (Under the provisions of NRS 535.010 you may be required to submit plans and 
W e l l ,  P i p e l i n e s  and Storage Tank specifications of your diversion or storage works.)----------·· - --------- 

State manner in which water is to be diverted, i.e. diversion structure, 

ditches aod Humes, drilled well with pump and moror, etc. 

9. Estimated cost of works 

--------··-----·-···------ 

$ 2 0 , 0 0 0  
----------··------ 

three years 
10. Estimated time required to construct works--·--·· 

five years 
1 1 .  Estimated time required to complete the application of water to beneficial use. _ 

12. Remarks: For use other than irrigation or stock watering, state number and type of units to be served: or annual 
consumptive use. 
Waters a p p l i e d  for under this a p p l i c a t i o n  are to serve a .  Truck 

Repair Shop, Tire Shop, 2-Bay Truck  Wash,  Cafe and 500 Motel U n i t s .  

·---------------- 

If well oompleted, describe worn. 

-----·--··--·-··---· -------------·--------- 

TELEPHONE NUMBER 

702 738 - 4053 

HIGH D E S E R T  E n g i n e e � i n g ,  A g e n t  

8Y---�atr�E 
stgnl®��I or agent 

640 Idaho Street 

APPLICATION MUST BE SIGNED 

BY THE APPLICANT OR AGENT 

$200 FILING FEE MUST ACCOMPANY APPLICATION 

Cicy, State, Zip Code No. 

Street and No .• or P.O. &x.No.- 

E l k o ,  Nevada 89801 

. .. . .  �  ..  ,� '::- ·.· 



RECEIVED 

MAR O 7 20 1 8  

ELKO ANNEXATION DESCRIPTION 

BEG INN IG  AT THE FOUND NORTHWEST 1/4 CORNER OF SECTION 30, TOWNSHIP 34 NORTH, RANGE 55 

EAST, MOUNT DIABLO BASE AND M E R I D A I N ;  AND R U N N I N G  THENCE ALONG THE CURRENT ELKO CITY 

BOUNDARY THE FOLLOWING N I N E  (9) BEARINGS AND DISTANCES, (1)  NORTH 89°58'16" EAST 446.33 

FEET; (2) THENCE SOUTH 00°01'36" EAST 255.00 FEET; (3) THENCE NORTH 89°58'22" EAST 482.63 FEET; 

(4) THENCE SOUTH 00°01'38" EAST 53.00 FEET; (5) THENCE NORTH 89°58'22" EAST 219.40 FEET; (6) 

THENCE SOUTH 57°57'49" EAST 40.00 FEET; (7) THENCE NORTH 32°02'04" EAST 234.84 FEET; (8) 

THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF A 1160.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE OT THE LEFT 171.94 FEET (CHORD BEARS 

SOUTH 62°13'10" EAST 171 .78 FEET); (9) THENCE SOUTH 01°19'23" WEST 230.20 FEET; THENCE 

LEAVING SAID ELKO CITY BOUNDARY SOUTH 32°02'04" WEST 796.12 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89°58'22" 

WEST 98.20 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 20°44'31" WEST 223 .89 FEET TO THE CURRENT ELKO CITY 

BOUNDARY; THENCE NORTH 89°59'20" WEST 877.75 FEET ALONG THE CURRENT ELKO CITY BOUNDARY; 

THENCE NORTH 01 °02'00" EAST 1323.99 FEET TO THE POINT OF B E G I N N I N G .  

A R E A =  32.74 ACRES 



i
t

U
-

l
'i

9
-
10

8
 

1
 

'i
l
6

'i
-
t

6
'i

-
10

i
 

lCO
tS 

rn 
A

U
:)

 
tH

8
:IM

 
tS

V
�

 
O

il 
«

m
o

s
 

9
6
l
�
 

W
0

:l
0

NI
A

'J
A

l;l
n

$
1N

3
W

3
1

3
M.

'I.M
 

()
N

I
A

3
A

cJ
n

S
 

O
N

\f
l

 

±
N

J
�

J
l

J
ts

 

W
'q

!;:
0

1,,1
 

3
'ii

'i
1::l

 
N

'7
>

. 

'.J
i"

 
'J

.3
S

 
s
c
 

�
3

-
�

7
''C

 
\'I

t-.
 

3
-s

_
 

t-..
 

0
3

-
'0'

::
o

·
 

>
 !

 \j
.1

Q
j

 
Q

'>l
1

.3
 

1
'1

l
d

 
N

O
l1

'1
X

:::J
N

N
'1

 

I 
.:!

O
 

I 

'I
L

Z
·
Z

t·
L

I 

.6
6

S
Z

S:
I 

3
 .. 0

0
.Z

O
,IO

N
 

>-
 

>-
 

a::
 

a::
 

..
 

..
 

a
 

a
 

z
 

z
 

::,
 

::,
 

0
 

0
 

CD
 

N
 

CD
 

>-
 

N
 

>-
 

....
 

;,,
 

':::
 

"'
 

u
 

�
 

_J
 

u
 

0
 

0
 

"'
 

z
 

"'
 

...J
 

...J
 

UJ
 

UJ
 

....
 

....
 

z
 

z
 

UJ
 

�
 

UJ
 

a::
 

a::
 

a::
 

a::
 

::,
 

,.._
 

::,
 

u
 

11
 

<O
 

u
 

,:
 

� 0-
 

r
 

� z
 

0
 

0
 

z
 

....
....

 
::\

 
..

 U)
 

...J
 UJ

 
_i

LLI
 

0....
1-

 
w

 
1

 �
 <I

 z
 ::;

 
I

 

0
 0::

 LL.I
S?

 LL.I
 

....
 

(/)
LL.I

�
 I-

 Q::'.
 

LU
 

u,
 

�
�

l:
�

�
 

t
 

0
 

u_
::::>

w
w

v,
 

u,
 

::'
 

�
 a

 �
 2

 <r
 

0
 

:;:
 

a...
�

 I
 <r

 >-
 

U)
 

::;
 

<r
Q::

-
�

�
 

....
 

UJ
 

i::
U

t-
I

UJ
 

�
 

....
 

<r
 (/)

 <I
 I-

 a...
 

..
 

LU
 I

 
O

 
a::

 
-

0:::
1--

f--
c:t:'.

 
w

 
0

 
1--

 a..
 

<t
 a...

 
....

 
a..

 

1
�

�
�

9
 

U)
 
..
 

a::
 

w
 

w
 

a::
 

0
 

....
 

I-
 

.
1-

o
<t

 
U)

 
a::

 
0

 
u

 
..
 �

�
;
�
:
 

...J
 

u
 

a..
 

UJ
 

<i
 
..
 

a::
 

"'
 

....
 

;:!.
 

0
 

I
 

'=
 i=

�
>-

_;
o

 
UJ

 
u

 
....

 
....

 
a::

 
CD

 LU
Z

 
0

 ""
 

w
 

I
 

a::
 

W
C)

w
�

O
 

�
 

z
 
.,,

 
I

 
....

 
w

 
U

z
a:::

4
;::

 
2

 
....

 
ii:

 
u

 �
�

�
a...

;:
 

;,,
 

U)
 

0
 

....
 

0
 

I
 

>-
 

w
z

-
O

z
 

;;
 

LU
 

..
 

w
 

....
 

a::
 

a::
 

><
 

><
 

ii:
 

..
 

0
 ffi

:::;
 <i

 �
 �

 
0

 
....

 
UJ

 
w

 
0

 
..
 

>-
 

I
 -

 0
 a:::

 LL.I
 

·
 

0
 

z
 

z
 

>-
 

z
 

w
 

o
_J

<t
u

C:C::
>-

 
z

 
z

 
a::

 
::,

 
>

 
er

 
..
 
..
 

0
 

a::
 o

�
�

�
�

�
 

0
 

CD
 

::,
 

UJ
 

z
 

U)
 

-
0

 z
 c

a:::
 o

 
Cl)

 
z

 
6

I
LJ...

z
1-

S
 

::,
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

VJ
 -

 O
 O

 U
 o

 
....

 
Cl)

 
:;:

 

�
�
�
�
�
:
 

:;:
 

UJ
 

z
 

0
 

z
 

o
 

0
 

u
 

Z
 I

 <t
 I

 O
 I-

 
..
 

z;
 

<I
I-

I-
 

u
-

 
0

 
UJ

 
:;:

 ....
 

u,
 

U)
 

z
�
�
�
�
::
 

a::
 

a::
 

o
w

 
0

 

w
 

u
 

U
 LU

 
w

 
�

<l
�

�
<I

�
 

0
 

..
 

lL
 

u.
 -

 
"'

*
 

�
�

u_
o

�
�

 
z

 
0

 
O

o
 

..
 "'

 
er

 
w

 
�

�
 

z+
� 

o
>-

O
>-

a::
::::,

 
..
 

U)
 

I
,_;

 

<l
�

V)
':!;

1-
U

 
0

 
....

 
w

 
0

 
a..

 
"'

"
 

u
 >-

 
G

a::
�

 a::
 <I

 w
 

..
 

0
 

z
 >-

 
a::

 ....
 

�
::;

�
�

�
 

I
 

a::
 

w
 ':::

 
LU

 -
 

u
 

a..
 

...J
U

 
a..

 u
 

,.
 

z
 

w
 

i"
 

w
 

w
 

,w
 

,. 
,. 

1
 

0
 

"' 
"' 

N
 

"' 
..
 

...,
 

N
 

;;;
 

"" 
!"

 
!"

 
N

 
..
 

0
 

N
 

N
 

u
 

p 
p
 

co
 

j-,
 

"' 
"' 

"' 
·.., 

w
 

"' 
� 

p
 

,-
 

"' 
:'
 

w
 

"' 
0

 
0

 
en
 

,.._
 

N
 

5
 

en
 

0
 

ci
 

0
 

0
 

"' 
<()

 

"' 
"' 

N
 

...J
 

"' 
"' 

z
 

"' 
z
 

"' 
"' 

"' 
CD

 
<(

 
.... 

i'c
 

0
 

0
 

-...
 

� 
"' 

0
 

0
 

0
 

w
 

" 
0

 
0

 
": 

0
 

"' 
N

 
"' 

z
 

z
 

.,;
 

..;
 

""
 

� 
..;

 
0

 
.;
 

..;
 

:::;
 

� 
"' 

"' 
N

 
� 

� 
""
 

N
 

N
 

N
 

w
 

,.._
 

z
 

::;
 

� 
..., 

..
 

':l
 

"' 
� 

...J
 

...J
 

...J
 

...J
 

...J
 

:::;
 

....
 

z
 

;,,
 

w
 

o
 

"' 
z
 

� 
<O

 

w
 

o
 

0
 

z
 

°' 
;,,

 
-c
 

"' 
w

 
CD

 

"' "' 
0

 

"' 
cc
 

":
 

0
 

w
 

:,:
 

;:;:
 

...J
 

Cl)
 

u
 

s
 

...,
 

w
 

-c
 

>
 

2 
"' 

"' 
"' 

::,
 

0
 

f'
 

u
 

"' 

"' 
0

 
:::,

 
0

 

ci
 

0
 

-c
 

� 
"' 

� 
i'c 

-... 
o
 

I 

"' 
i� 

o
 

� 
� 

z
 

;:;:
 

� 
� 

I 
�
I 

� 
" 

"'
 

u
 

:::,
 

u
 



CITY OF ELKO 
P lann ing Department 

I  \'ebsite: www.elkocitv .com 

Emai/:planninglii elkocitynv.gov 

I 75 I C o l l e g e  A  venue ·  E l k o ,  Nevada 8 9 8 0  I  ·  ( 7 7 5 )  7 7 7 -  7 1 6 0  ·  Fax ( 7 7 5 )  7 7 7 -  72 I 9 

March 9, 2 0  I  8  

E l k o  C o u n t y  P l a n n i n g  a n d  Z o n i n g  
A t t n :  J o h n  K i n g w e l l  
540 Court Street. S u i t e  l  04 
E l k o ,  N V  8 9 8 0 1  

R e :  A n n e x a t i o n  N o .  I -  l  8  

I n  accordance w i t h  the C o m m u n i c a t i o n  P o l i c y  between the C i t y  o f  E l k o  a n d  E l k o  C o u n t y  
and pursuant to S e c t i o n  2 6 8 . 6 7 0  (  l )  o f  N e v a d a  R e v i s e d  S t a t u t e s ,  the C i t y  o f  E l k o  hereby 
notices and a d v i s e s  the Board o f  C o u n t y  C o m m i s s i o n e r s  o f  the C o u n t y  o f  E l k o  o f  t h e  
C i t y ' s  i n t e n t i o n  to c o n s i d e r  a n n e x a t i o n  o f  c o n t i g u o u s  territory as p e t i t i o n e d  by J o y G l o b a l  
Surface M i n i n g  I n c .  and Ed & S h a r o n  N e t h e r t o n .  P l e a s e  find e n c l o s e d  a  d o u b l e - s i d e d  
copy o f  the a p p l i c a t i o n  for a n n e x a t i o n  and map o f  the area for your r e v i e w  and c o m m e n t .  

The subject property c o n s i s t s  o f  a p prox ima t e l y  3 2 .  74 acres and i s  located g e n e r a l l y  on 
the north a n d  sou t h  of  P&H Dr ive, approx ima t e l y  1 . 0 0 0  feet northwest of 1 -80  E x i t  298 .  

The subject property sa t i s fie s  m i n i m u m S tat e  c r i t e r ia for an n exa t i o n .  

Review by  the E lko  C i t y  P lan n i n g  C omm i s s i o n  is schedu led for A p r i l  3 .  20 l 8 .  

P l e a s e  s u b m i t  written comments to the Ci t y  of E l k o  P l a n n i ng Department as soon as 
po s s ib l e .  I f  we do not receive written c omme n t s  p r i o r  to t h e  s c h e d u l e d  me e t i n g .  we w i l l  
a s sume  you have no concerns regarding t h i s  a p p l i c a t i o n .  

P lease feel free to c o n t a c t  me i f  you have an y  ques t i o ns concerning t h i s  matter.  

S i n c e r e ly. 

� � -  (._, I  
Sh e lby  ArchLil"e(a 
P l a n n i ng Technician 

Enclosures 



RECEIVED 

FEB 2 2 20 18 

CITY OF ELKO P L A N N I N G  DEPARTMENT 

1 7 5 1  C o l l e g e  A v e n u e '  E l k o  T  N e v a d a ·  8 9 8 0 1  

( 775 )  7 7 7 - 7 1 6 0  ·  ( 775 )  7 7 7 - 7 1 1 9  fax 

A P P L I C A T I O N  FOR ANNEXATION 

A::acheo lo t rie  er d of  th . s  document  
.. ·-· - ---- - - · -  

-  -  ------·-· - - ...  · -  -  ---- ---- ·- - ·  -  -  --- .  ·- ·-----· -- - 

--------------------- 

; \SSESSO� P/\ : �eel NUL  1 8 E  F< � 00609N004 .  0 0609N009 . 0 0609N007  
�, . 

JoyGlobal Surface Mining Inc. {77 5) 7 48-4650 

�t N�e) Sig-iaiurn 
4400 P&H Drive Elke:i NV 80001 

Mailh'J Address 

· · · - - - - - - - - ·  -  

,  ?  -  . .  ·it 1\J�1:r":_; J 

R�-; seo 1 2  cu • 5  

-  -  --·-·-· ---·--·· -· - - ---- -· - . .  ---------·- - -- .. -- - -- · -  -- 

. : : , c: :) ,. ·: ')' >._; i < � d ·1 '. ;  t"; . 

. -- . 

I. ! __.:1 ! I : 1 �1 ;\ :j:: :· s =' .. 



FILING REQUIREMENTS: 

Complete Application Form: I n  order to b e g i n  p r o c e s s i n g  t h e  a p p l i c a t i o n ,  a n  a p p l i c a t i o n  form 
m u s t  be complete a n d  s i g n e d .  A p p l i c a t i o n s  go before t h e  City C o u n c i l ,  P l a n n i n g  C o m m i s s i o n ,  a n d  
b a c k  to City C o u n c i l  twice, a n d  w i l l  take a m i n i m u m  of 8 w e e k s .  

Fee: 1 0  acres or l e s s  $ 5 0 0 . 0 0 ,  g r e a t e r  t h a n  1 0  a c r e s  t h r o u g h  50 acres $ 7 5 0 . 0 0 ,  g r e a t e r  t h a n  50 
acres $ 1 , 2 5 0 . 0 0 .  T h e  f i l i n g  fee s h a l l  be p a i d  i n  f u l l  p r i o r  to c o n s i d e r a t i o n  of t h e  a n n e x a t i o n  request 
by t h e  P l a n n i n g  C o m m i s s i o n .  

Annexation Map: An a n n e x a t i o n  m a p  or record of survey of t h e  a r e a  proposed for a n n e x a t i o n  
provided by a p r o p e r l y  l i c e n s e d  surveyor. S u c h  m a p  s h a l l  i n c l u d e  t h e  proposed acreage to be 
a n n e x e d ,  a n d  t h e  l e n g t h  a n d  percentage of c o m m o n  b o u n d a ry  (at l e a s t  1 5 % )  with t h e  corporate 
l i m i t s  of the C i t y .  If the property a b u t s  a  road not a l r e a d y  i n  t h e  City l i m i t s ,  at l e a s t  o n e  h a l f  of the 
road m u s t  be i n c l u d e d  i n  t h e  m a p  a n d  l e g a l  d e s c r i p t i o n  (see N . R . S .  2 6 8 . 6 6 3 ) .  

Legal Description: A  c o m p l e t e  l e g a l  d e s c r i p t i o n  of a l l  property proposed for a n n e x a t i o n .  

Plot P lan :  If t h e  property is i m p r o v e d ,  a  surveyed plot p l a n  s h o w i n g  property l i n e s ,  e x i s t i n g  
b u i l d i n g s ,  b u i l d i n g  s e t b a c k s ,  p a r k i n g  a n d  l o a d i n g  a r e a s  a n d  a n y  o t h e r  p e rt i n e n t  i n f o r m a t i o n .  

Note: O n e  . p d f  ( e m a i l  is okay) of t h e  e n t i r e  a p p l i c a t i o n  m u s t  be s u b m i t t e d ,  as well as o n e  set of 
l e g i b l e ,  r e p r o d u c i b l e  p l a n s  8  Yi" x  1 1 "  i n  s i z e .  If the a p p l i c a n t  feels t h e  C o m m i s s i o n  n e e d s  to see 
24" x 36" p l a n s ,  1 0  sets of pre-folded p l a n s  m u s t  be s u b m i t t e d .  

Other Information: T h e  a p p l i c a n t  is e n c o u r a g e d  to s u b m i t  o t h e r  i n f o r m a t i o n  a n d  d o c u m e n t a t i o n  
to s u p p o r t  t h i s  A n n e x a t i o n  r e q u e s t  

I .  I d e n t i f y  t h e  e x i s t i n g  z o n i n g  c l a s s i f i c a t i o n  of t h e  p r o p e rt y :  L i g h t  I n d u s t r i a l  ( L I )  

2 .  I d e n t i f y  the z o n i n g  c l a s s i f i c a t i o n  b e i n g  r e q u e s t e d  u p o n  a n n e x a t i o n :  Light Industr ia l  ( L I )  
(A separate zone change application must be submitted for the requested classification.) 

3.  E x p l a i n  i n  d e t a i l  t h e  type a n d  nature of t h e  u s e  a n t i c i p a t e d  for the property. 
Approximately 180 ,000 S . F .  heavy equipment rental ,  repair and parts faci l ity. 

4. I d e n t i f y  a n y  u n i q u e  p h y s i c a l  f e a t u r e s  or c h a r a c t e r i s t i c s  a s s o c i a t e d  with t h e  property. 

The property is currently occupied by a 40,000 S .F .  repair faci l ity. 

R e v i s e d  1 2 / 0 4 / 1 5  P a g e  2  



5.  Identify the type and extent of City infrastructure anticipated for service to the property such as 
streets, sewer, and water service. 

P&H drive wi l l  be improved and cu l inary water extended as wel l  

as dry sewer for future connnect ion.  

6. Identify any water rights which will support the annexed property: _ 

Exist ing wel l  wi l l  be capped and water rights transferred to city. 

(Use additional pages if necessary to address questions 3 through 6) 

Revised 12/04/15 Page 3 



By My Signature below: 

I ./  I  I  c o n s e n t  to h a v i n g  the C i t y  of E l k o  Staff e n t e r  on my p r o p e rt y  o n l y  for t h e  s o l e  p u r p o s e  of 

i n s p e c t i o n  s a i d  p r o p e rt y  as p a rt  of t h i s  a p p l i c a t i o n  p r o c e s s .  

D I  object to h a v i n g  t h e  C i t y  of E l k o  Staff e n t e r  o n t o  my p r o p e rt y  as a p a rt  of t h e i r  review of 

t h i s  a p p l i c a t i o n .  (Your objection will not affect the recommendation made by the staff or the final determination 
made by the City Planning Commission or the City Counci l . }  

!./ l  I  a c k n o w l e d g e  t h a t  s u b m i s s i o n  of t h i s  a p p l i c a t i o n  d o e s  not i m p l y  a p p r o v a l  of t h i s  r e q u e s t  

by t h e  C i t y  P l a n n i n g  D e p a rt m e n t ,  t h e  C i t y  P l a n n i n g  C o m m i s s i o n  a n d  t h e  C i t y  C o u n c i l ,  n o r  d o e s  it 
i n  a n d  of itself g u a r a n t e e  i s s u a n c e  of a n y  o t h e r  r e q u i r e d  p e r m i t s  a n d / o r  l i c e n s e s .  

i  ./  I  I  a c k n o w l e d g e  t h a t  t h i s  a p p l i c a t i o n  m a y  be t a b l e d  u n t i l  a  l a t e r  m e e t i n g  if e i t h e r  I  or my 

d e s i g n a t e d  r e p r e s e n t a t i v e  or a g e n t  is not p r e s e n t  at the m e e t i n g  for w h i c h  t h i s  a p p l i c a t i o n  is 
s c h e d u l e d .  

i  ./  I  I  h a v e  c a r e f u l l y  read a n d  c o m p l e t e d  a l l  q u e s t i o n s  c o n t a i n e d  w i t h i n  t h i s  a p p l i c a t i o n  to t h e  

best of my a b i l i t y .  

Applicant I Agent_L_o_n_n_y_R_e_e_d _ 
( P l e a s e  p r i n t  or t y p e )  

Mai l ing Address 52 West 1 0 0  North 
Street A d d r e s s  or P . O .  Box 

Heber City, UT 84032 

C i t y ,  S t a t e ,  Z i p  C o d e  

P h o n e  N u m b e r :  (435) 654-4828 

E m a i l  a d d r e s s :  lonny@legendengineer ing .com 

File No. :  

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 

\ - \ 'c) Date Filed: 2  /  2.1.. / I t) Fee Paid: j \ , ODD Ct.# ]L/1£../ 

R e v i s e d  1 2 / 0 4 / 1 5  P a g e  4  



Shelby Archuleta 

From: 

Sent: 

To: 

Subject: 

Cat Ii y La ugfiiin 
City Ptanner 

( 7 7 5 ) 7 7 7 - 7 1 6 0  ph 
( 7 7 5 ) 7 7 7 - 7 2 1 9  fax 
claughl in0 elkocitvnv.gov 

City of Elko 
l 7.=, I College Avenue 
Elko, NV 8 9 8 0 1  

Cathy Laughl in  

Thursday, March 8, 2018  2:28 PM 

Shelby Archuleta 

FW: Permission to act as agent 

From: RobertR ichens[mai l to :robert . r ichens@mining .komatsu]  

Sent: Thursday, March 08, 2018 2 :24 PM 

To: Cathy Laughl in <claughl in@elkocitynv.gov> 

Cc: Lonny Reed <lonny@legendengineering.com> 

Subject: Re: Permission to act as agent 

Yes, Harnischfeger is a parent company organization to JoyGlobal. 

Originally the Elko facility was P&H MinePro and so the name of the road in Elko Nevada in which the 
property sits. It is derived from Pawling and Harnischfeger, The original founders. 

Thanks 
Robert 

On Mar 8, 20 1 8 ,  at 3 : 1 7  PM, Cathy Laughlin <claughlin@elkocitynv.gov> wrote: 

Lonny, 

We show the property owner as Harn ischfeger Corporation. Is th is a parent corporation to the JoyGlobal  Surface M in i ng  

Inc .?  If you could please clarify th is  for our  appl icat ion.  

Thanks, 

Cathy Laugfi(in 
City 'Pianner 

( 7 7 5 ) 7 7 7 - 7 1 6 0  ph 

( 7 7 5 1 7 7 7 - 7 .2 1 9  fax 
claughlin@elkocitvnv.gov 

City of Elko 
1 7 5 1  College Avenue 
Elko, NV 89801 



Shelby Archuleta 

From: 

Sent: 

To: 

Subject: 

Cathy Laugfiiin 
City ' P l a n n e r  

( 7 7 5 ) 7 7 7 - 7 1 6 0  ph 
( 7 7 5 ) 7 7 7 -  7 2 1 9  fax 

claughlin((i'elkocitvnv.gov 

City of Elko 
1 7 5 1  College Avenue 
Elko. NV 8980 J 

Cathy Laughl in 

Wednesday, March 7, 2018 3:43 PM 

Shelby Archuleta 

FW: Permission to act as agent 

From: Lonny Reed [mai lto: lonny@legendengineering.com] 

Sent: Wednesday, March 07, 2018 3:34 PM 

To: Cathy Laughl in <claughl in@elkocitynv.gov> 

Subject: Fwd: Permission to act as agent 

Hi Cathy, 
I understand that you got an email from the Nethertons giving us permission to act as agent? 
Let me know if that's not the case please. 
See below for Robert Richens' approval. 
Thank you, 
Lonny 
Lonny Reed, P.E .  
Legend Engineering 
lonny@leqendenqineerinq.com 
www.leqendenqineerinq.com 
Tel 435 654-4828 

Mobile 801 633-0444 

52 West 100 North 

Heber City, UT 84032 

Begin forwarded message: 

From: Robert Richens <robert.r ichens@mining.komatsu> 
Subject: RE: Permission to act as agent 
Date: March 2, 20 18  at 2 : 14 :47 PM MST 
To: Lonny Reed <lonny@legendengineering.com>, Ed Netherton <ednetherton@gmail .com> 
Cc: John Pfisterer <johnp@komatsueq.com>, Andrew Bollschweiler <andrew@aeurbia.com>, David 
Kuhn <davidk@kuhnpm.com> 



Lonny, 

Please use this emai l  as author izat ion to act as our Agent for the annexat ion .  

Thanks 
Robert 

Robert Richens 

Executive Vice President -- KEC Operat ions 
JoyGlobal Surface Mining Inc 
Office + 1 801 952 4 739 
Mobile +1 435 650 0774 

KOMA,.SU 

From: Lonny Reed [mai lto: lonny@legendengineer ing.com] 
Sent: Friday, March 02, 2018 1:07 PM 

To: Ed Netherton <ednetherton@gmai l .com>; Robert Richens <robert .r ichens@mining.komatsu> 
Cc: John Pfisterer < johnp@komatsueq.com>; Andrew Bol lschwei ler <andrew@aeurbia .com>; David Kuhn 
<dav idk@kuhnpm.com> 
Subject: Fwd: Permission to act as agent 

H i  Ed and Robert, 

Cathy from the City of Elko is asking for an emai l  from each of you that assigns Legend Engineering to act as agent for 
the annexation. Please respond to this emai l  as soon as you can and I wil l forward to Cathy. 
Thank you, 
Lonny 

Lonny Reed, P .E .  
Legend Engineering 
lonny@leqendengineerinq.com 
www.leqendenqineerinq.com 
Tel 435 654-4828 

Mobile 801 633-0444 

52 West 100 North 

Heber City, UT 84032 

Begin forwarded message: 

From: Cathy Laughl in <claughl in@elkocitynv.gov> 
Subject: Permission to act as agent 
Date: March 2, 2018  at 1 : 0 0 : 1 4  PM MST 
To: Lonny Reed <lonny@legendengineering.com> 
Cc: Shelby Archuleta <sarchuleta@elkocitynv.gov>, Jeremy Draper <jdraper@elkocitynv.gov> 

Lonny, 
Could you get an emai l  or written permission from both JoyGlobal and Nethertons to assign you as their agent for this 
annexation as we are showing Legend as the appl icant on behalf of the property owners. 
Thanks, 

2 



Cath. y Laughlin 
City 'Planner 

( 7 7 5 ) 7 7 7 - 7 1 6 0  ph 
( 7 7 5 ) 7 7 7 - 7 2 1 9  fax 

claughlin({'i'elkocitynv.gov 

City of Elko 
1 7 5 1  College Avenue 
Elko. NV 8980 I 

This electronic mail transmission contains information from Joy Global Inc. which is confidential, and is intended only for the use of the 
proper Addressee. If you are not the intended recipient, please notify us immediately at the return address on this transmission, and 
delete this message and any attachments from your system. Unauthorized use, copying, disclosing, distributing, or taking any action in 
reliance on the contents of this transmission is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful. Privacy-JG I 

3 



Cathy Laughlin 

From: 

Sent: 

To: 

Cc: 

Subject: 

Sharon Netherton <ssnetherton@yahoo.com> 

Monday, March 05, 2018 4:16 PM 

Cathy Laughl in 

Ed Netherton 

Netherton Annexation 

Dear Cathy, 
I give my permission to Lonnie Reed from Legend Engineering to sign as my agent for the annexation of the property at 
mile marker 298. · 

Sincerely 

Sharon Netherton 



February 25, 2018  I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 4 

i n  t h i s  i s s u e :  

Mat #42078488 
(it1�) THOMSON REUTERS® 

Preemption/Aviation-Town says use of private heliport is prohibited under 
town zoning laws 2 

Historic District-Property owners raze and reconstruct house located in 
historic district but not individually listed on state or national historic 
registers 5 

Jurisdiction/School District-Town says school district's electronic sign 
violates town zoning ordinances 9 

Zoning News from Around the Nation 1 1  



--------------------------�----·- .. 

February 25, 2018  I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 4 Zoning Bulletin 

Preemption/Aviation-Town says 
use of private hel iport is prohibited 
under town zoning laws 

Heliport owner contends state aeronautics code preempts 

zoning laws 

Citation: Roma, III, Ltd. v. Board of Appeals of Rockport, 478 Mass. 580, 

88 N.E.Jd 269 (2018) 

MASSACHUSETTS (0 I /08/ 17)-This case addressed the issue of 
"whether cities and towns may exercise their zoning authority to determine 

------- Contributors ------- 

Corey E. Burnham-Howard 

For authorization to photocopy, please contact the West's Copyright Clear 
ance Center at 222 Rosewood Drive, Danvers, MA 01923, USA (978) 750- 
8400; fax (978) 646-8600 or West's Copyright Services at 61 O Opperman 
Drive, Eagan, MN 55123, fax (651) 687-7551. Please outline the specific ma 
terial involved, the number of copies you wish to distribute and the purpose or 
format of the use. 

This publication was created to provide you with accurate and authoritative in 
formation concerning the subject matter covered; however, this publication 
was not necessarily prepared by persons licensed to practice law in a particu 
lar jurisdiction. The publisher is not engaged in rendering legal or other profes 
sional advice and this publication is not a substitute for the advice of an 
attorney. If you require legal or other expert advice, you should seek the ser 
vices of a competent attorney or other professional. 

Zoning Bulletin is published and copyrighted by Thomson Reuters, 61 O Op 
perman Drive, P.O. Box 64526, St. Paul, MN 55164-0526. For subscription 
information: call (800) 229-2084, or write to West, Credit Order Processing, 
620 Opperman Drive, PO Box 64833, St. Paul, MN 55164-9753. 

POSTMASTER: Send address changes to Zoning Bullet in, 6 1 0  Opperman 
Drive, P.O. Box 64526, St. Paul, MN 55164-0526. 

61 O Opperman Drive 
P.O. Box 64526 

St. Paul, MN 55164-0526 
1-800-229-2084 

email :  west.customerseNice@thomsonreuters.com 
ISSN 0514-7905 

t2018 Thomson Reuters 
All Rights Heserved 

Quinlan™ is a Thomson Reuters brand 

2 I 2018  Thomson Reuters 



Zoning Bulletin February 25, 2018 I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 4 

whether land in their communities may be used as a noncommercial private 
restricted landing area, here a heliport, or whether they may do so only with 
the approval of the [Division of Aeronautics of the Massachusetts Department 
of Transportation] because the exercise of such zoning authority is preempted 
by the [Massachusetts's] aeronautics statutes, G. L. c. 90, §§ 35-52 (aeronau 
tics code)." 

The Background/Facts: Ron Roma ("Ron") was a licensed helicopter 
pilot who regularly used his helicopter to travel to his "various family homes, 
business engagements, and other activities," but did not use the helicopter for 
any commercial purposes. One of those family homes, owned by Roma, III, 
Ltd. ("Roma"), was located on 1 .62 acres of property (the "Property") in a res 
idential zoning district in the Town of Rockport (the "Town"). Roma requested 
and received from the Federal Aviation Administration, a "determination of 
airspace suitability," recognizing the Property as a licensed private use 
heliport. Following an airspace review, Roma also received approval from the 
Division of Aeronautics of the Massachusetts Department of Transportation 
(the "Division"). 

In November 2014, Ron flew his helicopter to the Property. Soon thereafter, 
the Town's building inspector issued an enforcement order to Roma. That or 
der stated that a heliport was "not allowed, either as a principal use of the 
property or an accessory use, in any zoning district in the [tlown," and that the 
use of Roma's Property for the landing of a helicopter was in violation of the 
Town's bylaw. The Town building inspector ordered "that the landing of 
helicopters on the property be stopped immediately" and that the "[fjailure to 
comply with this order may result in fines of up to $300 per day." 

Roma appealed the enforcement order to the Town's Board of Appeals 
("Board"). The Board ultimately denied the appeal. The Board explained that, 
under the Town's zoning bylaw, uses that were "not expressly permitted" were 
"deemed prohibited ." Since the bylaws did not expressly authorize the use of 
land for a heliport, the Board concluded that Roma's use of the Property for a 
heliport was not permitted. The Board also concluded that the use of a heliport 
was not allowed as a " 'customarily incidental' accessory use" or as an "ac 
cessory use normally associated with a one-family detached dwelling that is 
not detrimental to a residential neighborhood." Consequently, the Board 
determined that a heliport would need "some form of approval, variance and/or 
special permit." 

Roma appealed the Board's decision to the Land Court. The Land Court 
judge determined that he was "constrained to apply" prior caselaw (Hanlon v. 
Town of Sheffield, 89 Mass. App. Ct. 392, 50 N.E.3d 443 (2016) (abrogated by, 
Roma, 111, Ltd. v. Board of Appeals of Rockport, 478 Mass. 580, 88 N.E.3d 
269 (2018))), which interpreted the Massachusetts aeronautics code-G. L. c. 
9P, § 39B-"to indicate that a town may not enforce a zoning bylaw that 
would prohibit a private landowner from creating a noncommercial private 
restricted landing area on his or her property, unless the relevant bylaw had 
been approved by the [D]ivision." Here, the Town zoning bylaw had not been 
approved by the Division. Accordingly, finding there were no material issues 
of fact in dispute and deciding the matter on the law alone, the judge granted 
summary judgment to Roma. 

'.§: 2018  Thomson Reuters 3 



February 25, 2018 I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 4 Zoning Bulletin 

The Board applied to the Supreme Judicial Court of Massachusetts for 
direct appellate review, which was granted. 

DECISION: Judgment of Land Court vacated and matter remanded. 

Abrogating (i .e. ,  repealing) Hanlon v. Town of Sheffield, 89 Mass. App. Ct. 
392, 50 N.E.3d 443 (2016) (abrogated by, Roma, III, ltd. v. Board of Appeals 
of Rockport, 478 Mass. 580, 88 N.E.3d 269 (2018)), the Supreme Judicial 
Court of Massachusetts held that cities and towns in Massachusetts may 
exercise their zoning authority to determine whether land in their communities 
may be used as a noncommercial private restricted landing area. In other 
words, the court held that the state aeronautics code-G. L. c. 90, § 39B--did 
not preempt local zoning regarding noncommercial private restricted landing 
areas. 

In reaching that conclusion, the court analyzed the statute. The court found 
that the first three paragraphs of § 39B required municipalities to apply to the 
Division for a certificate of approval before acquiring any property for "an 
airport or restricted landing area." Paragraph four provided that § 39B did 
"not apply to restricted landing areas for non-commercial private use," among 
other exceptions. The court found that to mean that "a private landowner who 
wishes to establish a noncommercial private restricted landing area does not 
need prior [D]ivision approval; the landowner simply needs to inform the 
[D]ivision in writing of its establishment, and ensure that it is not built or 
maintained in a manner that would endanger the public safety." The court 
found that paragraph five allowed municipalities to enact rules and regulations 
governing "the use and operation of an aircraft at an airport or restricted land 
ing area," but such rules and regulations were only effective if approved by 
the Division. 

Here, the Board had argued that since the fourth paragraph declared that 
§ 39B did not apply to restricted landing areas designed for noncommercial 
private use, the fifth paragraph requiring Division approval of municipal rules 
and regulations on restricted areas did not apply to noncommercial private 
restricted landing areas. 

The Supreme Judicial Court agreed with the Board. In agreeing, the court 
acknowledged that the "use and operation of aircraft" was governed by § 39B, 
but emphasized that the use of land, on the other hand, was traditionally 
regulated by municipal i t ies under their zoning authority. Accordingly, 
concluded the court, "regardless of whether § 39B is the sole source of a city 
or town's authority to regulate the 'use and operation of aircraft,' it plainly is 
not the source of a city or town's authority to regulate the use of land." 

Roma had contended that, nevertheless, unless approved in advance by the 
Division, the Town's zoning bylaw that prohibited the use of land to establish 
a noncommercial private restricted landing area was preempted by the state 
aeronautics code. Roma argued that a clear intent to preempt such local zon 
ing enactments should be inferred "to prevent frustration of the legislative 
purpose of the aeronautics code." 

The court disagreed with Roma. The court explained both federal and state 
preemption analysis. Focusing on state law preemption, the court said that "a 

local regulation will not be invalidated unless the court finds a 'sharp conflict' 

4 £ 2018  Thomson Reuters 



Zoning Bul let in February 25, 2018  I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 4 

between the local and State provisions." Here, the court found that the legisla 
tive purpose of the aeronautics code of "foster[ing] . . .  private flying" did 
not suggest a legislative intent to encourage the development of private 
heliports and landing areas on private property. Contrary, found the court, 
since land use regulation has long been recognized by the Legislature to be a 
prerogative of local government, the court concluded that it would "not infer 
that the enactment of the aeronautics code reflects a clear legislative intent to 
preempt all local zoning bylaws that might affect noncommercial private 
restricted landing areas based on the risk of frustrating the legislative purpose 
of fostering private flying." Nor was the court "persuaded that the Legislature, 
by granting the [D]ivision 'general supervision and control over aeronautics,' 
[under] G. L. c. 90, § 39, intended to preempt all local land use regulation that 
might affect the use of land for private heliports." 

Accordingly, the court concluded that "there [ was] no clear legislative intent 
to preempt local zoning enactments with respect to noncommercial private 
restricted landing areas, and that a city or town does not need the prior ap 
proval of the [D]ivision to enforce a zoning bylaw that requires some form of 
approval, variance, or special permit for land to be used as a private heliport." 

Thus, the enforcement order against Roma was upheld. 

See also: Town of Harvard v. Maxant, 360 Mass. 432, 440, 275 N.E.2d 347 
(197 I) . 

See also: Town of Wendell v. Attorney General, 394 Mass. 518, 476 N.E.2d 
585 ( 1985). 

Historic District-Property owners 
raze and reconstruct house located 
in historic district but not 
individual ly listed on state or 
national historic registers 

Abutting neighbors sue, arguing new house violates state 

historic-district regulations, and seeking injunction for 

modifications to new house 

Citation: McDowell v. Sapienza, 2018 SD I, 2018 WL 285839 (S.D. 2018) 

SOUTH DAKOTA (01/03/18)-This case addressed the issue of whether 
historic-district regulations applied to a property owner's new home con 
structed in an historic district, despite the fact that the home was not listed on 
state or national historic registers. 

The Background/Facts: The McKennan Park Historic District of Sioux 
Falls ("McKennan Park") is a historic property listed on the national register 
of historic places. In 2014,  Joseph and Dr. Sarah Sapienza (the "Sapienzas") 

f 2018 Thomson Reuters 5 



February 25, 2018 I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 4 Zoning Bul letin 

purchased a house in  McKennan Park. The house they purchased was 
designated an "intrusion" and "noncontributing property," and it was not listed 
on the state or national registers of historic places. The Sapienzas originally 
planned to renovate the house, but ultimately decided to raze it and construct a 
new home on the property. 

In furtherance of their plans, the Sapienzas submitted architectural render 
ings to the Board of Historic Preservation (the "Board") of the City of Sioux 
Falls (the "City"). The Sapienzas disclosed to the Board that some changes 
may be made to the plans submitted. The Sapienzas also notified the Board 
that their home would be larger than the previous structure. Based on the in 
formation provided, the Board approved the Sapienzas' proposal, and the City 
issued a building permit for the proposed construction. 

In October 20 14 ,  the Sapienzas began constructing their new home. 
Construction of the home was complete in January 2016 .  

In the interim, in May 2 0 1 5 ,  owners of the property adjacent to the 
Sapienzas' property-Pierce and Barbara McDowell (the "McDowells") 
sued the Sapienzas. The McDowells' suit against the Sapienzas was based on 
theories of negligence and nuisance. Among other things, the McDowells al 
leged that construction of the Sapienzas' home violated a state regulations 
governing new construction in historic districts-ARSD 24:52:07:04. ARSD 
24:52:07:04 establishes standards for "[n]ew construction or additions within 
a historic district." It covers numerous standards including, among others, the 
design, height, width, and proportion of such new construction. 

The circuit court agreed that the Sapienzas home violated state historic 
district regulations. The court entered judgment in favor of the McDowells. 
The court issued a mandatory injunction requiring the Sapienzas to modify 
their home to comply with the state regulation for historic districts. 

The Sapienzas appealed. On appeal, the Sapienzas argued that ARSD 
24:52:07:04 did not apply to their property because their home was not listed 
on the state or national registers. They relied on ARSD 24:52:07:0 I ,  which 
provides that the regulations in ARSD chapter 24:52:07 "apply to historic 
properties listed on the state register or the national register, or both." They 
interpreted ARSD 24:52 :07 :01  to limit ARSD 24:52:07:04's application to 
new construction on individual properties already listed on the state or national 
registers. They also argued that the court abused its discretion in granting an 
injunction requiring modification of their home (as opposed to requiring them 
to pay monetary damages). 

DECISION: Judgment of circuit court affirmed in relevant part. 

The Supreme Court of South Dakota held that the State historic-district 
regulations applied to the Sapienzas' new home constructed in the McKennan 
Park Historic District. 

In so holding, the court disagreed with the Sapienzas' interpretation of the 
historic-district regulations. The court explained that "although ARSD 
24:52:07 :0 l indicates that the rules in ARSD chapter 24:52:07 apply to historic 
properties listed on the state or national registers, the McKennan Park Historic 
District itself is a 'historic property' that is 'listed' on the state and national 
registers." The court said this was because the enabling statutes for ARSD 

6 i 2018  Thomson Reuters 



Zoning Bulletin February 25, 2018 I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 4 

24:52:07:01 and ARSD 24:52:07:04 included historic districts within the statu 
tory definition of "historic property." (See SDCL l - l  9A-2(3) .) Therefore, 
explained the court, "ARSD 24:52:07:01 's reference to listed 'historic proper 
ties' cannot be read as language limiting the applicability of the chapter's 
substantive regulations to individually owned historic properties." Since 
McKennan Park itself was a listed historic property, and the Sapienzas' 
individually owned property was within McKennan Park, the court concluded 
that even through the Sapienzas' home was not individually listed on state or 
national registers, the State historic-district regulations still applied to the 
Sapienzas' property. In other words, because the McKennan Park historic 
district was itself a "historic property" that was listed on state and national 
registers, the requirements of the State historic-district regulations (i .e., ARSD 
24:52:07:04) applied to any new construction or additions within McKennan 
Park, including the Sapienzas' new home construction. 

The court also concluded that the issuance of the injunction requiring the 
Sapienzas to modify their newly-constructed home to comply with the 
historic-district regulations was warranted. In so concluding, the court 
explained that in determining whether an injunction requiring modification of 
the Sapienzas' home was warranted, it had to look at: ( 1 )  whether an injunc 
tion was statutorily authorized under state law (SDCL 21 -8 - 14  ); and, if so, (2) 
whether the circuit court's decision to grant the injunction was an abuse of 
discretion. 

The court found that an injunction was statutorily authorized in this case. 
The court noted that under SDCL 2 1 -8 - 14 (  I ) ,  an injunction could be granted 
to prevent the breach of an obligation ( i .e . ,  here, the historic-district regula 
tions), where "pecuniary compensat ion would not afford adequate relief." 
Here, the court determined that pecuniary compensation would not provide 
adequate relief as the failure of the Sapienzas to construct their home in accor 
dance with historic standards: ( 1 )  impa ired the historical integrity of the 
McKennan Park historic district; (2) decreased the market value of the 
McDowells' home; and (3) interfered with the McDowell's use and enjoyment 
of their home. These "intangible harms" said the court, "are often not rectified 
by pecuniary compensation." 

Next, the court concluded that the circuit court had not abused its discretion 
in issuing the injunction. The court said this was because: ( 1 )  the Sapienzas 
caused the harm, which (2) was irreparable without the injunction because the 
undermining of the historic district could not be remedied by a payment of 
money to the McDowells; and (3) the Sapienzas' acts "were not innocent 
mistakes," as they chose to use a construction company unfamiliar with stan 
dards for historic districts, and submitted to the Board renderings that did not 
accurately reflect what they later built; and (4) the hardship to be suffered by 
the Sapienzas in modifying their newly-constructed home was not "dispropor 
tionate" to the benefit to be gained by the McDowells, whose privacy and use 
and enjoyment of their home was impacted by the Sapienzas' home. 

See also: Vieux Carre Property Owners & Associates, Inc. v. City of New 
Orleans, 246 La. 788, 167 So. 2d 367 ( 1964). 

See also: Faulkner v. Town of Chestertown, 290 Md. 214, 428 A.2d 879 
(1981 ). 

g 2018 Thomson Reuters 7 



February 25, 2018 I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 4 Zoning Bulletin 

See also: A-S-P Associates v. City of Raleigh, 298 NC. 207, 258 S.E.2d 444 
(1979). 

See also: Hoffman v. Bob Law, Inc., 2016 SD 94, 888 N. W2d 569 (S.D. 
2016). 

Case Note: 

The McDowells had also alleged that construction of the Sapienzas' home violated the 

City's chimney ordinance. The proximity of the Sapienzas' new home had caused the 

McDowells' home to fall out of compliance with the chimney ordinance's chimney 

height requirements ( based on distance and height of adjacent structures), leaving the 

McDowells unable to use their fireplace. The circuit court agreed with the McDowells 

and ordered the Sapienzas to modify their home so that McDowells could use their 

fireplace. On appeal, however, the Supreme Court of South Dakota concluded that the 

chimney ordinance was a set back requirement, which regulated the height of chimneys 

on a structure and not the siting of structures on other properties. Although the 

Sapienzas' new home caused the Mclrowells' home to fall out of compliance with the 

chimney ordinance, the Sapienzas' home was not sited in violation of the chimney 

ordinance, found the court. As such, the court reversed the circuit court's contrary 

legal conclusion. 

Case Note: 

The Sapienzas had asserted defenses of laches and assumption of risk. However, both 

the circuit court and the appellate court rejected those defenses. 

Case Note: 

The McDowe!ls had also sued the City for negligence. They had alleged that the City 

was negligent in issuing the building permit and permitting the Sapienzas to build a 

home that violated building regulations. The circuit court had agreed, concluding that 

the City owed a duty to the McDowells to properly enforce the historic-district 

regulation. But, the Supreme Court of North Dakota disagreed. It concluded that the 

duty to ensure compliance with permits-which allegedly was breached here-rested 

with the "individuals responsible for construction," and not the local government. 

Moreover, the court found that the McDowells failed to establish the requirements for 

establishing a special duty owed by the City to the McDowells (i.e., that the City had 

actual knowledge that the Sapienzas' home would violate ARSD 24:52:07:04; that the 

McDowe!ls relied on representations of the City to protect them; or that ARSD 

24:52:07:04 set forth mandatory acts that the City undertook to protect the individual 

property owners in the historic district.) Thus, the court concluded that the circuit 

,court erred in holding that the City owed a duty to the McDowel/s to ensure compli- 

ance with applicable building codes and regulations. 

8 i 2018  Thomson Reuters 



Zoning Bulletin February 25, 2018 I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 4 

Jurisdiction/School District-Town 
says school district's electronic 
sign violates town zoning 
ordinances 

School district contends that it is immune from town's 
zoning ordinances 

Citation: Ravena-Coeymans-Selkirk Central School District v. Town of 
Bethlehem, 156A.D.3d 179, 66 N.Y.S.3d 534 (Jd Dep't 2017) 

NEW YORK (11/30/17)-This case addressed the issue of whether a school 
district was immune from a town's zoning ordinances. 

The Background/Facts: In January 2015,  the Ravena-Coeymans-Selkirk 
Central School District (the "School District") asked the Town of Bethlehem 
(the "Town") whether any local law would prohibit the School District from 
replacing an existing traditional sign at one of its elementary school located in 
the Town with an electronic message board sign. The Town informed the 
School District that the Town's zoning laws expressly prohibited electronic 
signs in the Town. The School District then applied to the Town for a variance 
in order to install the electronic sign (which had already been donated to the 
school). The Town denied the School District's variance application. However, 
the School District, nevertheless, installed the electronic sign. Consequently, 
the Town informed the School District that it was in violation of various pro 
visions of the Town's zoning laws, and ordered the School District to remove 
the sign. The School District responded that, as a public school, it was not 
subject to local zoning requirements. Sti l l ,  "[a]s a precaution," the School 
District appealed the Town's variance denial to the Town's Zoning Board of 
Appeals (the "ZBA"). The ZBA also denied the variance request, cit ing, 
among other things, traffic safety concerns. 

Following the ZBA's denial of its requested variance, the School District 
filed an action for declaratory judgment with the county Supreme Court. The 
School District asked the court to declare that, as a public school, the School 
District was immune and exempt from compliance with the Town's zoning 
laws as they apply to the use of real property for school purposes. 

The Town and the ZBA counterclaimed. They asked the court for an order 
directing the School District to remove the sign. 

The Supreme Court rejected the School District's immunity argument, 
dismissed the School District's action, and directed that the School District to 
remove the electronic sign. 

The School District appealed. 

DECISION: Judgment of Supreme Court affirmed as modified. 

The Supreme Court, Appellate Division, Third Department, New York, 
held that the School District was not immune from the Town's zoning 
ordinances. 

@ 2018 Thomson Reuters 9 



February 25, 2018 I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 4 Zoning Bulletin 

In so holding, the court acknowledged that schools do enjoy some immunity 
from zoning regulations. The court said this was the case where New York's 
Education Law explicitly requires Education Department oversight of local 
school boards, such as with: the selection of building sites and erection or de 
molition of buildings on those sites (see Education Law §§ 401,  407, 408); the 
sale or acquisition of property (see Education Law §§ 402-405); health or 
safety conditions within the school (see Education Law §§ 409-409-1); or any 
use of a school building (see Education Law § 414 ) .  However, the court 
explained that the immunity School Districts have from local zoning regula 
tions is "not so broad and absolute as [the School District] contend[ed]." 
Where local zoning regulations do not encroach on a state agency's authority, 
they are authorized and applicable to School Districts, held the court. 

Here, the court found that the Education Department did not require review 
of sign placement, and the School District had not requested any Education 
Department review of its electronic s ign placement. Hence, the court 
concluded that there was "no duplication of review-nor the possibility of 
conflicting determinations-by state and local entities," and there was no 
"encroachment by the Town or the ZBA on a state agency's authority." 

Having concluded that the School District was not immune from the Town's 
zoning ordinances, the court next looked at whether the ZBA had properly 
denied the School District's request for a variance. The court concluded that 
the ZBA had properly denied the variance given that: the Town and the ZBA 
had not refused the School District the opportunity to install any sign, but just 
an electronic message center sign, which was prohibited in the Town and 
which also failed to comply with at least three additional size and location 
requirements of the signage provisions of the Town's zoning ordinance; and 
the ZBA had "provided rational reasons for its determination, including a 
concern for traffic safety due to the sign's brightness and potential to be more 
distracting and hazardous to passing motorists than an ordinary sign." 

See also: Cornell University v. Bagnardi, 68 N. Y.2d 583, 510 N. Y.S.2d 861, 
503 N.E.2d 509, 37 Ed. Law Rep. 292 ( 1986). 

Case Note: 

The School District had argued that, alternatively, it was entitled to immunity from lo 

cal zoning laws in light of the " 'balancing of public interests' test." The court rejected 

that argument, stating that the balancing of public interests tests was generally applied 

in the case of competing localities and was "not necessary in relation to schools." 

Rather, with regard to schools, the court said that "the controlling consideration must 

always be the over-all impact on the public's welfare." 

Case Note: 

Because the county Supreme Court had not made a declaration, the appellate court 

modified the judgment by declaring that the School District had not shown itself to be 

immune and exempt from the Town's zoning law in these circumstances. 

10  &  2018  Thomson Reuters 



Zoning Bulletin 

Case Note: 

February 25, 2018 I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 4 

In its decision, the appellate court pointed to a state Court of Appeals case, which had 

held that schools are not fully exempt from zoning rules, particularly where the 

educational use "may actually detract from the public's health, safety, welfare or mor 

als . . . .  "(See Cornell University v. Bagnardi, 68 N. Y.2d 583, 510 N. Y.S.2d 861, 503 

N.E.2d 509, 37 Ed. Law Rep. 292 (1986).) The School District had argued that the 

Court of Appeals' holding applied to only private schools. But, the appellate court 

disagreed. 

Zoning News from Around the 
Nation 

CALIFORNIA 

A gun rights group has reportedly filed a petition with the United States 
Supreme Court, asking the court to consider a Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals 
decision, which upheld an Alameda County zoning ordinance that prohibited 
gun stores from being located within 500 feet of certain areas, including resi 
dential zoning districts. In the appeal, the gun rights group maintains that the 
county zoning law is a violation of Second Amendment rights. The Ninth 
Circuit had rejected that argument, noting that there were locations in the 
county where guns could be purchased, and finding there is no constitutional 
right to sell guns. 

Source: Fox News; www.foxnews.com 

PENNSYLVANIA 

Millcreek Township has reportedly "agreed to pay a resident $23,396 to 
settle a federal lawsuit challenging township political sign regulations." The 
Township also had earlier settled a separate, similar case for $15,000. The 
residents had challenged an ordinance that capped the number of temporary 
signs allowed on property, including political signs. Under the terms of the 
recent settlement, the township zoning ordinance will be amended to el imi 
nate the cap on temporary signs. 

Source: GoErie.com; www.goerie.com 

MAINE 

In June, Town of Kennebunk residents will vote on a proposed ban on all 
retail marijuana sales and operations in Town. The proposed zoning ordinance 
was approved by the Town's Planning Board and Board of Selectmen. Last 
year, recreational marijuana became legal in Maine, and the state legislature is 
currently considering a proposal to extend a statewide ban on retail sales of 
marijuana until May l to give the state more time to craft regulations related 
to recreational marijuana. Previously, Governor Paul LePage vetoed a bill cre 
ated by a bipartisan task force that would have addressed such regulation of 
recreational marijuana. 

t 2018  Thomson Reuters 1 1  



February 25, 2018 I  Volume 1 2  I  Issue 4 

Source: Bangor Daily News; https:/lbangordailynews.com 

Zoning Bulletin 

12  � 20 18  Thomson Reuters 



540 Court Street, Suite 104, Elko, Nevada 89801 
Phone (775) 738-6816 Fax (775) 738-4581 
www.elkocountynv.net 

COMMISSIONERS 

David Galyen 

Dena M .  Hartley 

David Hough 

Mike Judd 

Jack Larason 

Richard Genseal 

Mark Wetmore 

PLANNING SUPERVISOR 

John Kingwell 

GIS/CADD OPERA TOR 

Peggy Pierce-Fitzgerald 

Elko County Planning Commission 

PUBLIC MEETING NOTICE 
The Elko County Planning Commission, County of Elko, State of 
Nevada, will meet on Thursday, March 15, 2018, in the Nannini 
Administration Building, Suite 102, 540 Court Street, Elko, Nevada 
89801 at 5: 15 PM. Pacific Time Zone 

Attached with this Notice is the Agenda for said meeting of the Board. 
This Notice is posted pursuant to NRS 241  as amended by the 20 1  7  Legislature and is to be posted at 

the following places no later than three full working days before the meeting: 

ELKO COUNlY MANAGER'S OFFICE 
ELKOCOUN1YCOUR1HOUSE 
ELKO COUNlYLIBRARY 
ELKO CllY HALL 

ELKO COUNlY WEBSI1E: www.elkocountynv.net 

ROBERT K. STOKES 

Elko County Manager 



WELCOME TO AN ELKO COUNTY BOARD OR COMMISSION MEETING!  

We are pleased you are interested in a meeting of one of Elko County's Boards or Commissions. 

Below is some basic information about our meetings and procedures for you to participate in your 

government. 

AGENDAS 

The agenda is available on the Elko County website at www.elkocountynv.net. Hard copies are made 
available at the meeting, upon request at the County Manager's Office or posted as per NRS 24 1 .  

Meetings are broadcast live from our website, under the Meetings tab on the home page of the website 

and then under Agendas, Videos, etc. You can also click the Watch Our Meetings tab on the right side of 
the home page. Videos ofthe meeting are available within 24 hours of the end of the meeting. Minutes, 

when finalized and approved by the Board/Commission, are also posted to that page. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

The public's participation in our meetings is valued and appreciated. The Board/Commission can only 
take action on items that are listed on an agenda properly posted prior to the meeting. During 

Comments by the General Public, speakers may address matters not listed on the agenda. The Open 

Meeting Law does not expressly prohibit responses to public comment by the Commissioners, but no 
deliberation on a matter can be considered without notice to the public. Public comment will be called for 
on all agenda items marked For Possible Action. 

Ifyou are planning to speak during the meeting, please sign the sign-in-sheet at the back of the meeting 

room. This helps our recording clerk get the correct spelling of your name. When comments are called 

for, please approach the podium and state your name and who you represent. 

If submitting comments or information on an agenda item, please submit to the County Manager's Office 

as soon as possible in order to provide opportunity for Board/Commission members to review and to 
avoid possible delays in a decision if not all information is presented previous to the start ofa meeting. If 

information is presented at the meeting, you need to provide at least 10 copies, making sure to submit a 

copy to the recording secretary for the official public record. All information submitted becomes part of 
the public record and is added to the backup information for that agenda item on our website with 24 
hours of the adjournment of the meeting. 

Another avenue for making comments on agenda items, especially if you can't make a meeting, is called 

e-Comment. If you open the agenda under the process described above, you will find a link by the 

agenda called e-Comment. Click on the link and follow the directions to register to comment and you are 
s e t  to comment on specific agenda items. Please note that the e-comment period for a specific agenda 

closes 24 hours before the start of the meeting to allow those comments to be transmitted to our 
Board/Commission members and recording staff. Those reports are also uploaded to our agenda on the 
website. 

CONSENT AGENDA 
Items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine in nature and are normally approved 

by one motion without extensive discussion. Ifa Board/Commission member wishes to comment or 

discuss a particular item, that item can be removed from the consent agenda and considered as a 
separate action during the meeting. 

Elko County Planning Commission 

Meet mg Agenda 

March 1 5 , 2 0 1 8  

I ' . ,  cc' I 2 



ELKO COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 

COUNTY OF ELKO, STATE OF NEVADA MEETING 

THE NANNINI ADMINISTRATION BUILDING, SUITE 102,  

540 COURT STREET, ELKO, NEV ADA 89801.  

5 : 15  PM Pacific Time Zone 

Thursday, March 15, 2018 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH NRS 2 4 1 ,  THE  COMMISSION MAY: (I) CHANGE THE ORDER OF THE AGENDA, (II) COMBINE 
lWO OR MORE AGENDA ITFM.5 FOR CONSIDERATION, (Ill) REMOVE AN ITFM FROM THE AGENDA OR DELAY 

DISCUSSION RFl.A TING TO AN ITFM ON THE AGENDA AT ANY TIMF., (IV) AND IF THE AGENDA IS NOT 
COMPUTED, RECESS THE MFEflNG AND CONTINUE ON ANOTHER SPECIFIED DA TE AND TIME. THE PUBLIC CAN 

COMMENT ON ANY AGENDA ITFM BY BEING ACKNOWLEDGED BY THE CHAIR WHILE THE COMMISSION 
CONSIDERS THAT AGENDA ITFM 

POSTING 
This agenda is posted pursuant to N RS 241 as amended by the 2017  Legislature and was posted at the 
following locations no later than 9:00 a.m. (Pacific Time Zone), on March 12, 2018 :  ELKO COUNTY 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT, ELKO COUNTY MANAGER'S OFFICE, ELKO COUNTY 

COURTHOUSE, ELKO COUNTY LIBRARY, ELKO CITY HALL, LAMOILLE POST OFFICE, 
ELKO COUNTY WEBSITE (www.elkocountynv.net), STATE OF NEVADA's PUBLIC NOTICE 

WEBSITE (https://notice.nv.gov). 

REQUEST FOR AGENDA INFORMATION 
The public may acquire this agenda and supporting materials, pursuant to NRS 241 by contacting John Kingwell 
at (775) 748-0214 or via email to jkingwell@elkocountynv.net or, Peggy Pierce Fitzgerald at (775) 748-0215 or 

via email to pfitzgerald@elkocountynv.net. Materials are available from the Elko County Planning and Zoning 

Office, Nannini Administration Building, located at 540 Court Street, Suite 104, Elko, Nevada 89801 or on the 

Elko County website at www.elkocountynv.net. 

NOTICE OF THE APPEAL PROCESS 
Anyone aggrieved by an action of this Planning Commission may appeal such decision to the Elko County 

Board of County Commissioners within I O  calendar days of said action. An appeal form may be obtained from 
the Division of Planning and Zoning located at 540 Court Street, Suite I 04, in Elko. When completed, return the 

appeal form with the required $250.00 filing fee to the Division of Planning and Zoning within the 10  calendar 

day period. 

PROCEDURES 
The public will be given the opportunity to comment on any agenda item by being acknowledged by the chair 
prior to action being taken by the Planning Commission. 

Elko County Planning Commission 

Meeting Agenda 

March 1 5 .  2 0 1 8  

l ' . 1 c c  I  3 



Breaks and recess actions shall be called for at the pleasure of the Commission rather than by agenda schedule. 
Please place your cell phones on manner mode. 

"FOR POSSIBLE ACTION" identifies an action item subject to a vote of the Commission. 

NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES 

Members of the public who are disabled and require special accommodations or assistance at the meeting are 
requested to notify the Elko County Planning Commission in writing at 540 Court Street, Suite I 04, Elko, 

Nevada 89801, email pfitzgerald@elkocountynv.net or jkingwell@elkocountynv.net or by calling (775) 

738-6816. 

A. CALL TO ORDER AT 5:15 P.M. 

B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

C. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

C. l .  Minutes of February 1 5 ,  20 18  

FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 
ECPC February 1 5 . 2 0 1 8  Minutes Draft.pdf 

D. COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC 

Pursuant to NRS 241 this time is devoted to comments by the general public, if any, and discussion of those 
comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item on the agenda until the matter itself 
has been specifically included on a successive agenda and identified to be an action item. 

NON-ACTION 

E. PRELIMINARY HEARIN GS 

E. l .  Application No. 18-2000-0003, Koinonia Construction, INC. 
A change of zoning request submitted by Koinonia Construction, INC. for a change in zoning from Open 
Space (OS) to Special Lands (SL) for the creation of four (4) IO-acre+/- parcels for residential use. 

Location: A 40.571-acre parcel of land described as Adjusted Lot 9, Boundary Line Adjustment, File No. 
592568 Locate in a Portion of Section 29, Township 34 North, Range 56 East, M .D .B .&M .  

Owner: Koinonia Construction, INC .  

FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

E.2. 18-2000-0004, Carl 0. Peavey Family Trusts, Eva L. Peavey Trustee 
Elko County Planning Commission 

Meeting Agenda 

March 1 5 ,  2 0 1 8  

l'.,s,· 1 4  



A change of zoning request from Open Space (OS) to Agricultural Residential (AR) submitted by the Carl 
0. Peavey Family Trusts, Eva L. Peavey Trustee for the creation of a 2.0 acre parcel to be transferred to 

a family member for their residence. 

Location: A Parcel of land located in Section 29, T.39 N . ,  R.62 E., M .D .B .&M. ,  Elko County, Nevada, 

being a portion of the SE 1/4 SE 1/4 of said Section 29. 

Applicant I Owner: Carl 0. Peavey Family Trusts, Eva L. Peavey Trustee 

FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

F. OTHER BUSINESS 

NON-ACTION 

G. STAFF UPDATE AND COMMISSIONERS COMMENTS 
This time is devoted to comments by Elko County Planning Commissioners and/or County Staff for general 

information or update purposes. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item of the agenda 

until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive agenda and identified to be an action item. 

NON-ACTION 

H. COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC 

Pursuant to NRS 241 this time is devoted to comments by the general public, if any, and discussion of those 

comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item on the agenda until the matter itself 
has been specifically included on a successive agenda and identified to be an action item. 

NON-ACTION 

I. ADJOURNMENT 

E-COMMENT 

POSTING CERTIFICATE 

ELKO COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY PROVIDER AND EMPLOYER. 

Elko County Planning Commission 

Meeting Agenda 

March 1 5 .  2 0 1 8  

1 • . , ,: , ·  I s  


	04-03-18 Agenda.pdf (p.1-4)
	03-06-18 DRAFT Minutes.pdf (p.5-18)
	Item I.A.1. CUP 3-18 Land.pdf (p.19-42)
	Item I.A.2. Rez 1-18 City of Elko.pdf (p.43-62)
	Item I.A.3. Var 3-18 Broockmann.pdf (p.63-87)
	item I.A.4. Var 4-18 Kenworth.pdf (p.88-109)
	Item I.B.1. Annexation 1-18.pdf (p.110-160)
	Zoning Bulletin - 2-25-18.pdf (p.161-172)
	County PC Agenda 03-15-18.pdf (p.173-177)

